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LFEFHMERR

Five years’ financial summary

BE_F——%7A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

—E-%F —TTNF —TTN\F —TTLF
2010 2009 2008 2007
THET AT TET THT
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$ 000  HK$'000
(mE5)  (K83) (K&Y) (KEF)
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
'ON Revenue 38,790 46,949 67,273 94,138
N/NEIEEY=DN A Profit/(Loss) attributable to
&7/ (B8) owners of the Company 232,722 (448,392) 362,084 473,758
BRE Dividends 10,220 - 23,748 53,304
SRAEF,/(BE) &)  Earnings/(Loss) per share
(Hiita) (HK$) (note a) 0.78 (1.67) 1.54 3.04
BRKE GET) (Hita) Dividends per share
(HK$) (note a) 0.03 NATEA 0.10 0.32
BARE LR (fF) Dividend cover (time) 26 N/A TiEf 15.4 9.5
EENBE Assets and liabilities
BT &E (f#th) Fixed assets (note b) 3,642,711 3,392,703 3,885,878 3,310,285
HERBEE Other non-current assets 2,402 950 950 950
RIBEH Mortgage loans* 108 126 305 501
RBEE/(AR)FE Net current assets/(liabilities) 24,279 (73,809) 48,114 26,094
knBDEE Non-current liabilities (423,763)  (426,766)  (503,801)  (530,880)
BEEFE Net assets 3,245,737 2,893,204 3,431,446 2,806,950
BREEHE(ET) Net assets per share (HKS) 9.36 10.66 12.99 12.89

*  REBF TG

Atit

(@@ BR-IZE-—ZTFR_TTAFI -
BOBEZIMEFAREREEE_ZTF
NFER-ZBZELFRNA=ZTHIEFERNE

non-current portion only

Notes:

EFHZ @

Except for 2010 and 2009, the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding for all years as at the respective

year end dates presented have been adjusted to reflect the

TZHEBEREE ZANTERmIELFE
BMERNRFPHERASB BET -

bonus element of the rights issue and placements during the
years ended 30 June 2008 and 2007 and as if these events had

taken place at the beginning of the earliest period presented.

b BEEEBEREYE WX EREKR b
1 e

Fixed assets include investment properties and property, plant

and equipment.

ANNUAL RePorT 2011 F$R CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED =g (£8) GRAR 2
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Notice of Annual General
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(Z) EIRREIRE

(D) BREENEE

HEiM<

(M) BERSMREETENS

() BFREREBELNBTRETNIERS

HRRHEE -
F B3

(i)

(ii)

ETXEGNEBZRET - &2
AREREERRRESS
KERBR BETEAQXRZ
—Y)HEH - BRIAQ R KA
2

EXEGETFTRE 2 X - A
MR ARREES RS ZH
R RE  WHREEES
REBHERERARREITH
RRARINEFEEEREL
BREN ZERBOARS 2K

(2

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Meeting
will be held at 35/F., Cheuk Nang Plaza, 250 Hennessy
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong on Wednesday, the 16 day of

November 2011 at 3:00 p.m. for the following purposes:

—_

To receive and consider the Statement of Accounts and

the Reports of the Directors and Auditors for the year
ended 30 June, 2011;

To declare final dividend;

To elect Directors and fix their remuneration;

To appoint Auditors and fix their remuneration; and

As special business to consider and if thought fit, pass

the following resolutions as Ordinary Resolutions:—

A That:

(i)

(ii)

subject to paragraph (iii) below, the exercise
by the Directors during the Relevant Period of
all the powers of the Company to repurchase
shares in the capital of the Company be
and is hereby generally and unconditionally

approved;

the approval in paragraph (i) above shall be in
addition to any other authorisation given to the
Directors of the Company and shall authorise
the Directors on behalf of the Company during
the Relevant Period to procure the Company to
repurchase its own shares at a price per share

determined by the Directors at their discretion;

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED =g (%£8) BRAR
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

(iii) A RPIRE EXE()E <2 #h 8
EEERER 2 RARIKRNEE
R A BBEARAR BT
BRAEBEBEEE> 2+

(iv) MARZEMS -

[EHER I IERNARRBA
ZBETH=Z228KFHHIE
Z B -

(a) BIBARFRZRTEIT
ZE-RBRRBEREHE
REF - RRIRBRAEAG R
BRIFEZ A& BB T AR
BEBARBRZRER
H (T im A EM IR

(b) A RVRRIEE I T /A 81
2 TREREBFASHR
EHzE R

() BMEEBRBEAE L
5 R O A
RBE -

(iii) the aggregate nominal amount of the share

capital of the Company which the Company
is authorised to repurchase pursuant to the
approval in paragraph (i) above shall not
exceed 10 per cent of the aggregate nominal
amount of the share capital of the Company in

issue;

for the purposes of this Resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from the
passing of this Resolution until whichever is

the earliest of:

(@) the conclusion of the first Annual General
Meeting of the Company following the
passing of this Resolution at which time it
shall lapse unless, by ordinary resolution
passed at that meeting, the authorisation
conferred by this Resolution is renewed,
either unconditionally or subject to

conditions;

(b) the expiration of the period within which
the next Annual General Meeting of the
Company is required by law to be held;

and

(c) revocation or variation of this Resolution
by ordinary resolution of the shareholders

in general meeting.

ANNUAL RePoRrT 2011 F#R
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

(i)

(iii)

R EXFIEEBRRERZE
EEBOARRKD - 2@
MEGFHRREEETENE R
BARITEARRR — YN
BARRNBFIERAD - AT E
AT LTS 2B - ek
N EARE - MaxF R BE HEiE
Bl 2 8B R :

EXEmHE 2 B - FATHE IR
RABEZGHES ZEME
Xt - WASRERARRES
SHEARBMEELHR THA
A BRI ARITE Ll i
ZHBES - LB

ARBRMS -

[ERANIME | fEmARE R BB
ZBEETI=F2RFHHIL
Z HAR

(a) BBARIRZIEMEIT
ZHR-RBRBFEREE
REF - RIARBERY
BROFERR A @B E®
BEBARBRZRER
H (T im B M R )

B

That:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

following any repurchase of shares in the
capital of the Company pursuant to the
authorisation conferred on the Directors under
Ordinary Resolution A above, the exercise
by the Directors during the Relevant Period
of all the powers of the Company to allot
additional shares in the Company, and to make
offers, agreements and options which might
require the exercise of such power, equivalent
to the number of shares so repurchased be
and is hereby generally and unconditionally

approved;

the approval in paragraph (i) above shall be in
addition to any other authorisation given to the
Directors of the Company and shall authorise
the Directors on behalf of the Company during
the Relevant Period to procure the company to
allot or make offers, agreements and options
to allot additional shares which might require
the exercise of such power after the end of the

Relevant Period;

for the purpose of this Resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from the
passing of this Resolution until whichever is

the earliest of:

(a) the conclusion of the first Annual General
Meeting of the Company following the
passing of this Resolution at which time it
shall lapse unless, by ordinary resolution
passed at that meeting, the authorisation
conferred by this Resolution is renewed,
either unconditionally or subject to

conditions;

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED =g (%£8) BRAR
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Notice of Annual General Meeting
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(b) R BIRIEIED M 78 £
Z TERRBFRGHR
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BERTT

() BERAEBRBFERE EMX
BN E R BEH B R

=
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(i)

(i)

(iii)

ETXEGNEZBRET - &2
H R EEEIOERQRRIREBER
A {51 55 7 + BRI A 8 B
MABLEFTIGAR D - WA e
REHMBETELREENZE
AR - e R HAE

() &R 2 HEfE AT BT it AR
RAEEEMERZEMEM
R AEEARBEFTEA
EERBEELERRTHEAR
BRI RITE LlESD 2
BRAEZ - s M ERE

RRREFGIKIE _EXXEG)ED
HEE T A 3% sk R B A IR 1R S
R E A mERRE (H
&R A 1T R AR 2
REBEMETERIN) TFHE
BAREZBEITRAEEARE
Bzt &

(b) the expiration of the period within which
the next Annual General Meeting of the
Company is required by law to be held;

and

(c) revocation or variation of this Resolution
by ordinary resolution of the shareholders

in general meeting.

C That:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

subject to paragraph (iii) below, pursuant to
section 57B of the Companies Ordinance,
the exercise by the Directors of the Company
during the Relevant Period of all the powers
of the Company to allot additional shares
and to make or grant offers, agreements and
options which might require the exercise of
such power be and is hereby generally and

unconditionally approved;

the approval in paragraph (i) above shall be
in addition to any other authorisation given
to the Directors of the Company and shall
authorise the Directors of the Company during
the Relevant Period to make or grant offers,
agreements and options which might require
the exercise of such power after the end of the

Relevant Period;

the aggregate nominal amount of share
capital allotted or agreed conditionally or
unconditionally to be allotted by the Directors
of the Company pursuant to the approval in
paragraph (i) above, otherwise than pursuant
to a rights issue or on the exercise of the
subscription rights under any warrants, shall
not exceed the aggregate of 20 per cent of the
aggregate amount of the issued share capital of

the Company; and

ANNUAL ReporT 2011 F#R
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(iv) E‘lei/j%u%% =

=
Notice of Annual General Meeting

[ERMME  fERARER
ZHETH=
Z

(a) 3

A
HEZBFHELLE

(iv) for the purpose of this Resolution

“Relevant Period” means the period from the

passing of this Resolution until whichever is

the earliest of:

RBAORBRZIETETT (@)
ZE-RBERBERGHE

REF - RIRRRER R
BRIFERAA S BIBEBR
BERRNRABRZEEE
HY (M im A B o R 1)

[FE2 S

the conclusion of the first Annual General

Meeting of the Company following the
passing of this Resolution at which time it
shall lapse unless, by ordinary resolution
passed at that meeting, the authorisation
conferred by this Resolution is renewed
either unconditionally or subject to
conditions;
(b)y ARARREBIEGIMBRIT (b) the expiration of the period within which
2 T ERRER A F X g R the next Annual General Meeting of the
EmzB & Company is required by law to be held
and
() WMREBRRBFANE LN (©)
BN ERBEH E R
IR o

revocation or variation of this Resolution
in general meeting

by ordinary resolution of the shareholders

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED = (£E) HRAA
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AEEED
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&% —E——FHhLA=-+=H

it EE
BE

AT

B FFiB2505%
HREES
30— 351

“Rights issue” means an offer of shares open
for a period fixed by the Directors to holders
of shares on the register on a fixed record date
in proportion to their then holdings of such
shares (subject to such exclusions or other
arrangements as the Directors of the Company
may deem necessary or expedient in relation to
fractional entitlements or having regard to any
restrictions or obligations under the laws of, or
the requirements of any recognised regulatory
body or any stock exchange in any territory

outside Hong Kong).

By Order of the Board
Connie S. F. Ho
Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 22 September 2011

Registered Office:

30/F-35/F

Cheuk Nang Plaza
250 Hennessy Road

Wanchai
Hong Kong

ANNUAL ReporT 2011 F 3R CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED =g (£8) GRAF 8
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ARFEERRE  AIREERFERELZ

BERAEA(TRBIXZRAERLF) Z
BE-BUME » RERUREARK
RECMARBEBRTEAZERRF
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REZERBEREZAZEBEESNEAM
B (A MEHREAZEFR
ZEESHHMEEXHEIA Mwﬁﬁék
FREFEMEGIEERITREN A+ VN
RIERANRAIZRDBEETLEE SRR
BEEBTDERAT iUt ABEEFER
KBEI183FEAFMAF LI17E1712 17165
) TARBW - BEZRREREEZEES
% - RN PIAKFERR B R g sk A
BeWRg LRE-

ABERAFREBRAERANSFTRER
HE—REBEEABEARRRD

RABERALRARNEBELBRER
%$E%§%E%I%W%ﬁ%%7$g
FIEHTAR - RER EMHRE - RERK
RHLE— R -

Notes:

1

AMEM — (B R H 2.

Every member entitled to attend and vote at the above
meeting is entitled to appoint one or more proxies to attend
and vote instead of him. A proxy need not be a member of
the Company but must be present in person to represent the

member.

Where there are joint registered holders of any shares, any
one of such persons may attend and vote at the Meeting,
either personally or by proxy, in respect of such shares as if
he were solely entitled thereto; but if more than one of such
joint holders be present at the Meeting personally or by proxy,
that one of the said persons so present whose name stands first
on the register of members of the Company in respect of such

shares shall alone be entitled to vote in respect thereof.

In order to be valid, the form of proxy duly completed and
signed in accordance with the instructions printed on it
together with the power of attorney or other authority, if
any, under which it is signed, or a notarially certified copy
of it must be deposited at the office of the Company’s share
registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Ltd., at
Shops 1712-1716, 17/F, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not less than 48 hours before the
time appointed for holding of the Meeting or any adjournment
thereof. The completion and delivery of the form of proxy will
not preclude you from attending and voting in person at the

Meeting or any adjournment thereof if you so wish.

The purpose of Ordinary Resolution 5A of this Notice is to
seek approval from shareholders for a general mandate to

repurchase shares in the Company.

Concerning Ordinary Resolutions 5B and 5C of this Notice,
the Directors wish to state that they have no immediate plans
to issue any new shares of the Company; approval is being
sought from members as a general mandate in compliance

with the Listing Rules.

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED =gk

(£HE) BRAA ANNUAL RePoRT 2011 fF#R
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Chairman’s Statement

RAAZRBRREZE6E (RE) AR QA
(IARRE]  EREMBRAR  SE[ARE
gj)%z;zé E-——FRA=THLFEZ
FERKRE

AREEHE_T——FRNA=ZTHLFE

815 2 iR e BR 12 B F 5306,203,000%8 7T
(ZZE—Z4F 259,041,000/ 70) - 24&0
FHIR AR ERAF -

EFERRBRE AR E TRA.580l (=
T-FF 4B FR-F——F+— A
—tMBEREAMAEZZRE  EAR

2 AR B FRAEM (T —FF
3B REFEE A HIRE RS TS5

—E-FE 7

CEENSTESS WL P R ST Y-
W F-—F+-A+ABIEE -

LRAR

RAREBZ N BRI R EBHREA
RN DR EREBE - UK EF
EHBRREERTTERR -

I%UH’MHX*E

RRAREMG EIRA — LR ERE (KR
KR 1092) ([T ——F+ - ARBKE
B O MR-E-FEFE+_A+=BIT

REERGRRMI.80BT - HEE —
FALAZ+—H #£H13, 855388’79:;
——%+=A M\Hﬂéé?ia%ﬁﬂﬁ AMh B %%
ITHIR IR B ARRE74.8% + 5XIH24,940,000
BITE AR

I present herewith to shareholders the report of Cheuk
Nang (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”) for the year ended 30 June 2011.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The consolidated profit after income tax of our Group for
the year ended 30 June 2011 is HK$306,203,000 (2010:
HK$259,041,000).

income statement.

Details are set out in the consolidated

The Directors resolved to recommend the payment of a
final dividend of HK4.5 cents (2010: HK4 cents) per share
payable to those shareholders whose names appeared in
the register of members as at the close of business on 24
November 2011,
of HK4 cents (2010: HK3 cents) per share, makes a total
distribution of HK8.5 cents (2010: HK7 cents) per share this

year.

which together with the interim dividend

After approval by the shareholders at the Annual General
Meeting, the final dividend will be paid on 19 December
2011.

SCRIP DIVIDEND

The Company proposes that a scrip dividend election will
be offered to shareholders with Hong Kong addresses.
Details of the scrip dividend scheme will be announced

later.

BONUS ISSUE OF WARRANTS

The Company currently has one Bonus Issue of Warrants
(Stock code: 1092) (“the 2011 December Warrants”) in the
market with the share subscription price at HK$1.80 per
share which were issued on 13 December 2010. Until 21
September 2011, there are a total of 13,855,388 units of
warrants being exercised, being approximately 74.8% of the
total issued warrants and a sum of HK$24,940,000 being

credited to the accounts.

ANNUAL RePoRrT 2011 F#R
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ALNRRAER (])
REBRK_-_FT——F T+ _ARBBERZX
BEMA—ZT-—TFE+_A—H)ZKEX
KAt » —F——F+ = A RBAEE P
ZRBR(ZTE——FRBRDBEN_-F
——F+-A+T=R(EH ) TFHEKIE
‘BEH-HRE - HE_FT——F+_F+=
H(E2H D) THFORERZATDARITELZ
EA—T-——FREBEEBEHARE M=
T——F+_ARBEEZEEHTBE
RAEAE R A ik

RZFE——FhLAZ=+—8 K (KRER
2131 RABREZBEM S L2 EBES 7
312 T X154 7T - IRERERD KRR
EEEEER -

EXXEERRE

EBYE
ZE——FRNAHBE QMBI E TS
HFTIEME - REAF T —AEBSER £=
T——FLIFHNERTE BRI -
ERmiG ERERIFMNEAR EFERE
R EREM B EF—FHE EETEL
F2% - AN - BEEFE=FA T H
2B o

BONUS ISSUE OF WARRANTS (Continued)

In accordance with the terms and conditions of the
instrument dated 1 December 2010 constituting the 2011
December Warrants, the subscription rights attaching to the
2011 December Warrants (the “2011 Subscription Rights”)
will expire at 4:00 p.m. on Tuesday, 13 December 2011.
Thereafter, any 2010 Subscription Rights which have not
been exercised by 4:00 p.m. on Tuesday, 13 December
2011 will lapse and certificates of the 2011 December

Warrants will cease to be valid for any purpose.

On 21 September 2011, the trading prices of the shares
(Stock 131) and warrants (Stock 1092) on the market are
HK$3.12 and HK$1.54 respectively. Shareholders are well

benefited from the shares and warrants.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS AND PROSPECTS
Hong Kong Property

New government measures, which aimed to cool down the
properties market in June 2011, in addition to the measures
implemented since November 2010, have had a visible
effect on the transaction volume in the first half of 2011.
Benefited from the continued good market sentiment and
solid economic fundamentals in earlier quarter, overall
residential price rose 2% as compared to the last quarter.
Nevertheless, there is a tendency of cooling down in the

price for the third quarter.

11 CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED =g (%£8) BRAR

ANNUAL RePoRT 2011 fF#R



ITREEE

Chairman’s Statement

FBEERREE (R) REVIEW OF OPERATIONS AND PROSPECTS
(Continued)

EBYE (&) Hong Kong Property (Continued)

REBFZ2HBE MMM T : The progress of our projects in Hong Kong are as follows:

1. —HEELIR - 28T EEE8E

EEERE D RME - AIEEEEE
4 75109,000F 5 R

F—HA—E2QIESKNE  EH49E
FEEM (B IE6EE R B A) &391E
FHEA - BSUEBEHL,2000F FRE
3,500 F 5 R

FE_HBESRH  29EFEMLRAE=
EBemtERIE  BIEEEL BR800
FFHIRZE3,000F R - &ATIR MR %
2 HE KB K, o

F—HIERT - FHIA AR TR
ETIRHR-_F—_FFxK £ _H
FETEBRAFVETHRE  LET
256 B0 b AR 7 B K2 b B T 32 e Ak 1% Bl
R T -

One Kowloon Peak at No. 8 Po Fung Terrace, Ting Kau,
Tsuen Wan

A residential project developed in two phases with total
marketable gross floor area is approximately 109,000

square feet.

Phase | comprised of a block of 21-storey building with
49 residential units (including 6 duplex units) and 39
car parking spaces. The size of the units ranged from

approximately 1,200 square feet. to 3,500 square feet.

Phase Il comprised of clubhouse, 29 car parking
spaces and five 3-storey garden villas. The size of the
villas ranged from approximately 1,800 square feet to
3,000 square feet. The clubhouse provide recreational

facilities and swimming pool.

Phase | already completed. The site formation work and
foundation of Phase Il will be completed by mid-2012.
The tender for the superstructure works of Phase Il will
be issued by early next year and the superstructure
work will be commenced immediately after the site

formation work and foundation is completed.

ANNUAL ReporT 2011 3R CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED £g (£8H) GRAR 12
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EBYE (E)
2. I —H] B FET1929

IWEEEERE-RIESERELEE
ANERE24EFEFEEN - WAL ENT
FAEBRERMMEELS1,483F R - BAL
HEEAIHE2,800F FRZE4,000F 5 R o

Wi —HEFR T EENEEL - BEEAS

HRE_ZE——F—ARZARN%E:
- WERTE——F=AKMATK
R 5 o HEUWALI426,000,0007%5 T E
FRMEBE-_ZT——FA=1+HIt
FEMKRBES -

ETHE_FT——FFhEMNEODE
2 FHESEROR20%  YEERHA
RN AEERBI BB OER -

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS AND PROSPECTS
(Continued)
Hong Kong Property (Continued)

2.

Villa Cecil Phase Il, 192 Victoria Road, Pokfulam

A residential development comprised of three blocks
of 4-storey low density residential building provides
24 residential units. The total remaining marketable
gross floor area is 51,483 square feet. The size of the
apartments ranged from approximately 2,800 square

feet to 4,000 square feet.

Ten apartments in Villa Cecil Phase Il are sold.
Agreements for Sale and Purchase were signed in
January and February, 2011.
place in March and April, 2011.
approximately HK$426,000,000 has been reflected in
the accounts for the year ended 30 June 2011.

Completions were taken

The sales proceed of

Some tenancies which were expired in mid of 2011
were renewed with an average of approximately 20%
increase in rental income. Negotiations for renewal of
tenancies which are due to expire at the end of the year

are in progress.

13 CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED =gk
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Chairman’s Statement

EBOEREE (&)

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS AND PROSPECTS
(Continued)

EBYE (&) Hong Kong Property (Continued)

3. =R EKAIEZFE2165 3. Villa Cecil Phase Ill, 216 Victoria Road, Pokfulam
—BEAETEEBEREBIERNEE A residential development comprised of two blocks
AREELEEAZ FAIEEEEERER of 4-storey building for rental purposes. The total
97,000 F 5 R o 55 — iR HEF EE marketable gross floor area is approximately 97,000
R — R 32 EEEEE A - BB square feet. Block 1 provides 8 residential units and
B HE760F T R=E3,800F 7R - Block 2 provides 32 units. The size of the apartments

ranged from approximately 760 square feet to 3,800
square feet.
FE—EE Block 1
BT —EBELAN  F—ENEMLE SR All the units except one of Block 1 are all rented out.
HEL ETE_ZT——FRNIHENAE Some tenancies expired in 2011 were renewed with
HBELD  FHHESEBRERL20% ° an average of approximately 20% increase in rental
income.
ERE Block 2
EF_EBEZANBEER =T ——FHA The Occupation Permit of Block Il was issued on 30
=T HEEL - R RIMEREETR May 2011 and the decoration for both interior and
Bl 5erk » B —EBHNEMERN -F exterior are almost finished. Some units of Block Il are
——F+ARMEL - already lease out in October 2011.

4. FEEES - FFEFFIBE250% 4. Cheuk Nang Plaza, 250 Hennessy Road

bR —1E31E SRR AE M25EEE A 31-storey commercial building and 25 car parking
UEHTEASE - AIHELEEEBELNR spaces for rental purposes. The total marketable gross
73,000 F F R o floor area is 73,000 square feet.
ANEBATH80% XK - IR IF AEREKR The occupancy of the building is 80%. Renovation of
EoBETEIF LR - UERENE the building will be carried out in stages in order to
Eo improve the quality of the building.
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS AND PROSPECTS
(Continued)
Hong Kong Property (Continued)

5.

Cheuk Nang Lookout, 30 Severn Road, The Peak

A residential development comprised of three deluxe
residential villas each having 3-storey, namely Villa
Astor, Villa Begonia and Villa Crocus. Villa Astor was
sold in 2004 and the remaining two villas are now for
rental purposes. The total marketable gross floor area
of the two villas is approximately 12,500 square feet.
Each villa have its own private swimming pool, garden,

internal lift and two car parking spaces.

Villa Begonia has been renewed for a 3-year lease in
mid 2011. Villa Crocus is under major renovation will

be completed next year.
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS AND PROSPECTS
(Continued)
Hong Kong Property (Continued)

6. New Villa Cecil, Lot No. 1848, Shui Hang, Cheung Chau

A residential project developed into 2 phases with
total marketable gross floor area approximately 58,000

square feet.

Phase | comprised of nineteen 2-storey residential
villas. The size of the villas ranged from approximately

1,450 square feet to 2,700 square feet.

Phase Il comprised of four 2-storey residential villas.
The size of the villas ranged from approximately 2,000

square feet to 12,000 square feet.

Recreational facilities including swimming pool and

garden are provided.

Phase |
The superstructure work for phase | is almost
completed. It is anticipated that the Occupation Permit

may be issued by early next year.

Phase Il
As soon as the Occupation Permit for Phase 1 is
obtained, the construction work of Phase Il will be

followed thereafter.
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China Property

In the second quarter of 2011, the Chinese government
further tightened monetary controls for the real estate. As
a result, most banks reduced loans on properties and the
real estate investment volume and transactions continued to

drop and price slightly cool down.

In the first half year of 2011, the Shenzhen economy kept
growing steadily. New supply of residential properties
in the primary market remained low. Longgang district
took up 60% of the total new supply while Bao’an district
contributed 27%. Moreover, the operation of Shenzhen
Metro Line 4 in June 2011 has shortened the traveling time
between Futian and Longhwa which has positive impact on

our property investment in Longhua.

In Hangzhou, the average asking price for deluxe
apartments gently increased but the price for deluxe villas
has a tendency to drop. This may be an indication for a
changing consumer structure, with fewer speculators and
more first-hand users coming to the market. In the leasing

market, a similar situation is observable.

Cheuk Nang Garden

Longhwa, Shenzhen

The development is situated at Lot No. A819-0128, North
of Bao Lung Gong Lu, Longhwa, Bao An District with land
area of 51,323 square metres (approximately 552,449
square feet). The total approved gross floor area is 152,230
square metres (approximately 1,638,604 square feet). It is
planned to build 9 blocks of multi-storey buildings consisted
of 1,089 residential units, 1,054 car parking spaces, a
3-storey kindergarten, clubhouse, garden and shops. The
size of the residential units ranged from 70 square metres
(approximately 753 square feet) to 147 square metres

(approximately 1,582 square feet).
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China Property (Continued)

The appeal to the Shenzhen Intermediate People’s Court
(FRINIT R AREBE) submitted by the former main
contractor Guangdong Provincial 8th Construction Group
Co., Ltd. (ERE/\EZEEABR AT was decided and the
Court Order issued in July 2010 remained in force. The
Court Order provides that the contract with the former main
contractor be rescinded and the former main contractor has
to vacate the site. In return, we shall pay the former main
contractor a sum of RMB14,688,000 being the net amount
of the work done on site after offset the amount for breach

of contract payable by the main contractor.

The tendering for appointment of the new main contractor
was taken place in the past months and the new main

contractor will be awarded shortly.

Cheuk Nang e Riverside
Yue Hang Qu, Hangzhou

The development is situated in Yue Hang Qu, Hangzhou
with land area of 38,983 square metres (approximately
419,613 square feet). The total approved gross floor area
is 122,483 square metres (approximately 1,318,407 square
feet). It is planned to build 14 blocks of multi-storey
buildings which provides 849 residential units, 780 car
parking spaces, clubhouse, recreational facilities and shops.
The size of the residential units ranged from 65 square
metres (approximately 700 square feet) to 270 square metres

(approximately 2,906 square feet).

The preparation of working drawings was completed. The
tenders for site formation and foundation were issued and
the site formation contractor will be appointed by end of

this year.
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Macau Property

The Macau economy has achieved a steady growth in 2011.
The overall property market sentiment is steady despite of

some control policies from the government.

Estrada de Seac Pai Van, Coloane

The development is situated at Estrada de Seac Pai Van
in Coloane, Macau with site area of 9,067 square metres
(approximately 97,597 square feet). The marketable gross
floor area is approximately 1,600,000 square feet). It
comprised of 5 blocks of multi-storey buildings providing
1,147 residential units and 1 block of hotel with 1,044
car parking spaces. The size of the residential units ranged
from approximately 430 square feet to 2,500 square
feet. Recreational facilities will include swimming pool,

clubhouse and landscape garden.

The approval on the building plans (ante projecto de obra)
was received in April 2011. The detail working drawings
(projecto de obra) are now under preparation and it is
anticipated that the drawings will be submitted for approval
by the end of 2011.

The land lease will expire on 14 October 2011. Application
for renewal was made to the DSSOPT on 18 April 2011 and
approval to renew was issued on 27 May 2011. Registration

of the lease renewal was completed on 31 May 2011.

Following the approval of the building plans (ante projecto
de obra), the application for change of land use was
submitted to the DSSOPT on 29 June 2011.
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Estrada de Seac Pai Van, Coloane (Continued)

The litigation with the original vendor of the land Wealthy
Victor Limited was settled after various discussions and
negotiations and a Terms of Settlement was filed with
the Court on 23 March 2011. According to the Terms of
Settlement, the escrow amount of HK$50,000,000 was
shared between our subsidiary company Ace Cosmos
Finance Limited and Wealthy Victor Limited at a ratio
of 63.22% and 36.78% respectively after deducting the
necessary costs of the Escrow Agent. Our portion of the
escrow amount of HK$34,323,464.89 was received on 8
April 2011.

Malaysia Property

The Malaysian economy registered a steady growth in the
second quarter of 2011. The Malaysian Government has
introduced a My First Home Scheme in March 2011 for
those Malaysian aged under 35 years old at monthly income
not more than RM3,000 to purchase their own homes with
price between RM100,000 to RM220,000. In July, 2011, the
Government further introduced a new affordable housing
scheme called Program Perumahan 1Malaysia (PRTMA).
Its objective is to give lower middle income Malaysians an
option to own a house and is targeted at first-time house
buyers with household income less than RM6,000 per

month.

Since our project is a deluxe residential development, the

schemes have no impact on our investment.

Cecil Chao Centre

Lot 690, 849, 851 and 1280, Section 57, Lorong Perak,
Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia

The project developed into 2 phases.
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Malaysia Property (Continued)
Phase | named “Parkview “

The development is a ready built 41-storey residential
building providing 417 residential units and 163 car parking
spaces. The total approved gross floor area is 325,626
square feet. The size of the units ranged from approximately
400 square feet to 2,000 square feet. Recreational facilities

including swimming pool, garden and recreational facilities.

A few unsold units are operated as serviced apartments with

80% occupancy.

Phases Il named “Central Plaza”

The development comprised of 4 blocks of residential
condominium with total approved gross floor area is
1,708,648 square feet provides 879 residential units and
887 car parking spaces. The size of the units ranged
from approximately 570 square feet to 6,000 square feet.
Club facilities including swimming pool, sky gardens and

recreational facilities are provided.

The construction of pile wall for the basement work has
been completed. The tender for foundation has issued and

will appoint the foundation contractor shortly.

INVESTMENT IN HONG KONG STOCK
MARKET

The market price of our investment in the Hong Kong stocks
as at 30 June 2011 is HK$102,210,000 as compared to
HK$97,544,000 as at 30 June 2010. During the year, a total
of HK$35,658,000 stock was sold and HK$37,362,000 stock

was purchased.
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&2 OUTLOOK

TMNEMEEERERLE  EEXEFEBE K& The economic growth in the Asia has been slowed by the
BN BERRETE M EREAB A A economic depression in U.S.A. and Europe. The region
BEAKLBRBEBRESTSFEERELEZ has been influenced by the natural disasters in Japan and
IRERECBEEHERE ORISR - weakening confidence in the worldwide recovery triggered

by ongoing turmoil in international bond markets.

RGN - SNRAVRIBLL EMbE H® 0 In spite of this, Asia is clearly outperforming other regions
THABE - SEERN SR BEELMA o especially China is expected continues to lead the way in

global economy.

SXERPELEBEREEMNTZET  HEME Under the benefit of growth in China, the labour market
FHIED2RBNE KEXRERAMAE in Hong Kong is also showing signs of improvement with
FEEAI3.5% AT B E@Y SMIKEA the unemployment rate remained as low as 3.5% in May.
MR8 TBEIRF BB INE B FIEIE K - Although Hong Kong is now facing a high inflation problem,

it is expected to achieve a steady growth for the next year.

AREEREBNEZERFLEBME 2 L Our Group has a land bank in total gross floor area of
o AR KB FE R EE T - T8 approximately 6 million square feet to be completed in the
B2BER AEBBEXRIVIZBTE - KR= coming years. Barring from unforeseen circumstance, our
FUERNEER B I LS o Group will perform steadily and good results will be seen in

the next three to four years’ time.

EERET DIRECTORS AND STAFF
AANBREREERHSESLETETFA | am most grateful on behalf of the Group for the dedication
HARRNER o of our directors and staff during the year.

RAMBE  RAFTHITEE St SiE  As at the date of this announcement, the Executive Directors

+(xE) BXENE BREHLLE - F  are Dr. Chao Sze Tsung Cecil (Chairman), Miss Gigi Chao,

B e E R MBS Lt ENITEEAZT Mr. Chao Howard, Mr. Yung Philip and Ms. Ho Sau Fun,

BEES A B IFHMITE R AARIMEM L« Connie; the Non-Executive Director is Mr. Lee Ding Yue

LT Fo HE MR B ST A o Joseph; the Independent Non-Executive Directors are Dr.
Sun Ping Hsu, Samson, Mr. Leung Wing Kong, Joseph and
Mr. Lam Ka Wai, Graham.

HEEEA By order of the Board

it CECIL CHAO

HITERE Executive Chairman

EHk —_E——FNA=-+=H Hong Kong, 22 September 2011
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

CHAO Sze Tsung Cecil - Executive Chairman

Aged 75, is the founder and Executive Chairman of the
Group since 1988. Dr. Chao obtained a Bachelor of
architecture degree, with honours, from The University
of Durham, England and subsequently worked in the
field of property, investment, finance and architectural
design for over forty years. He has also worked for Hong
Kong Government Building Department and Architectural
Office and elected as director of Hong Kong Real Estate
Developers’ Association for consecutive 30 years. He is a
Hong Kong registered architect and a member of the Royal
Institute of British Architect and has obtained Honorary
Doctor Degree (Ph. D.) from the U.S. Morrison University.
Dr. Chao is also awarded 2004’s World Outstanding
Chinese and is the Chairman and beneficial owner of Yan
Yin Company Limited and Szehope Securities Company
Limited which are the controlling shareholders of the
Group. Dr. Chao is also director of the subsidiaries of the
Group and an Independent Non-Executive Director of ENM
Holdings Limited, a Mainboard listed company on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

LEUNG Wing Kong Joseph

Mr. Leung, aged 65, is currently a governor of the board
of Chinachem Charitable Foundation Limited, and an
executive director, the chairman of investment and
treasury committee and a member of executive committee
of Chinachem Group. Mr. Leung has over 40 years of
experience in finance and management in property
development. Mr. Leung is also the Chairman and the
Acting Chief Executive Officer of ENM Holdings Limited,
a company whose shares are listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the chairman
of Genovate Biotechnology Company Limited, a company
whose shares are listed on the Emerging Stock Market in
Taiwan, and a supervisor of Yang Ming Marine Transport
Corporation, a company whose shares are listed on Taiwan
Stock Exchange Corporation. Mr. Leung is a Vice President
and a member of the executive committee of The Real Estate
Developers Association of Hong Kong and a fellow of the
Hong Kong Institute of Real Estate Administration.
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LAM Ka Wai, Graham

Mr. Lam, aged 43, graduated from the University of
Southampton, England with a Bachelor of Science degree
in Accounting and Statistics. He is a member of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a member
of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr. Lam is currently the Managing Director and Head of
Corporate Finance of an investment bank and has around
17 years experience in investment banking as well as
around 4 years experience in accounting and auditing.
He is also the independent non-executive director of
Applied Development Holdings Limited (stock code: 519),
China Fortune Financial Group Limited (formerly known
as China Fortune Group Limited) (stock code: 290), Nan
Nan Resources Enterprise Limited (formerly known as
International Resources Enterprises Limited) (stock code:
1229), Pearl Oriental Innovation Limited (stock code: 632),
and Value Convergence Holdings Limited (stock code:821),
companies listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited; and China Railway Logistics Limited
(stock code: 8089) and Trasy Gold Ex Limited (stock code:
8063), companies listed on The Growth Enterprise Market of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. In addition, Mr.
Lam was the independent non-executive director of China
Oriental Culture Group Limited (formerly known as ZZNode
Technologies Company Limited) (stock code: 2371), a
company listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited, from 29 January 2008 to 5 October
2010 and Finet Group Limited (stock code: 8317) and Hao
Wen Holdings Limited (stock code: 8019), companies listed
on The Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited, from 5 August 2009 to 24 January 2011
and from 17 November 2010 to 16 May 2011, respectively.
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SUN Ping Hsu Samson
Dr. Sun, M.B.E., J.P., aged 86, is currently the Chairman

of the Sun International Group of Companies. He is also
holding independent non-executive directorship in two
other companies listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, namely Oriental Watch
Holdings Limited and National Electronics Holdings
Limited. He was the Deputy Chairman and a Director of
Inchcape Hong Kong Ltd. and its predecessor Gilman &
Co. Ltd. from 1967 to his retirement in 1985. Dr. Sun has
over 50 years experience in marketing, distribution and
manufacturing of wrist watches, and 20 years in marketing
and distribution of consumer products and electronic goods.
He has been a pioneer in developing trade with China
since 1979, and continued to be active in both trading and

manufacturing in China.

Dr.

in many voluntary community services and charitable

Sun has a long service record in leader’s capacity

organizations, including Tung Wah Group of Hospitals, the

Community Chest and Scout Association of Hong Kong.

LEE Ding Yue Joseph
Mr.

Electronics Industries Limited and holds many directorships

Lee, aged 49, is currently the Director of Universal

in companies in Hong Kong and overseas. He earned his
Bachelor degree in Business Management & Economics
from Sophia University Tokyo in 1984. A manufacturing &
property investment veteran with 23 years of experience,
Mr. Lee started his career working for Kyocera Corporation
Japan and returned to Hong Kong in late 1987 to head the
photographic manufacturing equipment business through
the period of conventional film technologies to digital
imaging technologies. Mr. Lee possessed a sound knowledge
in industrial know-how in China and sound experience in

developing distribution network internationally.
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YUNG, Philip
Mr.

2005. Mr. Yung has more than 20 years experience in the

Yung, aged 53, has joined our Group since June,

Accounting industry. He has worked in Listed Property
Developers in Hong Kong for more than 18 years. Mr. Yung
is currently a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a Fellow Member
of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
in the United Kingdom and holding a Master Degree in
Business Administration. Mr. Yung is also a director of the

subsidiaries of the Company.

HO Sau Fun Connie

Miss Ho, aged 44, was appointed as a Director of the
Company since 1996. She is an associate member of The
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and of The
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators of U.K.
She has been working in the company secretarial field for
over 23 years. Miss Ho is also a director of the subsidiaries

of the Company.

CHAO, Howard
Mr. Chao, aged 27, is the elder son of Dr. Cecil Chao, the

Group Executive Chairman and the controlling shareholder
of the Company and is the brother of Miss Gigi Chao, the
executive director of the Company. Mr. Chao has joined
the Group as Executive Manager since January, 2006 and
Executive Director of the Company since 1 December
2006. Mr. Chao holds a Bachelor of Arts in Management
of Business Administration from California State University,
Mr. Chao is

the in-charge of the marketing, sales and leasing and

Fullerton of United States of America.

property management of the Group properties, and of the

development projects in Mainlard China.
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CHAO, Gigi

Miss Chao, aged 33, is the eldest daughter of Dr. Cecil
Chao, the Group Executive Chairman and the controlling
shareholder of the Company and is the elder sister of Mr
Howard Chao, the Executive Director of the Company, She
graduated from the University of Manchester, Manchester
School of Architecture, England with a Bachelor of Arts in
Architecture with Honours. Subsequently, she has worked
with prominent British Architect and Urban Designer Sir
Terry Farrell for a number of years, and also managed
investments in Marketing and Retail services for luxury

products in Hong Kong and China.

Miss Chao has always been a passionate member of
the community and regularly contributes to charitable
organisations. She is an Honorary Specialist Officer of
the Hong Kong Air Cadets Corp, and a Sub-Committee
Chairman of The Hong Kong Aviation Club.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

CHAO Sze Tsung Cecil

CHAO Gigi

CHAO Howard

YUNG Philip

HO Sau Fun Connie

Non-Executive Director

LEE Ding Yue Joseph

Independent Non-Executive Directors
LEUNG Wing Kong Joseph

LAM Ka Wai Graham

SUN Ping Hsu Samson

AUDIT COMMITTEE
LEUNG Wing Kong Joseph
LAM Ka Wai Graham
SUN Ping Hsu Samson

COMPANY SECRETARY

Al 55 %5 HO Sau Fun Connie
=R REGISTERED OFFICE
BB 30th — 35th Floor

EiF Cheuk Nang Plaza

& e 55 B2505% 250 Hennessy Road
HRES Wanchai

30-35% Hong Kong

B Em AUDITORS
BAEVERREAMEFMAERAA BDO Limited
EEMEGETRD Certified Public Accountants
BB 25th Floor, Wing On Centre
TR 111 Connaught Road Central
K258 Hong Kong
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AR 1T BANKERS
58 Hong Kong
BITIRTT (FE) AR QA Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
R iRITERA A The Bank of East Asia, Limited
BARTERAF Hang Seng Bank Limited
FF R EERTT Nanyang Commercial Bank Limited
RBRITRDEBERABEBEDTT The Bank of Communications, Limited Hong Kong Branch
ERRT(FE)BRAF DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
= Overseas
BERITARAF Hong Leong Bank Berhad
e SOLICITORS
RERIEREMEBA Vincent T.K. Cheung, Yap & Co.
A FEAERDIT Ho & Ip Solicitors
AR AT Woo Kwan Lee & Lo
RITBFETE SHARE REGISTRARS & TRANSFER OFFICE
BEEPREHFELBRAA Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
BEREERERNBER1835 46th Floor
aMF L4618 Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong
& >R 5 Fr LISTING EXCHANGE
BERBMERXSHPAAR AT The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
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RESULTS

Turnover for the year ended 30 June 2011 (the “Year”)
amounted to HK$40,473,000 (Year ended 30 June 2010:
HK$38,790,000), a 4.3% increase over the same period last
year. It was mainly due to the increase in turnover from
rental income.

For property leasing, the Year recorded an increase of
3.4% in rental income as compared with the corresponding
year in 2010, amounting HK$37,781,000 (2010:
HK$36,524,000).

Gross profit for the Year amounted to HK$25,471,000, a
4.3% increase as compared with the same period last year.

Other income recorded a decrease of 73.9% to
HK$26,511,000 when compared with last year. The
other income for the Year were mainly attributed to
exchange gain from overseas investment, gain on
disposal of listed securities and dividend income from
listed securities. The amount for previous year mainly
represent written back of provision for late payment
charges of HK$41,422,000 and the impairment loss on
other receivables of HK$31,624,000 relating to the land
acquisition in Hangzhou. Gain on disposal of investment
properties amounting to HK$10,125,000 represents the gain
arose from the disposal of ten units in Villa Cecil Phase
Il. Gain on fair value adjustment on financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss amounted to HK$2,962,000
(2010: HK$2,371,000). Gain on fair value adjustment on
investment properties amounted to HK$268,371,000 (2010:
HK$199,952,000). Administrative expenses decreased by
9.9% to HK$26,167,000 as compared with the same period
last year. No other operating expenses for the Year (2010:
HK$304,000). Finance costs recorded a decrease of 14.5%
to HK$11,908,000 as compared with the same period last
year.

Profit attributable to owners of the Company for the Year
was HK$295,234,000 (2010: HK$232,722,000). Basic
earnings per share was HK$0.83 (2010: HK$0.78) and fully
diluted earnings per share was HK$0.82 (2010: HK$0.73).
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Final dividend of HK4 cents for the year ended 30 June
2010 (2009: Nil) and an interim dividend of HK4 cents
per share for the half year ended 31 December 2010 (half
year ended 31 December 2009: HK3 cents). Total dividend
of HK8 cents per share were paid during the Year. Scrip
dividend alternative was offered to shareholders in respect
of 30 June 2010 final dividend and 31 December 2010
interim dividend. Bonus warrants on the basis of one 2011
December warrants for every twenty shares held for the year
ended 30 June 2010 was issued during the Year.

Final dividend of HK4.5 cents (2010: HK4 cents) and interim
dividend of HK4 cents for the Year (2010: HK3 cents). Scrip
dividend alternative was offered to shareholders in respect
of 30 June 2011 final dividend.

TOTAL EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS

OF THE COMPANY

As at 30 June 2011, the Group’s total equity attributable
to owners of the Company amounted to approximately
HK$3,591,385,000 (30 June 2010: HK$3,207,484,000 as
restated), an increase of HK$383,901,000 or 12% when
compared with 30 June 2010. With the total number of
ordinary shares in issue of 402,306,393 as at 30 June 2011
(2010: 346,667,517 shares), the total equity attributable to
owners of the Company per share was HK$8.93, a decrease
of 3.5% over 30 June 2010: HK$9.25. The decrease in total
equity attributable to owners of the Company per share was
mainly attributable to the increase in number of ordinary
share but partly offset by increase in fair value of investment
properties and listed securities investment of the Group
during the Year.

Included in the total equity attributable to owners of the
Company is deferred tax liabilities of HK$388,970,000
on fair value gains on investment properties and property,
plant and equipment. If the deferred tax liabilities are
excluded, the total equity attributable to equity holders of
the Company will become HK$3,980,355,000 or HK$9.89
per share.
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During the Year, the Group had bought and sold listed
securities investment. Other than the existing projects and
those disclosed in the annual report, the Group did not
have any confirmed future plans for material investment or
acquiring capital assets.

SECURITIES INVESTMENT

As at 30 June 2011, the fair value of investment in
listed securities was HK$102,210,000. During the Year,
the portfolio was decreased by a net acquisition of
HK$1,704,000 and gain in fair value of HK$2,962,000.
The listed securities investments of HK$102,210,000 as
at 30 June 2011 representing 1.9% (30 June 2010: 1.9%)
of the total assets, which formed part of the Group’s cash
management activities.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group has established adequate risk management
procedures that enable it to identify, measure, monitor
and control the various types of risk it faces. This is
supplemented by active management involvement and
effective internal controls in the best interests of the Group.

EQUITY

The number of issued ordinary shares as at 30 June 2011
and 30 June 2010 were 402,306,393 and 346,667,517
respectively.

DEBT AND GEARING

As at 30 June 2011, the Group’s bank and other
borrowings amounted to HK$973,351,000 (30 June 2010:
HK$1,376,791,000). Cash and bank balances amounted to
HK$95,615,000 (30 June 2010: HK$101,251,000) and net
borrowing amounted to HK$877,736,000 (30 June 2010:
HK$1,275,540,000).

Total debts to equity ratio was 26.7% (30 June 2010: 42.4%)
and net debt to equity ratio was 24.1% (30 June 2010:
39.3%).

ANNUAL RePoRrT 2011 F#R

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED = (%) BRAR 32



CER R R BRI

Management Discussion And Analysis

MEBIMFEBEBRAN L TR ETEHR
FALE#EE —HHEELSIRTER

W52 e

RERE R AEBNRITREMEESL
BITEE - RAKEBERNRITREMEELR
#1973,351,000/8 TH - IRIBERERKE
FREFIK32.8% ~ 38.5% * 28.7%5 Bl AR
—FAN —EMFARME=FRNEE -
AEBNRITRAMEEFZL2BESR
FTRZEFE o RFELEBFRIEL EF o

BEEEREH

R-ZZE——FXAZ=Z1+H AEEEEY
¥ HEVE -UE KESEAXRBRLET
& 7 W BRE1E 9 5l 52,496,079,000/%8 JT
(ZZ2—ZFFA=+1+H":2,556,997,000
AIT) ~ 366,423,000 L (ZE—FFXH
=+ H :378,745,000/% Jt) * 80,000,000
BT (ZE—FFXA=1H :80,000,000
#or) 80,725,000 T (ZFE—ZFF /XA
=+ H :68,864,0008 ) EEEFS AL
EES—MRRITER -

MBERFMEXH
MBEEBEBRABRRTEREMER T8 -
EERAEBRIE AXFEERLZ
M B &11,041,000%8 7T - T EFE A&
6,742,000/ 7T - NEE 2 M B HREK
11,908,000/ 7T, ¥ 2 £F [A) BR 8% 15 00 K| B 2
113,922,000/ 7T &k 2 14.5%. 5] B F < &9
BMOEZERRFRBRITEFORD - REIE
FEAZFEFHRNNERBIO% (ZZE—FF
1.1%) * THABF B B IAFIIEE 4%
B

The decrease in the total debt to equity ratio and the
decrease in net debt to equity ratio were mainly due to
decrease in bank borrowing during the Year resulted from

disposal of ten units in Villa Cecil Phase II.

At the reporting date, the Group’s bank and other
borrowings were denominated in Hong Kong dollars. Of the
Group’s total bank and other borrowings HK$973,351,000,
32.8%, 38.5% and 28.7% were repayable within 1 year,
1 to 2 years and 3 to 5 years respectively by reference
to the repayment schedule of the loan agreement. The
Group’s bank and other borrowings carried interest rates by
reference to HIBOR. No hedging for interest rate subsisted at
the end of the Year.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 30 June 2011, the Group’s investment properties,
properties for sales, property, plant and equipment and
listed securities with their respective carrying value of
HK$2,496,079,000 (30 June 2010: HK$2,556,997,000),
HK$366,423,000 (30 June 2010: HK$378,745,000),
HK$80,000,000 (30 June 2010: HK$80,000,000) and
HK$80,725,000 (2010: HK$68,864,000) were pledged to

secure general banking facilities of the Group.

FINANCIAL AND INTEREST EXPENSES

Financial costs included interest expenses on bank
and other loans, arrangement, facility and commitment
fee expenses. Interest capitalized for the Year was
HK$11,041,000 as compared to HK$6,742,000 for the
last year. Interest expenses for the Year amounted to
HK$11,908,000, representing 14.5% decrease over the
interest expenses of HK$13,922,000 recorded for the same
period last year. The decrease in interest expense was
mainly due to decrease in bank borrowing during the Year.
The average interest rate over the year under review was
1.0% (2010: 1.1%) which was expressed as a percentage of

total interest expenses over the average total borrowing.
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REMUNERATION POLICIES AND SHARE
OPTION SCHEME

During the year under review, the Group employed a total
of 47 (Year ended 30 June 2010: 43) staff.

Employees were remunerated on the basis of their
performance, experience and prevailing industry practice.
Remuneration packages comprised salary, year end double
pay and year end discretionary bonus based on market
conditions and individual performance. The Executive
Directors continued to review employees’ contributions and
to provide them with necessary incentives and flexibility for
their better commitment and performance. No share option
scheme was adopted for the Year.

HONG KONG

During the Year, the Government has introducing a series of
market-cooling moves including but not limited to Special
Stamp Duty for sale of property within two years of its
acquisition, tightening of mortgage rules, etc. In addition,
the turnaround of financial market and economic of the
European and American market during the second and the
third quarter of 2011 have adverse effect to the properties
market.

1. One Kowloon Peak

The foundation work of Phase Il has commenced and
will be completed by mid-2012. The marketing of the
whole project will be started when the superstructure
work of Phase Il almost completed.

2. Villa Cecil Phase Il

Agreement for Sale and Purchase were signed in
January and February 2011 and completion took
place in March and April 2011. A gain on disposal of
approximately HK$10 million was recognised in the
accounts for the Year.

3. Villa Cecil Phase 111

The superstructure of Block Il has completed and
renovation work is almost completed. Leasing of the
property will be commenced shortly.

4. New Villa Cecil

Superstructure work for Phase | is in progress and
anticipated to obtain Occupation Permit in early 2012.
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CHINA

During the Year, the China Government has tightened the
monetary control on property market has slightly slow down
the property market.

1. Cheuk Nang Garden

The Group’s development project was delayed by
the main contractor. In April 2011, the Shenzhen
Intermediate People’s Court (RYITTHBRAERZERT) has
made a judgement on the appeal on claim against
the main contractor on damages and termination of
the contract. The court retained the judgement of
Shenzhen Baoan People’s Court (RIITEZ @ ARE
Bt). Procedure has been carried out for site handover
and construction work will be resumed after that. The
new main contractor will be awarded shortly.

2. Cheuk Nang e Riverside

Site investigation has been carried out and detail
working drawings are completed. Contract for site
formation and foundation will be award by end of
2011.

MACAU

The building plan for development project at Estrada de
Seac Pai Van, Coloane has been approved. Detail drawing
for the project is under preparation at the reporting date.

MALAYSIA

Phase | named “Parkview”. The remaining unsold units
have been operated as service apartment with satisfactory
income. Development Order for Phase Il named “Central
Plaza” has been approved by the local authority and the
Building Plan (structural and detail) of 2 blocks of buildings
are also approved. Tender for foundation and piling work
will be awarded shortly.
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PROPERTY VALUATION

A property valuation has been carried out by Messrs.
K.T. Liu Surveyors Limited, Roma Appraisals Limited
and Henry Butcher Malaysia Sdn Bhd in respect of the
Group’s investment properties and certain property, plant
and equipment as at 30 June 2011 and that valuation
was used in preparing 2011 financial statements. The
Group’s investment properties and investment properties
under development were valued at HK$2,258,590,000
and HK$1,251,738,000 respectively making the total
HK$3,510,328,000 (2010: investment properties and
investment properties under development were valued at
HK$1,749,100,000 and HK$1,809,120,000 making the total
HK$3,558,220,000). The aggregate increase in fair value
of approximately HK$268,371,000 was credited to the
income statement for the Year. The Group land and building
held for own use carried at fair value were valued at
HK$80,000,000 (2010: HK$80,000,000). No changes in fair
value for the Year. Properties under development for sale
of the Group were stated at lower of cost or net realisable
value in the financial statements.

POLICY AND OUTLOOK

To diversify its investment risk, the Group will continue its
policy by diversifying its investment in China, Hong Kong,
Macau and Malaysia.

Following the recent decline in global economic especially
European and American market, the Group is to face an
unstable economic environment but expecting a good future
prospect in long run.
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The Company is committead to maintain a high standard
of corporate governance at all times. The Board believes
that good corporate governance helps the Company
safeguard the interests of its equity holders and improve the
performance of the Group. During the year under review,
the Company had complied with all the applicable code
provisions of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”) for the year ended 30 June 2011 except

the following deviations:—

1. Code Provision A.4.1

Under the code provision A.4.1 of the Code, non-
executive directors should be appointed for a specific
term and subject to re-election. However, all the
independent non-executive directors are not appointed
for specific terms but are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting
of the Company in accordance with the provision of the
Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association.
The Company considers that sufficient measures have
been taken to ensure that the Company’s corporate
governance practices are no less exacting than those in
the Code.

2 Code Provision A.2.1

Under the code provision A.2.1 of the Code, the role
of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer should be
separated and should not be performed by the same
individual. The division of responsibilities between the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer should be

clearly established and set out in writing.

The Company currently cannot comply with the
requirement of the Listing Rules to separate the role of
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer. We are, through
different channels, still looking for a suitable person
to act as Chief Executive Officer and with a hope to

comply with the requirement in the next financial year.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible to lead and control the business
operations of the Group. It formulates strategic directions,
oversees the operations and monitors the financial
performance of the Group. The management manages the
business of the Group within the delegated power and

authority by the Board.

The Board is chaired by Dr. Chao Sze Tsung Cecil (the
“Chairman”). The Board comprises three Independent Non-
Executive Directors, one Non-Executive Directors and Five
Executive Directors. The names, biographical details of the
directors are set out in the “Profiles of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 23 to 27 to the annual report. All
Independent Non-Executive Directors and Non-Executive
Directors bring a variety of experience and expertise to
the Company. The Board includes a balanced composition
of executive and non-executive directors (including
independent non-executive directors) so that there is an
independent element on the Board which can effectively
exercise independent judgment, and that non-executive
directors should be of sufficient caliber and number for
their views to carry weight. The Independent Non-executive
Directors review the financial information and operational

performance of the Company on a regular basis.

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive directors an annual written confirmation
of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 to the Listing
Rules. The Company considers all of the independent non-
executive directors are independent. The independent non-
executive directors are explicitly identified in all corporate

communications.
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EE2eZIRMEEZESL - HHIAESTZ The Board has appointed two Board Committees, namely

EeglhTMEEE EEFEeNELTEEKE Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee. The

BEHAN T X MEBEEEAFRFP TR - composition of the Board and the Board Committees are set
out below and their respective responsibilities are discussed
in this report.

REBFEETGZAKREBERBE The types of decisions which are reserved to be taken by the

Board include:—
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matters relating to conflict of interest for a substantial
shareholder or a director of the Company;

formulation of the Company’s policies relating to the
overall strategic direction and strategic plans, key
business and financial objectives, dividend policy
or entering into contract involving significant capital
acquisition or expenditure.

financial controls, compliance and risk management
for the approval of annual operating and capital
expenditure budgets, the Company’s financial
statements, published reports, price-sensitive
announcements and other disclosure required under the
Listing Rules or other statutory requirements.

changes to the Company’s capital structure, including
reductions of share capital, share buy-backs or issue of
new securities;

major appointments or removal to the Board, the Chief
Executive Officer, the Company’s chief financial officer,
company secretary and external auditors.

changes to the terms of reference or membership of any
committee of the Board and the authority delegated to
the Chief Executive Officer and the senior management;

matters that exceed the authorities of the senior
management; and

the adoption, review and approval of changes of
the Corporate Governance Practical Manual of
the Company, the Code of Ethics and Securities
Transactions entered into by the directors and other
specified senior management of the Group, group
legal policy (if any) and group system control and risk
management policy.
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FRCEEELRTIOREE (AP 82K During the year, 19 board meetings were held (inclusive of

PREEFSE) SEZFHMEEFBWO L - 2 full board meetings) and the individual attendance of each
director is set out below:—

* HEERIERLELTREFSH

AY

HEEESEERRE

Number of Board HE =
EEps Name of Director Meetings attended Attendance rate
i EE L Chao Sze Tsung Cecil 19 100
HZ (k1) Chao Gigi (Note 1) 3 100
it = Chao Howard 19 100
5 IR £ Yung Philip 19 100
fa] 75 25 Ho Sau Fun Connie 19 100
F &3 (7E2) Lee Ding Yue Joseph (Note 2) 1 50
RET (MI5E3) Sun Ping Hsu Samson (Note 3) 3 100
MR B (M 7E3) Leung Wing Kong Joseph (Note 3) 3 100
FREE L (MFE3) Lam Ka Wai Graham (Note 3) 3 100
Bt - Notes:
1. R-DZFE——FPWH+HEZTAHBEE 4 1. Appointed as director on 7 April 2011 and the attendance is

RS HEFE calculated starting from the appointment date

2. HEERFEAHEZHEEEDG 2. The attendance rate is calculated based on his attendance at

full bond meetings

3. HERAFEHRHHELEEEFSHERE T 3. The attendance rate is calculated based on their attendance
B ITEED at full board meetings and the independent non-executive

directors meetings

BIEARNFAMEIZMEA) - EEAAFE S - The Directors may attend meetings in person, by phone
FilEEAk EMEFEATAEFE®sE o or through other means of electronic communication in

accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.

REXEREEMEL TR HIENXE At least 14 days formal notice would be given before each
o BIERNNGEHMEZME] » EE0]E regular meeting. According to the Company’s Articles of
SEMEZ B ZEP RN &Z A8l Association, a Director may waive notice of any meeting

FEREL - and any such waiver may be prospective or retrospective.

an
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/
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Directors have access to the Company Secretary who is
responsible to the Board for ensuring that Board procedures,

and all applicable rules and regulations, are followed.

The Company Secretary prepares written resolutions
or minutes and keeps records of matters discussed and
decisions resolved at all Board and Board Committee

meetings.

The Board and Board Committee minutes/resolutions are
sent to all Directors/Board Committee members within a
reasonable time after each Board and Board Committee
meeting and are available for inspection by Directors/Board

Committee members.

Minutes record in sufficient detail the matters considered by
the Board/Board Committees and decisions reached.

The Directors are given an opportunity to comment on draft
Board minutes. Final version of Board minutes is placed on

record within a reasonable time after the Board meeting.

Directors have been advised that the Company Secretary
can arrange independent professional advice at the
expense of the Company should such advice be considered

necessary by any Director.

Important matters are usually dealt with by way of written
resolutions so that all Directors (including Independent
Non-executive Directors) can note and comment, as

appropriate, the matters before approval is granted.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of financial statements of the Group which
give a true and fair view, and are prepared in accordance
with the relevant statutory requirements and applicable
accounting standards in force, and are published in a timely
manner. The directors of the Company are also responsible
for selecting and applying on a consistent basis suitable
accounting policies and ensuring timely adoption of Hong
Kong Accounting Standards and Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards.
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The directors of the Company acknowledge their
responsibility for preparing the financial statements of the
Company and report that the Company has announced its
annual and interim results in a timely manner after the end

of the relevant period, as laid down in the Listing Rules.

The Board members have no financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationships with each other save
that Mr. Howard Chao and Miss Gigi Chao are the children
of the Chairman. When the Board considers any proposal or
transaction in which a Director has a conflict of interest, he

declares his interest and is required to abstain from voting.

Given the composition of the Board and the skills,
knowledge and expertise that each Director brings to bear in
its deliberations, the Board believes that it is appropriately
structured to provide sufficient checks and balances to
protect the interests of the Group and the shareholders.
The Board will review its composition regularly to ensure
that it has the appropriate balance of expertise, skills and
experience to continue to effectively oversee the business of

the Company.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
The Company has identified the roles of Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer under the Listing Rules and
understood that the two positions cannot be performed by
the same individual to ensure that there is a clear division
of responsibilities at the board level to entail a balance of

power and authority.
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The Chairman is responsible for leadship of the Board,
for ensuring that the Board functions effectively, and
for ensuring communication of the views of the Board
to the public. In performing this role, the Chairman’s
responsibilities include chairing meetings of the Board;
ensuring the board meetings receive accurate, complete,
timely and clear information concerning affairs of the
Company; ensuring constructive relations between
executive and non-executive directors; formulating for
discussion and decision, questions which have been moved
for the consideration of the Board; ensuring that all directors
are properly briefed on issues arising at board meetings;
acting as liaison between the Board and management;
in consultation with the Chief Executive Officer and the
company secretary or his/her designated delegates, drawing
up and approving the agenda for each board meeting taking
into account, where appropriate, any matters proposed
by the other directors for inclusion in the agenda; and at
least annually hold meetings with non-executive directors
(including independent non-executive directors) without the

presence of the executive directors.

The Chief Executive Officer is primarily responsible for
recommending policy and strategic directions for Board
approval, implementing the strategies and policies adopted
by the Board and conducting the day-to-day operation of the
Company.

The Company currently cannot comply with the requirement
of the Listing Rules to separate the role of Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer. We are, through different channels,
still looking for a suitable person to act as Chief Executive
Officer and with a hope to comply with the requirement in

the next financial year.
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TERMS OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Code provision A.4.1 of the Code requires that non-
executive directors should be appointed for a specific term
and should be subject to re-election. The independent non-
executive directors of the Company are not appointed for
specific terms but are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at least once every three years in accordance
with the provision of the Company’s Articles of Association.
As such, the Company considers that sufficient measures
have been taken to serve the purpose of this code provision.
Three out of the four non-executive directors have
remunerated at HK$20,000 per year and the remaining has
remunerated at HK$48,000 per year.

APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND
REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association,
newly appointed Directors are required to offer themselves
for re-election at the next following general meeting (in the
case of filling a casual vacancy) or at the next following
annual general meeting (in the case of an addition to the

Board) following their appointment.

The Board as a whole is responsible for the appointment
of new Directors and Directors’ nomination for re-election
by shareholders at the general meeting of the Company.
Under the Company’s Articles of Association, the Board may
from time to time appoint a Director either to fill a casual
vacancy or as an addition to the Board. Any such new
Director shall hold office until the next following general
meeting of the Company (in the case of filling a casual
vacancy) or until the next following annual general meeting
of the Company (in the case of an addition to the Board)
and shall then be eligible for re-election at the same general

meeting.
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All Directors (including Non-executive Directors) are
subject to retirement by rotation once every three years and
are subject to re-election in accordance with the Company’s

Articles of Association.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr. Leung Wing
Kong Joseph and the members are Dr. Sun Ping Hsu Samson
and Mr. Lam Ka Wai Graham, all of them are Independent

Non-Executive Directors.

The Remuneration Committee is primary responsible for
formulating and making recommendation to the Board on
the Group’s policy and structuring the remuneration of the
directors of the Company and the senior management of the
Group. No Directors or any of his associates is involved in
deciding his own remuneration. The remuneration package
of the Directors includes salary, bonus and pension. The
remuneration level is determined by reference to the
expertise, performance and experience possessed by each

Director.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once
a year or as requested by the director responsible for

resources function.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee has reviewed
and approved the remuneration package in relation to the
appointment of Miss Chao Gigi as executive director of the

Company.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-
executive directors, namely Dr. Sun Ping Hsu Samson, Mr.
Leung Wing Kong Joseph and Mr. Lam Ka Wai Graham.
The latter is also the chairman of the Audit Committee. The
composition and members of the Audit Committee complies
with the requirements under Rule 3.21 to the Listing Rules.

The main function of the Audit Committee is to assist
the Board to oversee the financial report system, risk
management and internal control procedures and the
external audit functions. The Audit Committee annually
assesses the appointment of the external auditor, taking into
account the quality and rigor of the audit, the quality of the
auditors service provided, the audit firm’s quality control
procedures, relationships between the external auditors and
the Company and the independence of the external auditors.

During the year, two Audit Committee meetings were
held in October 2010 and February 2011. The individual

BB - attendance of each member is set out below:
HESBXE
Number of HER
REEB Name of Member meetings attended Attendance rate
HRIE Sun Ping Hsu Samson 2 100%
RET Leung Wing Kong Joseph 100%
N Lam Ka Wai Graham 2 100%

EHZBEeCENARRKA Z S RA
MIRSR - 3 6 E TR T A A 9 SRR I - B RS
REFEARZBEEE - REEARF
MHEBERITEBREE  BEHREERES
T-TF+ A=t —HRHXERER
BHE-_Z——FRNA=ZTHZEEZYH
BRERETEFENEHNZXFES -

MERKATFZARAKEVZEAF
AIEAEBARKLERNBZATERARY
BEF—FA EERARFBRIFLZESEELRE -

The Audit Committee has reviewed the accounting
procedure and policies adopted by the Company and
discussed with management the internal controls and
financial reporting matters. To monitor the integrity of the
financial statements of the Company, the Audit Committee
has reviewed the interim report for the period ended 31
December, 2010, the audited financial statements for the
year ended 30 June, 2011 before their submission to the
Board.

No member of the Audit Committee is a former partner of
the existing auditing firm of the Company during the one
year after he/she ceases to be a partner of the auditing firm.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has not set up a Nomination Committee yet.
According to the Articles of Association of the Company,
the Board has the power from time to time and at any
time to appoint any person as a Director either to fill a
casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board. The current
nomination procedures for appointment of new directors
would normally take into consideration of the candidate’s
past experience, qualifications and any other factors,
if any, which are relevant to the Company’s business.
Then, short listed candidates with their biographies for
directorship would be brought to the Board before meeting

for consideration as soon as it is practicable.

AUDITORS” REMUNERATION

During the year, the fees paid or payable to external
auditors of the Company BDO Limited were approximately
HK$420,000 for statutory audit services rendered to the
Group.

The Group also appointed other external auditors for the
statutory audit purposes of certain overseas subsidiaries
and their remuneration for audit services rendered was
approximately HK$27,000.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Group’s system of internal control includes a defined
management structure with limits of authority, and is
designed to help the Group achieve its business objectives,
safeguard its assets against unauthorized use or disposition,
ensure the maintenance of proper accounting records for
the provision of reliable financial information for internal
use or for publication, and ensure compliance with relevant
laws and regulations. The system is designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss, and to manage rather than eliminate
risks of failure in the Group’s operational systems and in the

achievement of the Group’s business objectives.
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The Board recognises that constant changes taking place in
the business environment which require periodic reviews
of the system of internal controls. Well-managed internal
controls enable effective and efficient operations, ensure the
reliability of internal and external reporting and assist in the

compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

For the year under review, BDO Limited has carried out
a review on the Company’s internal control manual.
A summary of the findings arising from this review
After

consideration and discussion by members of the Board, the

was submitted to the Board in September 2011.

Board has accepted all the comments from BDO Limited
and will finish the revision of the internal control manual
shortly. The Board will consistently review the system of

internal controls to ensure its effectiveness.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the
preparation of the financial statements of the Company
and ensure that they are prepared in accordance with
statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards.
The Directors also ensure the timely publication of such

financial statements.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company with
regard to their reporting responsibilities on the Company’s
financial statements is set out in the Report of the Auditor on

pages 60 to 62.

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge,
information and belief, having made all reasonable
enquiries, they are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going

concern.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTION

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules for
securities transactions by directors of the Company as
its own code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions effective from 26 March 2006. A copy of the
Model Code has been sent to each Director of the Company.
Also, formal written notices were sent to the Directors one
month before the date of the Board meeting to approve the
Company’s half-year result and two months notice for the
annual result, as a reminder that the Directors cannot deal
in the securities and derivatives of the Company until after

such results have been published.

Under the Model Code, Directors of the Company are
required to notify the Chairman and receive a dated written
acknowledgement before dealing in the securities and
derivatives of the Company and, in the case of the Chairman
himself, he must notify the Board and receive a dated
written acknowledgement before any dealing.

Having made specific enquiries, all Directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code for the year end 30
June 2011 except Dr. Chao Sze Tsung Cecil has purchased
1,934,000 Company’s shares during the period from 19
January to 1 February 2011.

Directors’ interests as at 30 June 2011 in the shares of the
Company and its subsidiaries (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance) are set out on

pages 56 to 57.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company continues to enhance relationship and
communication with its investors. Detailed information
about the Company’s performance and activities is
provided in the annual report and the interim report which
are sent to shareholders. The Company maintains close
communications with investors analysts, fund managers
and the media by individual interviews and meetings. The
Group also responds to requests for information and queries
from the investors in an informative and timely manner.
The Board also welcomes the views of shareholders on
matters affecting the Group and encourages them to attend
shareholders’” meetings to communicate any concerns they

might have with the Board or senior management directly.

The Company establishes different communication channels

with shareholders and investors, including

(i) printed copies of corporate communications
(including but not limited to annual reports,
interim reports, notices of meetings, circulars and
proxy forms) required under the Listing Rules,
and shareholders can choose (or are deemed to
have consented) to receive such documents using
electronic means through the Company’s website;

(i)  the annual general meeting provides a forum for

shareholders to raise comments and exchange views

with the Board;

(iii) updated and key information on the Group is

available on the website of the Company (www.

cheuknang.com.hk);

(iv) the Company’s website offers a communication
channel between the Company and its shareholders;
(v)  the Company’s Registrar deals with shareholders for

share registration and related matters; and
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(vi) the Company Secretary of the Company handles

enquiries from shareholders and investors generally.

The annual general meeting is used as an opportunity
to communicate with all shareholders. Shareholders are
encouraged to attend the annual general meetings for
which a notice would be served with at least 21 days
period. The Chairman and/or Directors are available to
answer questions on the Group’s business at the meetings.
At general meetings, separate resolutions are proposed on
each substantially separate issue such as the election of

individual directors and re-appointment of auditors.

Details of poll voting procedures and the rights of
shareholders to demand a poll are included in a circular to
shareholders accompanied the annual report. The circular
also includes relevant details on proposed resolutions, and

biographies of each candidates standing for re-election.

At the 2010 annual general meeting of the Company, the
Chairman of the meeting explained the detailed procedures
for conducting a poll, and answered questions from

shareholders.

The Chairman of the meeting exercised his power under
the Company’s Articles of Association to put each
resolution set out in the notice to be voted by way of a poll.
Representatives of the Share Registrar of the Company were
appointed as scrutineers to monitor and count the poll votes

cast at the 2010 annual general meeting.

Since the Company’s 2009 annual general meeting, all the
resolutions put to vote at the Company’s general meetings
were taken by poll. Poll results were posted on the websites

of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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The Directors submit to the shareholders their report
together with the audited financial statements for the year
ended 30 June 2010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The Company operates as an investment holding company.
Principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 19

to the financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by
business and geographical segments is set out in note 6 to

the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2011

are set out in the consolidated income statement on page
63.

An interim dividend of HK4 cents (2010: HK3 cents) per
share, totaling HK$15,777,000 was paid on 20 April 2011.

The Directors resolved to recommend the payment of a
final dividend of HK4.5 cents (2010: HK4 cents) per share
payable to those shareholders whose names appeared in
the register of members as at the close of business on 16
November 2011, which together with the interim dividend
of HK4 cents (2010: HK3 cents) per share, makes a total
distribution of HK8.5 cents (2010: HK7 cents) per share this

year.

After approval by the shareholders at the Annual General
Meeting, the final dividend will be paid on 14 December
2011.
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group

for the last five financial years is set out on page 2.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital are set out in note

28 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are
set out in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
set out on page 73 and for the Company on page 164 to the

financial statements.

Distributable reserves of the Company at 30 June 2011,
calculated under section 79B of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, amounted to HK$141,803,000 (2010:
HK$175,347,000).

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES AND PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in investment properties and
property plant and equipment of the Group are set out in

notes 15 and 16 to the financial statements respectively.

PROPERTIES
Details of the Group’s interest in properties are set out on
pages 188 to 192.
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BITER EXRHMEE BANK LOANS, OVERDRAFTS AND OTHER
BORROWINGS
AEBR-_ZT——FXA=+HZHETE The amounts of bank loans, overdrafts and other borrowings
RBTREMEENOT : of the Group at 30 June 2011 were as follows:
£H
Group
BT T
HK$’ 000
RITER Bank loans 952,480
RITEX Bank overdraft 1,511
EERHN Advances from a director 19,360
973,351
EEBDIT Repayment analysis:
RITERX Bank loans
— PR —%F — within one year 317,902
—TEE=F — in the second year 375,096
—EF=EFLF (BREEMF) — in the third to fifth years inclusive 259,482
952,480
RITHER Bank overdraft
— IR —%F — within one year 1,511
BEEBRX Advances from a director
— [ 5F & T H - no fixed repayment terms 19,360
973,351

KNEFABEEEENE AL AE26.7% (= The Group’s debt to equity ratio was approximately 26.7%
T 1 42.4%)  LASRTTE SR EM{E (2010: 42.4%) expressed as a percentage of bank loans and
EBRNEEEESRMBEETE - 889782 - 5 other borrowings over net assets of the Group. The ratio of
Y REEHREER B EEIEL X5 bank loans, overdrafts and advances from a director over the
P A97.8% (—ZFE—F4F :97%) + 0.2% (= Group’s financial debts is 97.8% (2010: 97%), 0.2% (2010:
T Q%) 2% (—Z—F4F :39%) o 0%) and 2% (2010: 3%) respectively.
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Most of the Group’s cash and bank balances, bank loans
and other borrowings were denominated in Ringgit
Malaysia, Renminbi and Hong Kong dollar as at 30 June
2011.

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this

report were:

Executive Directors

Dr. Chao Sze Tsung Cecil (Chairman)
Miss Chao Gigi

Mr. Chao Howard

Mr. Yung Philip

Ms. Ho Sau Fun Connie

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Lee Ding Yue Joseph

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Leung Wing Kong Joseph
Mr. Lam Ka Wai Graham

Dr. Sun Ping Hsu Samson

Miss Gigi Chao will retire in accordance with Article 94 of
the Company’s Articles of Association at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, offer herself for

re-election.

Dr. Chao Sze Tsung Cecil, Mr. Leung Wing Kong Joseph
and Ms. Ho Sau Fun Connie will retire at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, offer

themselves for re-election.
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None of the Directors has a service contract with the
Company which is not terminable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than

statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

At 30 June 2011, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and Chief Executive in the shares of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”),
as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies,

were as follows:

e [N
Name Equity
=R ERRER0.1ET

Chao Sze-Tsung Cecil

ZE-—F T+ ARREE
Ordinary Shares of
HK$0.1 each

1B A 25

Personal interest

18,879,5590%
019
18,879,559 Shares

L £

Corporate interests

265,550,722 %
0fn
265,550,722 Shares

2011 December O units 0 units
Warrants

A= L@ EAR0.1E T 1,977,603 % -
—E-—F T _ARRERE 92,00417 -

Lee Ding Yue Joseph Ordinary Shares of 1,977,603 Shares -
HK$0.1 each
2011 December 92,004 units -
Warrants
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Note: The shareholdings disclosed by Dr. Chao Sze-Tsung Cecil
under the heading “Corporate Interests” in the above
represents the shares held by Yan Yin Company Limited
and Szehope Securities Company Limited, substantial

shareholders of the Company.

The Company did not grant to the Directors, Chief Executive
or their associates any right to subscribe for shares in the

Company.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or their
associates had any interest or short position in the shares
of the Company or its subsidiaries as at 30 June 2011 that
was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities

Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies.

At no time during the year was the Company, any of its
subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries or its holding company
a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body

corporate.

INTEREST DISCLOSEABLE UNDER THE SFO
AND SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 30 June 2011, the register of interests in shares
maintained under Section 336 of the SFO shows that
the Company had not been notified of any substantial
shareholders’ interests, being 5% or more of the Company’s
issued share capital, other than those of the Directors and

Chief Executive as disclosed above.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s shares

during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

There are no contracts of significance in relation to
the Group’s business to which the Company, any of its
subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries or its holding company
was a party and in which a Director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at

the end of the year or at any time during the year.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Details of related party transactions are set out in note 30 to
the financial statements and in the above under Directors’

interests in contracts.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Group were entered into or existed during

the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
During the year, the five largest suppliers and the largest
supplier of the Group accounted for 78% and 37%

respectively of the Group’s total purchases.

During the year, the five largest customers and the largest
customer of the Group accounted for 17% and 7%

respectively of the Group’s total turnover.

Among the Group’s five largest suppliers, Cecil Chao
Design (Macau) Ltd., of which Dr. Chao Sze-Tsung Cecil is
a director and beneficial owner, contributed to 9% of the

Group’s total purchases.

Save as aforesaid, at 30 June 2011, none of the Directors,
their associates, or any shareholder (which to the knowledge
of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital) had any beneficial interests in the Group’s five

largest customers and suppliers.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details in respect of the Directors and
senior management of the Group are set out on pages 23 to
27.

STAFF
As at 30 June 2011,

remuneration packages are normally reviewed annually. The

the Group employed 47 staff. Staff

Group also provides other staff benefits, which include year
end double pay and contributions to defined contribution

retirement schemes.

AUDITOR

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended
30 June 2011 were audited by BDO Limited, who will retire
and a resolution to re-appoint BDO Limited as auditor of
the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual

general meeting.

Grant Thornton (“GTHK” now known as JBPB & Co.)
resigned as auditor of the Company on 13 January 2011.
BDO Limited were appointed as auditor of the Company on
13 January 2011 since then to fill the casual vacancy. The
reason for this change of auditors is due to the merger of
practices of GTHK with that of BDO Limited, the Hong Kong
member firm of the global BDO network.

On behalf of the Board
Cecil Sze-Tsung Chao

Executive Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 September 2011
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Tel : +852 2541 5041
Fax : +852 2815 2239

25" Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

www.bdo.com.hk Hong Kong
E5E : +852 2541 5041 EBTHEET1115E
f8H : +852 2815 2239 KZHN251E

www.bdo.com.hk

To the shareholders of Cheuk Nang (Holdings) Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Cheuk Nang (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) set out
on pages 63 to 187, which comprise the consolidated and
company statement of financial position as at 30 June 2011,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other

explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
presentation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

error.
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ZERBE5H -

AZEENEE  RPCMEREDIRENE
ZBRE REMZEZERREHER -

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audit and to report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section
141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this

report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the

financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and true and fair presentation of the financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting polices used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial

statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit

opinion.
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OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
and of the Group as at 30 June 2011 and of the Group's
profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Jonathan Russell Leong
Practising Certificate Number P03246

Hong Kong, 22 September 2011
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Fal &R
Consolidated Income Statement

BE_F——H£A=1+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

—E-FF
2010
gz FAET
Notes HK$ 000
WA Revenue 5 38,790
BHERAKN Direct costs (14,360)
EX Gross profit 24,430
H At ug A Other income 7 101,438
KREWMELRAEE Changes in fair value of
22H investment properties 15 199,952
HEREMEET Gain on disposal of investment
properties 9 -
BAREBEIEKREWEZE Change in fair value of financial
REENTREE assets at fair value through
NARBEZEE profit or loss 2,371
T EF Administrative expenses (29,026)
Hih 2 EZE M Other operating expenses (304)
B8 R Finance costs 8 (13,922)
B 4 A 35 F Profit before income tax 9 284,939
Frigfim B, (ZH) Income tax credit/(expense) 10 (25,898)
AN F E g A Profit for the year 259,041
THIA T EIEZARFZE & F : Profit for the year attributable to:
ZAN/NEIES TS WN Owners of the Company 11 232,722
FEE AR #E 5 Non-controlling interest 26,319
259,041
EATFEEAFREARSEE Earnings per share for profit
w2 8RR attributable to the owners of
the Company during the year 13
BN Basic HK$0.78% 7T
e Diluted

HK$0.737%& 7T

F75HEFE187EHEH Z BEHEM 24887 The notes on pages 75 to 187 form part of these financial
2 E o B statements.
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GEZEBK SR
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

BE_F——%7A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

—E-FF
2010
FHET
HK$’ 000
AEE R Profit for the year 259,041
Hfh 2 W = Other comprehensive income
WMEFINGEEXE I Exchange gain on translation of financial
WMRELE ZER WS statements of foreign operations 19,108
BERMEEGHRER Surplus on revaluation of properties
held for own use 3,625
HERYMEEHAK Income tax relating to surplus on
BRAZHEM revaluation of properties held for
own use (598)
Hit2E WK &= Other comprehensive income for
2 MR IE the year, net of tax 22,135
AEEZEWEAE Total comprehensive income
for the year 281,176
THATEEHAEE  Total comprehensive income
THEHKRDARE for the year attributable to:
BRAFAA Owners of the Company 254,857
JF 122 A = Non-controlling interest 26,319
281,176
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

WZF——FA=1H AS AT 30 JUNE 2011

EERARE

ERBEE
BEWE

MR - HeEs R
RB\E R
Hib B EE
Hip3Ene & E

RBEE
FHEZERFTME

BERERZEFEDE
BAfBEARZD
ZERMEE
EUWE 5 8RR M

H {th & W AR 5K

& LT B AR AR X
RAEIFRIR

JIE UK 88 5 1 Bk R

i T8 TE 4
RITEFLRRE

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Non-current assets

Investment properties
Property, plant and equipment
Mortgage loans

Other financial assets

Other non-current asset

Current assets

Properties under development
for sale

Completed properties for sale

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Trade and other receivables

Amount due from ultimate
holding company

Amounts due from related
companies

Prepaid tax

Bank balances and cash

NA=+H +H—H

30 June 1 July

—T-TF —TThE

2010 2009

et FET FET
Notes HK$” 000 HK$” 000
(g &E5) (g &E5)

(Restated) (Restated)

15 3,558,220 3,309,209
16 84,491 83,494
17 108 126
18 1,452 -
20 950 950
3,645,221 3,393,779

21 1,065,745 798,297
21 368,772 347,878
22 97,544 152,167
23 6,912 15,151
24 132 132
24 1,200 900
139 263

101,251 35,922

1,641,695 1,350,710
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HMERILSE R
Fi

nancial Position

RZFE——%7xA=+H AS AT 30 JUNE 2011
NA=+8H +tHA—H
30 June 1 July
—E2-TF —ZZTTNEF
2010 2009
Kt FET FET
Notes HK$" 000 HK$" 000
(g &E5) (g &E5)
(Restated) (Restated)
REBEE Current liabilities
JENE SERA KR Trade and other payables
H b & 7 AR X 25 41,165 62,988
FE A IEFERR AR R 4 3 Amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders 24 239,990 239,990
RITIEX Bank overdraft - -
BEE Interest-bearing borrowings 26 1,332,937 1,118,000
BAREBETA Financial liabilities at fair value
BEazemasE through profit or loss 22 304 -
B IE B Provision for taxation 3,020 3,541
1,617,416 1,424,519
REEE (A1) Net current assets/(liabilities) 24,279 (73,809)
FE
BEERRIEM  Total assets less current liabilities 3,669,500 3,319,970
kRBEE Non-current liabilities
BN Advances from a director 30(a) 43,854 71,477
BEHRIBEEE Deferred tax liabilities 27 379,909 355,289
423,763 426,766
EEFE Net assets 3,245,737 2,893,204
ANNUAL RePORT 2011 & #R CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED =g (£8) GRAR 66



GAEMBERIIE R
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

WZF——FA=1H AS AT 30 JUNE 2011

ANA=+H +tH—H
30 June 1 July
—E-FF —_FTTNF
2010 2009
B &t FAETT FAETT
Notes HK$" 000 HK$"000
(&) (&)
(Restated) (Restated)
e EQUITY
[N Share capital 28 34,667 27,151
ff# Reserves 3,172,817 2,854,119
ERABEFEAEA Equity attributable to
FE4h #E 2= owners of the Company 3,207,484 2,881,270
IR ER Non-controlling interest 38,253 11,934
AR Total equity 3,245,737 2,893,204
iRl HL £
Chao Sze Tsung Cecil Yung Philip
=3 =3
Director Director

F75EEFEI187EMEZRIEN T AR The notes on pages 75 to 187 form part of these financial
R 2 EB D statements.
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HERILSE R

WZF——FXA=+H AS AT 30 JUNE 2011

BEEREE
ERBEE

B ARz
JE U I B8 1~ B SRR

RBEE
H At & R K
JE U T /B8 1~ B3R IR

RITRENRRE

REBAE
H ity J& A B 3K
FE < Y BB 1~ B 5KIR

i T8

RBEEFE

REERRBAE

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Non-current assets
Interest in subsidiaries
Amounts due from

subsidiaries

Current assets

Other receivables

Amounts due from
subsidiaries

Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities

Other payables

Amounts due to
subsidiaries

Taxation

Net current assets

Total assets less current

liabilities

—E-ZEF

2010

io=3 FAET
Notes HK$" 000
19 257,391
19(a) 438,133
695,524

23 1
19(b) 1,541,581
128

1,541,710

25 332
19(b) 563,771
2,548

566,651

975,059

1,670,583
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MERILE=
Statement of Financial Position

WZF——FA=1H AS AT 30 JUNE 2011

—E-ZEF
2010
io=3 FET
Notes HK$" 000
EFREBEE Non-current liabilities
EEHRX Advances from a director 30(a) 43,854
43,854
BEEFE Net assets 1,626,729
s Equity
[N Share capital 28 34,667
{1 Reserves 29 1,592,062
RSB Total equity 1,626,729
iz R ol ged
Chao Sze Tsung Cecil Yung Philip
EE EE
Director Director

S75HEE187 B E Y BRIEM 24817 The notes on pages 75 to 187 form part of these financial
WK 2 ED

statements.
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GEBReRE
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BE_F——%7A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

—E-FF
2010
FAET
HK$"000
RETHZHERE Cash flows from operating
activities
B 55 B g ) Profit before income tax 284,939
I Adjustments for:
e Depreciation 3,441
R B A Dividend income (2,823)
B A Interest income (463)
B s IR A Finance costs 13,922
REMELRRBE Change in fair value of
-y 0) investment properties (199,952)
122 PR 4 O] Reversal of provision for
bad debts (37)
HERAREBEG A Gain on sale of financial
BRzomEEEN assets at fair value through
profit or loss (12,073)
BRARBEFABER Change in fair value
ZERMEEZ financial assets at fair
DR EBESRE value through profit or loss (2,371)
BRARBE AEBR Net unrealised loss on
ZemaEs financial liabilities at fair
RELIH BB value through profit or loss 304
H b & W SR IE 2 R E Reversal of impairment losses
&5 1B el on other receivables (31,624)
B AN SR E R 1 s [ 3 Reversal of provision for late
payment charges (41,422)
HEME #HER Loss on disposals of property,
KR E plant and equipment -
HEREMEER Gain on disposals of
investment properties -
e H =% Exchange difference (11,462)
MBE S EBA 2 Operating (loss)/profit before
e (E1E) a Al working capital changes 379
FEWEEM Increase in properties for sale (244,894)
—BERRIRK Decrease/(Increase) in
() amounts due from
related companies (300)
REER AT RFMS  Decrease in amount due
from ultimate holding
company -
B 5 K B Ath fE Y BR R (Increase)/Decrease in trade
() Rk A and other receivables 8,260
2 5 R H A E S BRAK Increase in trade and
0 other payables 19,599
KEEEMEBA RS Cash used in operations (216,956)
2T AS Profits tax paid (3,378)
BB E R Finance costs paid (13,922)
AEEEE B Net cash used in operating
B2 FEE activities (234,256)

ANNUAL ReporT 2011 F 3§ CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED = (%) BRAR 70



FEeBHaRE
Consolidated Statement of Gash Flows

BE_F——H£A=1+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

REFHZHERE

BB UA
M B WA
BEME ML RE

BEYEIE N
HEREYE

Wz
HERAAREBEA

BT TS
(#0) R
RIBERER

Cash flows from investing
activities

Dividend income

Interest received

Purchase of property,
plant and equipment

Additions of investment
properties

Proceeds from disposals
of investment properties

Proceeds from sale of financial
assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Purchase of financial assets at

fair value through profit or loss
Purchase of other financial

assets
(Increase)/Decrease in pledged
bank balances

Repayment of mortgage loans

KEZEFTiF B2 FFE Net cash from investing

activities

—_E-FF
2010
FATT
HK$’ 000

2,823
463

(823)

(29,198)

82,648

(13,581)

(1,452)

14,468
34

55,382
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FEeH&RE

Consolidated Statement of Gash Flows

BE_F——%7A=1+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

MEETBHRERE

BTG EFRFAX

S

BfTAE

FILIRITE K
RITEEER
BEEEFRRN

BEZBA (8F).”

ELZH T FH

RERBESEEYZ
CRLA) /48 hn 73 58

FOZRERREEED

FRZBETRRESEEY

BROTEERAEEED
EERD AT

AR B PR MwR
2 2 RITHEF
ME®

o RITEX
o B EWMRITET

Cash flows from financing
activities

Issue of share capital, net
of expenses

Dividends paid

New bank loans raised

Repayment of bank loan

Repayment of advance
from a director

Net cash (used in)/from

financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase
in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents

at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents
at end of year

Analysis of the balances of
cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances and cash
as stated in consolidated
statement of financial
position

Less: bank overdrafts

Less: pledged bank balances

—_E-FF
2010
FAT
HK$’ 000

81,577

(10,220)
794,033

(579,096)

(27,623)

258,671

79,797

17,651

97,448

101,251

(3,803)

97,448

F75BEF187AME 2 EEM T A7 The notes on pages 75 to 187 form part of these financial
o

]k 2 BB

statements.
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GFaeHRED R

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BE_F——H£A=1+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

CERNFLA-RER

BREREAR-F-—F
HERE

&1kt

RENRR S5

it e
ROETER

BREAZRS

REREH
EnEh2Eks

BEENZERBEHBER
ELZERBR

ERNXEMRES

HERNRERBHAT
IR

EREUNESLE

ZE-BEAAZTAERE

ARAREAEGRR
Equity attributable to owners of the Company
nE %3 £2R
kx  AERE EEEE EREE REEE REER 4y i HER
Property Special Non-
Share  Exchange ~revaluation capital Share  Retained controlling Total
capital reserve*  reserve*  reserve*  premium*  profits* Total interest equity
TEnr TR TEn  TEx  TER  TET  TER  TEnr  TER
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
(Hit29) (Witz0)  (Hets0)
(Note 29) (Note 30)  (Note 30)
Balance at 1 July 2009 27,151 (26,604) - 320065 1,022,589 1,538,009 2,881,270 11,934 2,893,204
2010 interim dividend
approved and paid = = = = = (10,220) (10,220) = (10,220)
Issue of share capital:
Pursuant to scrip dividend scheme 591 = = = 8,272 = 8,803 = 8,803
By exercise of warrants 6,925 - - - 65,916 - 72,841 - 72,841
Share issue expenses - - - - (127) - (127) - (127)
Transactions with owners 7,516 = = = 74,061 (10,220) 71,357 - 71,357
Profit for the year - - - - - 232,712 232,722 26,319 259,041
Other comprehensive income
for the year
Exchange gain on translation
of financial statements of
foreign operations - 19,108 - - - - 19,108 - 19,108
Surplus on revaluation of
properties held for own use = = 3,625 = = = 3,625 = 3,625
Income tax relating to surplus
on revaluation of properties
held for own use - - (598) - - - (598) - (598)
Total comprehensive income
for the year = 19,108 3,027 = - 282,71 254,857 26,319 281,176
Balance at 30 June 2010 34,667 (7,496) 3,027 320,065 1,096,650 1,760,571 3,207,484 38,253 3,245,737
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GEeERERED =
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BE_F——%7A=1+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

“R-BELA-RER

EREREAN-E-%£

AARERPERS
£V

REXBR S

Bt el
BiETER

BREEAZRS

REERA
ERE2ERA

BEENEER BN R

EL7EREN

EREARALE

ZE--£XA=tRER

Balance at 1 July 2010

2010 final dividend and interim
dividend approved and paid

Issue of share capital:

Pursuant to scrip dividend scheme

By exercise of warrants

Share issue expenses

Transactions with owners

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income
for the year
Exchange loss on translation
of financial statements of

foreign operations

Total comprehensive income

for the year

Balance at 30 June 2011

e

Share
capital
TER

HK$' 000
(Wiit29)
(Note 29)

L HHEERECEEEIESRAMBRRERS ¥
REBE 7 FEH3,551,154,00008 ¢ (R=F
—Z4F :3,172,817,00087T) °

FB75EEF187EME 2 BRIBEW T AR %
)

& 2B

ARAREAEGRR
Equity attributable to owners of the Company
n% Al
AERE EfRE EXRE  RTER
Property Special
Exchange revaluation capital Share
reserve*  reserve*  reserve*  premium*
TEn  TEx  TExr  TEx
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
(Wits0)  (H#s0)
(Note 30)  (Note 30)

FER

REEA a8 B
Non-

Retained controlling
profits* Total interest
TEn TR TEx
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

gk

Total
equity
TERL

HK$' 000

These reserve accounts comprise the Group’s reserves
of HK$3,551,154,000 (2010: HK$3,172,817,000) in the

consolidated statement of financial position.

statements.
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MEHEM=E
Notes to the Financial Statements

BE_F——H£A=1+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

—BER
SR (KB ERAB(TARA]) TI—
MaERBEMKLZBRETAR A
ANE] 2 M N B KA B
BRAFHRAMER T - AARZEMN
REEBERZMAERAR L -

ARRABREMBAR (SHEIAEE])
H—ABEMAIZZERABMRABR
AR ([RAD #ER - RBEBR - EF
RRANRE 2 IR A R IRBIRA ©

AREBMZEEZXRBADRYMERERM
REEREHYMEEENEBRARE

BE-T —FXASTALFEY
MERREEFEN -F——FN 7
—+ =B ETIE -

GENERAL INFORMATION
Cheuk Nang (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) is a

limited liability company incorporated and domiciled
in Hong Kong. The address of its registered office is
disclosed in the Corporate Information section of the
annual report and, its principal place of business is
Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on The

Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are
controlled by Yan Yin Company Limited (“Yan Yin”), a
limited liability company incorporated and domiciled in
Hong Kong. At the reporting date, the directors consider
the ultimate parent company of the Group is also Yan
Yin.

The principal activities of the Group are principally
engaged in property development and investment and

provision of property management and related services.

The financial statements for the year ended 30 June
2011 were approved for issue by the board of directors
on 22 September 2011.
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MEHREM=E
Notes to the Financial Statements

BE_FT——& A=1+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

2. RAFHTHREITEBHHEHR 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

&2 A ACCOUNTING POLICIES
2.1. 4w HI B 2 2.1 Basis of preparation

BNEEEF1868 2 KHE
DNREAGHIMAG ([EBES
Agl) Bz EENBREE
Al (T EEMBHREEL]D) - ttatiE
EREMEEREN BB BR
HER| - FRAGHER([FEGS
) RRE BELERXRAZE
TR A R EE R RED 2 48 7E 4R
& KBS MKR IR & BB
ERXRGERARIES EMHRAZ
HRBBERE -

REVBERASTAEESTER
B T X - RBAEEREEN « it
EEHBURERFTBE2RFEEM
FER o IR ET SRESERT 2 BB
s 2R R S AL BB SR

F& (WA) ERHIFE3 FIRE -

B 75 90 2 AR AR S R B
WMWK - BA A BEH A RR
e RMEERIIRDE  BBERE
i+ BB AR Ao (BB
o - BRIE BEER THIBH KR
it o

The financial statements on pages 62 to 186 have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) which
collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. The financial statements also include
the applicable disclosure requirements of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock

Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”).

The significant accounting policies that have
been used in the preparation of these financial
statements are summarised below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years
presented unless otherwise stated. The adoption of
new or amended HKFRSs and the impacts on the
Group’s financial statements, if any, are disclosed
in Note 3.

The financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis, except for investment
properties, financial instruments classified as at fair
value through profit or loss and land and building
classified under property, plant and equipment,
which are stated at fair values. The measurement
bases are fully described in the accounting policies

below.
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MEHEM=E
Notes to the Financial Stateme

BE_F——H£A=1+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

A #RT =

HER (])

| =

2.1. 4R I B 2 (&)

EFERRUM BRI RS
hEt RRE - BEZ ST IIRIE
EREHEMNSHRITH 2 &ER
MRAEEL - EERARKRSK
FHZEMTAMEA - PRES
BEHABSIRAERZERE - SR
RERGFTEHMBREAMEBEAZ
IS DA 4 TR -

2.

2.1

mERE
mEMBBRREBBEARATREN
BRARGFRTH23)BEFF A
= t+tHZHB®wE -

2 2.2

MEARNEHEEREAREZ
HiEZmAAE AR SLEZEHZ L
EREELGEAEAR-

BTSN BHRER - SEAAT
AR5  SEARFIEIR S &R
RARERR=REEGEE &5
NRARIFEEHEE Z REHEBEER
MERBRRED  MEMBEETE
HAREE 2 AEETRERH
BARIMBHRERAMKRE 2 €RE
REERELFAE  UERERE
ERM e HE - -

BT HEBBFEEHR 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

It should be noted that accounting estimates
and assumptions are used in preparation of the
financial statements. Although these estimates
are based on management’s best knowledge and
judgement of current events and actions, actual
results may ultimately differ from those estimates.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the financial statements,

are disclosed in Note 4.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (see 2.3 below) made up to 30 June

each year.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They
are excluded from consolidation from the date that

control ceases.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains and losses on transactions between
group companies are eliminated in preparing
Where

unrealised losses on intra-group asset sales are

the consolidated financial statements.

reversed on consolidation, the underlying asset
is also tested for impairment from the Group’s
perspective. Amounts reported in the financial
statements of subsidiaries have been adjusted
where necessary to ensure consistency with the

accounting policies adopted by the Group.
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2.2 Basis of consolidation (Continued)
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When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as
the difference between (i) the aggregate of the
fair value of the consideration received and fair
value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous
carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill),
and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interest. Amounts previously recognized
in the same manner as would be required if the

relevant assets or liabilities were disposed of.

2.3 Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities (including special purpose
entities) over which the Group has the power to
control the financial and operating policies so as to
obtain benefits from their activities. The existence
and effect of potential voting rights that are
currently exercisable or convertible are considered
when assessing whether the Group controls another

entity.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
subsidiaries are carried at cost less any impairment
loss unless the subsidiary is held for sale or
included in a disposal group. The results of the
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividends received and receivable at
the reporting date. All dividends whether received
out of the investee’s pre or post-acquisition profits

are recognised in the Company’s profit or loss.
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2.4

REBE

BT HEBBFEEHR 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Subsidiaries (Continued)
Non-controlling interests

Non-controlling interests represent the portion
of the profit or loss and net assets of a subsidiary
attributable to equity interests that are not owned
by the Group and are not the Group’s financial

liabilities.

Non-controlling interests are represented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from the equity attributable
to the owners of the Company. Profit or loss
attributable to the non-controlling interests is
presented separately in the consolidated income
statement as an allocation of the Group’s results.
Total comprehensive income is attributed to non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-

controlling interest having a deficit balance.

Joint ventures

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement
whereby two or more parties undertake an
economic activity that is subject to joint control.
Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of
control over an economic activity, and exists only
when the strategic financial and operating decisions
relating to the activity require the unanimous

consent of the venturers.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Joint ventures (Continued)

Jointly controlled assets

The Group’s share of the jointly controlled assets
and share of any liabilities incurred jointly with
other ventures are recognised in the consolidated
financial statements and classified according to
their nature. Liabilities and expenses incurred
directly in respect of interests in jointly controlled

assets are accounted for on an accrual basis.

Income from the sale or use of the Group’s share of
the output of jointly controlled assets, together with
its share of joint venture expenses, are recognised
when it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the transaction will flow to or from

the Group.

2.5 Foreign currency translation

The financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (HK$), which is also the functional

currency of the Company.

In the individual financial statements of the
consolidated entities, foreign currency transactions
are translated into the functional currency of
the individual entity using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the
reporting date, monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at that date.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the
reporting date retranslation of monetary assets and

liabilities are recognised in profit or loss.
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EETEEMBIR 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined and are reported as part of
the fair value gain or loss. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign

currency are not retranslated.

In the consolidated financial statements, all
individual financial statements of foreign
operations, originally presented in a currency
different from the Group’s presentation currency,
have been converted into Hong Kong dollars.
Assets and liabilities have been translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the closing rates at the
reporting date. Income and expenses have been
converted into the Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates,
or at the average rates over the reporting period
provided that the exchange rates do not fluctuate
significantly. Any differences arising from
this procedure have been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in the exchange reserve in equity. Goodwill and
fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of
a foreign operation on or after 1 January 2005 have
been treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated into Hong Kong dollars at

the closing rates.

When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are reclassified from equity to profit or

loss as part of the gain or loss on sale.
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Land held under operating leases and buildings
thereon (where the fair value of the leasehold
interest in the land and buildings cannot be
measured separately at the inception of the lease
and the building is not clearly held under an
operating lease) are stated at revalued amounts,
being fair value at the date of revaluation less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and any
subsequent impairment losses. Fair value is
determined in appraisals by external professional
valuers with sufficient regularity to ensure that the
carrying amount does not differ materially from
that which would be determined using fair value at
the reporting date. Any accumulated depreciation
at the date of revaluation is eliminated against
the gross carrying amount of the asset and the
net amount is restated to the revalued amount of
the asset. All other items of property, plant and
equipment are stated at cost less accumulated

depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Any surplus arising on revaluation of land and
buildings is recognised in other comprehensive
income and is accumulated in the property
revaluation reserve in equity, unless the carrying
amount of that asset has previously suffered a
revaluation decrease. To the extent that any
decrease has previously been recognised in profit
or loss, a revaluation increase is credited to profit
or loss with the remaining part of the increase
dealt with in other comprehensive income. A
decrease in net carrying amount of land and
buildings arising on revaluations is recognised in
other comprehensive income to the extent of the
revaluation surplus in the property revaluation
reserve relating to the same asset and the remaining

decrease is recognised in profit or loss.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is
provided to write off the cost or revalued amounts
less their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, using the straight-line method, at the

following rates per annum:

Land and building 2%
Furniture, fittings and office equipment 10%
Motor vehicles and accessories 20%

The asset’s residual values, depreciation methods
and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if

appropriate, at each reporting date.

The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal
is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
is recognised in profit or loss. Any revaluation
surplus remaining in equity is transferred to
retained earnings on the disposal of land and

building.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other costs, such as
repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or
loss during the financial period in which they are

incurred.
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Investment properties are land and/or buildings
which are owned or held under a leasehold
interest to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation. These include land held for a
currently undetermined future use and property that
is being constructed or developed for future use as

investment property.

When the Group holds a property interest under
an operating lease to earn rental income and/or
for capital appreciation, the interest is classified
and accounted for as an investment property on
a property-by-property basis. Any such property
interest which has been classified as an investment
property is accounted for as if it were held under a

finance lease.

Investment properties include completed properties
and investment properties under development for
continued future use as investment properties.
Investment properties are stated in the statement
of financial position at fair value. Fair value is
determined by external professional valuers, with
sufficient experience with respect to both the
location and nature of the investment property.
The carrying amounts recognised at the reporting
date reflect the prevailing market conditions at the

reporting date.

Gains or losses arising from either changes in the

fair value or the sale of an investment property are

R e included in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise.
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BT HEBBFEEHR 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial assets

The Group’s accounting policies for financial
assets other than interest in subsidiaries are set out
below. Financial assets of the Group are classified
into financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and receivables and available-for-sale

financial assets.

Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition depending
on the purpose for which the financial assets were
acquired and where allowed and appropriate, re-

evaluates this designation at every reporting date.

All financial assets are recognised when, and
only when, the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Regular
way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade date. When financial assets
are recognised initially, they are measured at fair
value, plus, in the case of investments not at fair
value through profit or loss, directly attributable

transaction costs.

Derecognition of financial assets occurs when the
rights to receive cash flows from the investments
expire or are transferred and substantially all of
the risks and rewards of ownership have been

transferred.

At each reporting date, financial assets are
reviewed to assess whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. If any such evidence
exists, impairment loss is determined and
recognised based on the classification of the

financial asset.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.8 Financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(if)

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-
derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments and fixed maturity
that the Group’s management has the
positive intention and ability to hold to
maturity. Held-to-maturity investments are
subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any
impairment losses. Amortised cost is calculated
taking into account any discount or premium
on acquisition and includes fees that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate and

transaction cost.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or

loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss includes financial assets held for trading
and financial assets designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or

loss.

Financial assets are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired for the purpose
of selling in the near term, or it is part of a
portfolio of identified financial instruments
that are managed together and for which there
is evidence of a recent pattern of short-term
profit-taking. Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives are also classified as
held for trading unless they are designated
as effective hedging instruments or financial

guarantee contracts.
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(ii) Financial assets at fair value through profit or
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loss (Continued)

Where a contract contains one or more
embedded derivatives, the entire hybrid
contract may be designated as a financial asset
at fair value through profit or loss, except
where the embedded derivative does not
significantly modify the cash flows or it is clear
that separation of the embedded derivative is

prohibited.

Financial assets may be designated at initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or

loss if the following criteria are met:

— the designation eliminates or significantly
reduces the inconsistent treatment that
would otherwise arise from measuring the
assets or recognising gains or losses on

them on a different basis; or

— the assets are part of a group of financial
assets which are managed and their
performance is evaluated on a fair value
basis, in accordance with a documented
risk management strategy and information
about the group of financial assets is
provided internally on that basis to the key

management personnel; or

— the financial asset contains an embedded
derivative that would need to be separately

recorded.
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2.8 Financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(iif)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or

loss (Continued)

Subsequent to the initial recognition, the
financial assets included in this category are
measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss. Fair value
is determined by reference to active market
transactions or using a valuation technique
where no active market exists. Fair value
gain or loss does not include any dividend
or interest earned on these financial assets.
Dividend and interest income is recognised in
accordance with the Group’s policies in Note

2.17 to these financial statements.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Loans and receivables are
subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method less any
impairment losses. Amortised cost is calculated
taking into account any discount or premium
on acquisition and includes fees that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate and

transaction cost.
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2.8 Financial assets (Continued)
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Non-derivative financial assets that do not
qualify for inclusion in any of the other
categories of financial assets are classified as

available-for-sale financial assets.

All financial assets within this category are
subsequently measured at fair value. Gain or
loss arising from a change in the fair value
excluding any dividend and interest income
is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in the available-
for-sale financial assets revaluation reserve in
equity, except for impairment losses (see the
policy below) and foreign exchange gains and
losses on monetary assets, until the financial
asset is derecognised, at which time the
cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss. Interest calculated using
the effective interest method is recognised in

profit or loss.

For available-for-sale investments in equity
securities that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured and derivatives
that are linked to and must be settled by
delivery of such unquoted equity instruments,
they are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at each reporting date

subsequent to initial recognition.
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2. RAHTHREITEBHT KR 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

HER| (&) ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.8 EWMEE (&) 2.8 Financial assets (Continued)
2 @B E R E Impairment of financial assets
TRMEE GERAABET AER At each reporting date, financial assets other than
ZERMEE)INEREHET at fair value through profit or loss are reviewed to
B UEETRGHRBRERS determine whether there is any objective evidence
B ° of impairment.
E2RMEENRETHIEBIEN Obijective evidence of impairment of individual
T2ZEBEERN AAREETMNE : financial assets includes observable data that

comes to the attention of the Group about one or

more of the following loss events:

- BEBRAEEAMBEE : X - Significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- EREH WAEITHTEE — A breach of contract, such as a default or
MEHAEE; delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- EXSAFREKERENERA — It becoming probable that the debtor will enter
B EH; bankruptcy or other financial re-organisation;

- B -W5 - RBEMREMINE —  Significant changes in the technological,
RNEBEHEBABTRZE market, economic or legal environment that
X have an adverse effect on the debtor; and

- BROBRBHBEERIKBPAA — A significant or prolonged decline in the fair
BETHKEERKAE - value of an investment in an equity instrument

below its cost.
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BT HEBBFEEHR 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Loss events in respect of a group of financial assets
include observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows from the group of financial assets. Such
observable data includes but not limited to adverse
changes in the payment status of debtors in the
group and, national or local economic conditions

that correlate with defaults on the assets in the

group.

If any such evidence exists, the impairment loss is

measured and recognised as follows:

(i) Financial assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an
impairment loss on loans and receivables
carried at amortised cost has been incurred,
the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future
cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e. the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition). The amount of the loss is
recognised in profit or loss of the period in

which the impairment occurs.
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2. RAFTALETEEBITKEHR 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
HER| (&) ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.8 EWMEE (&) 2.8 Financial assets (Continued)
2B EE R E ()
(i) ZHEEXEZBHEEDER (E)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i) Financial assets carried at amortised cost

(if)
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(Continued)

If, in subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed to the extent that it does not result
in a carrying amount of the financial asset
exceeding what the amortised cost would have
been had the impairment not been recognised
at the date the impairment is reversed. The
amount of the reversal is recognised in profit or

loss of the period in which the reversal occurs.

(ii) Available-for-sale financial assets

When a decline in the fair value of an
available-for-sale financial asset has been
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity and there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired, an amount
is removed from equity and recognised in profit
or loss as an impairment loss. That amount
is measured as the difference between the
asset’s acquisition cost (net of any principal
repayment and amortisation) and current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that asset

previously recognised in profit or loss.
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2. MAHITRLIETTEBHMEHR 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
SR (8F) ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.8 EWMEE (&) 2.8 Financial assets (Continued)
S EERE (B)
(i) BIRHEL B EE

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(ii) Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)
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Reversals in respect of investment in equity
instruments classified as available-for-sale
are not recognised in the profit or loss. The
subsequent increase in fair value is recognised
in other comprehensive income. Impairment
losses in respect of debt securities are reversed
if the subsequent increase in fair value can be
objectively related to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised. Reversal
of impairment losses in such circumstances are

recognised in profit or loss.

For available-for-sale financial assets carried
at cost, the amount of impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the
carrying amount of the financial assets and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return
for a similar financial asset. The amount of the
impairment losses is recognised in profit or loss
of the period in which the impairment occurs

and not reversed in subsequent periods.
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2. BRAFMFIHRETE B BEHR 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
o B () ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
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2.8 Financial assets (Continued)
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Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Impairment losses of financial assets other than
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
and trade receivables that are stated at amortised
cost, are written off against the corresponding
assets directly. Where the recovery of trade
receivables is considered doubtful but not remote,
the impairment losses for doubtful receivables
are recorded using an allowance account. When
the Group is satisfied that recovery of trade
receivables is remote, the amount considered
irrecoverable is written off against trade receivables
directly and any amounts held in the allowance
account in respect of that receivable are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account are reversed
against the allowance account. Other changes in
the allowance account and subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off directly are

recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period
in respect of available-for-sale equity securities
and unquoted equity securities carried at cost are
not reversed in a subsequent period. Consequently,
if the fair value of an available-for-sale equity
security increases in the remainder of an annual
period, or in a subsequent period, the increase is

recognised in other comprehensive income.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.9 Properties held for sale

Properties for sale include completed properties for
sale and properties under development for sale and
are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable

value.

(i) Properties under development for sale

The cost of properties under development
for sale comprises specifically identified
cost, including the acquisition cost of land,
aggregate cost of development, materials and
supplies, wages and other direct expenses,
an appropriate proportion of overheads and
borrowing costs capitalised (see Note 2.20).
Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price less estimated costs of completion

and costs to be incurred in selling the property.

(i) Completed properties for sale

In the case of completed properties developed
by the Group, cost is determined by
apportionment of the total development costs
for that development project, attributable to
the unsold properties. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price less costs

to be incurred in selling the property.

The cost of completed properties for sale
comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and

condition.

For a transfer of investment properties
previously carried at fair value to properties for
sale, the property cost is the fair value at the

date of change in use.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments, in individual
contracts or separated from hybrid financial
instruments, are initially recognised at fair value on
the date the derivative contract is entered into and
subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives
that are not designated as hedging instruments
are accounted for as financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Gains
or losses arising from changes in fair value are

taken directly to profit or loss for the year.

2.11 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank
and in hand, demand deposits with banks and
short term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value. For the purpose of the statement of cash
flows presentation, cash and cash equivalents
include bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s

cash management.

2.12 Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include bank
loans and overdrafts, trade and other payables and
advances from related parties (including amounts
due to non-controlling shareholders and advances
from a director). They are included in line items
in the statement of financial position as interest-
bearing borrowings under current or non-current
liabilities, trade and other payables or separately
shown on the face of the statement of financial

position.
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STEEBBFEEH 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. All interest related charges
are recognised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy for borrowing costs (see Note

2.20).

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or

cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced
by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new
liability, and the difference in the respective

carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss.

Derivatives

Derivatives including separated embedded
derivatives are measured at fair value (see Note
2.10).

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in
profit or loss over the period of the borrowings

using the effective interest method.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2,12

2.13

Financial liabilities (Continued)
Borrowings (Continued)

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve

months after the reporting date.

Trade and other payables, amounts due to non-
controlling shareholders and advances from a

director

Trade and other payables, amounts due to non-
controlling shareholders and advances from a
director are recognised initially at their fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost, using

the effective interest method.

Financial guarantees issued

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer (or guarantor) to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtors fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the terms of a debt

instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee is initially recognised as
deferred income within trade and other payables.
Where consideration is received or receivable for
the issuance of guarantee, the consideration is
recognised in accordance with the Group’s policies
applicable to that category of asset. Where no
such consideration is received or receivable, an
immediate expense is recognised in profit or loss

on initial recognition of any deferred income.
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2.14

BT HEBBFEEHR 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial guarantees issued (Continued)

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised
as deferred income is amortised in profit or loss
over the term of the guarantee as income from
financial guarantees issued. In addition, provisions
are recognised if and when it becomes probable
that the holder of the guarantee will call upon
the Group under the guarantee and the amount of
that claim on the Group is expected to exceed the
current carrying amount i.e. the amount initially
recognised less accumulated amortisation, where

appropriate.

Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a
series of transactions, is or contains a lease if the
Group determines that the arrangement conveys a
right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed
period of time in return for a payment of a series of
payments. Such a determination is made based on
an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement
and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes

the legal form of a lease.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.14 Leases (Continued)
(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases
which transfer to the Group substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as being held under finance leases.
Leases which do not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
Group are classified as operating leases, with

the following exceptions:

— property held under operating leases that
would otherwise meet the definition of
an investment property is classified as
an investment property on a property-
by-property basis and, if classified as
investment property, is accounted for as if
held under a finance lease (see Note 2.7);

and

— land held for own use under an operating
lease, the fair value of which cannot be
measured separately from the fair value
of a building situated thereon, at the
inception of the lease, is accounted for as
being held under a finance lease, unless
the building is also clearly held under an
operating lease (see Note 2.6). For these
purposes, the inception of the lease is the
time that the lease was first entered into by
the Group, or taken over from the previous

lessee.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.14 Leases (Continued)

(ii) Operating lease charges as the lessee

Where the Group has the right to use of assets
held under operating leases, payments made
under the leases are charged to the income
statement on a straight line basis over the lease
terms except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the time pattern of benefits
to be derived from the leased assets. Lease
incentives received are recognised in profit
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments made. Contingent rental are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting

period in which they are incurred.

(iii) Assets leased out under operating leases as the

lessor

Assets leased out under operating leases are
measured and presented according to the
nature of the assets. Initial direct costs incurred
in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised as an expense over
the lease term on the same basis as the rental

income.
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(iii) Assets leased out under operating leases as the

lessor (Continued)

Rental income receivable from operating leases
is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the periods covered by the
lease term, except where an alternative basis
is more representative of the time pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the
leased asset. Lease incentives granted are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part
of the aggregate net lease payments receivable.
Contingent rentals are recognised as income
in the accounting period in which they are

earned.

2.15 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent

assets

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of
the obligation can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle

the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date

and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.
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BT HEBBFEEHR 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent

assets (Continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future uncertain events
not wholly within the control of the group are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is

remote.

Probable inflows of economic benefits to the Group
that do not yet meet the recognition criteria of an

asset are considered contingent assets.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share
capital is determined using the nominal value of

shares that have been issued.

Any transaction costs associated with the issuing
of shares are deducted from share premium reserve
(net of any related income tax benefit) to the extent
they are incremental costs directly attributable to

the equity transaction.
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2. AT HRKEBTEEMER 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
o B () ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

== PSS
2.17 Revenue recognition
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Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured

reliably and on the following bases.

Revenue arising from the sale of properties held
for sale is recognised when the legal title has been
transferred to the buyer, which generally coincides
with the time upon signing of the sale and purchase
agreement or the issue of an occupation permit
by the relevant government authorities, whichever
is the later. Deposits and instalments received
on properties sold prior to the date of revenue
recognition are included in the statement of

financial position under other payables.

Rental income under operating leases is recognised
in the period in which the properties are let out and

on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion

basis using the effective interest method.

Estate management income is recognised in the

period when services are rendered.

Dividend income from investments is recognised
when the shareholders’ right to receive payment is
established.
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BT HEBBFEEHR 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Property, plant and equipment, other non-current
asset and interest in subsidiaries are subject to
impairment testing. All other assets are tested for
impairment whenever there are indications that the

asset’s carrying amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value,
reflecting market conditions less costs to sell,
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessment of time value of

money and the risk specific to the asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent from those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generate cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit). As
a result, some assets are tested individually for
impairment and some are tested at cash-generating

unit level.

Impairment losses is charged pro rata to the other
assets in the cash generating unit, except that the
carrying value of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less cost to sell, or

value in use, if determinable.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the asset’s recoverable amount and
only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been

recognised.

2.19 Employee benefits

Retirement benefits

Retirement benefits to employees are provided

through several defined contribution plans.

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan
under which the Group pays fixed contributions
into a separate entity. The Group has no legal or
constructive obligations to pay further contributions

after payment of the fixed contribution.

The contributions recognised in respect to defined
contribution plans are expensed as they fall
due. Liabilities and assets may be recognised if
underpayment or prepayment has occurred and are
included in current liabilities or current assets as

they are normally of a short term nature.

Short-term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by

employees up to the reporting date.
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BT HEBBFEEHR 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)
Short-term employee benefits (Continued)

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as
sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised

until the time of leave.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred for the acquisition,
construction or production of any qualifying assets
are capitalised during the period of time that is
required to complete and prepare the asset for its
intended use. A qualifying asset is an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use or sale. Other borrowing

costs are expensed when incurred.

Borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the
cost of a qualifying asset when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are
being incurred and activities that are necessary
to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale
are being undertaken. Capitalisation of borrowing
costs ceases when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its

intended use or sale are complete.
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2.21 Accounting for income taxes
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Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities
comprise those obligations to, or claims from, fiscal
authorities relating to the current or prior reporting
period, that are unpaid at the reporting date. They
are calculated according to the tax rates and tax
laws applicable to the fiscal periods to which they
relate, based on the taxable profit for the vyear.
All changes to current tax assets or liabilities are
recognised as a component of tax expense in profit

or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability
method on temporary differences at the reporting
date between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and their
respective tax bases. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for
all deductible temporary differences, tax losses
available to be carried forward as well as other
unused tax credits, to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit, including existing taxable
temporary differences, will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences,
unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be

utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from initial recognition (other than in
a business combination) of assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither taxable nor

accounting profit or loss.
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BT HEBBFEEHR 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Accounting for income taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the temporary differences

will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
the liability is settled or the asset realised, provided
they are enacted or substantively enacted at the

reporting date.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss, or in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity if they
relate to items that are charged or credited to other

comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are

presented in net if, and only if,

(a) the Group has the legally enforceable right to

set off the recognised amounts; and

intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability

simultaneously.
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2. RAFTHAREITEBT KR 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

HER (]) ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

221 FREHSTEE (&) 2.21 Accounting for income taxes (Continued)
AEEEHREEHIBEBEE MELEN The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred
BHEEAFE RAE tax liabilities in net if, and only if,

(a ZEBEERLAAITRZE (a) the entity has a legally enforceable right to
NG A EARR 7% & 2 ¥ SH AN HA A set off current tax assets against current tax
maE & liabilities; and

(b) R — & A5 %5 4% B P X LA IR (b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax
EHIBEENMELEHRIEREEZ liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
FR1SH same taxation authority on either:

() F—ERKHER; =X (i) the same taxable entity; or

(i) TRRBEBITELNFHE (ii) different taxable entities which intend
EESTNAERBRER either to settle current tax liabilities
BE ELEEENR and assets on a net basis, or to realise
BFXNaE &8 #Exkx the assets and settle the liabilities
REAR, EEFHIE S E L simultaneously, in each future period in
BEMERNSZEEEAT which significant amounts of deferred
X ArskEYg e tax liabilities or assets are expected to be

settled or recovered.

2.22 7 EWE 2.22 Segment reporting
AEBEIDEEDIWREANIE The Group identifies operating segments and
BB ERRET D HER - B prepares segment information based on the
THITESZUEERE RSB TAS regular internal financial information reported
B & EBK D 2RERBRESKD to the executive directors for their decisions
2RI NEB I MERR FEIT about resources allocation to the Group’s
EFEERBRESEBKD THIRA business components and for their review of the
SECFEEMERFIEEE ° performance of those components. The business

components in the internal financial information
reported to the executive directors are determined
following the Group’s major product and service

lines.
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RIETT BB FEEHR 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Segment reporting (Continued)

The Group has identified the following reportable

segments:

Property sales;

Property rental;

Estate management; and

Others — securities trading, derivative financial

instruments and debenture

Each of these operating segments is managed
separately as each of the product and service lines
requires different resources as well as marketing
approaches. All inter-segment transfers are carried

out at arms length prices.

The measurement policies the Group uses for
reporting segment results under HKFRS 8 are the
same as those used in its financial statements
prepared under HKFRSs, except that finance
costs, income tax, corporate income and expenses
which are not directly attributable to the business
activities of any operating segment are not included
in arriving at the operating results of the operating

segment.

Segment assets include all assets but investments
in other financial assets (including held-to-maturity
debt securities and available-for-sale financial
assets) and corporate assets which are not directly
attributable to the business activities of any
operating segment are not allocated to a segment,

which primarily applies to the Group’s headquarter.
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RIEETEBBESHR 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.22 Segment reporting (Continued)

Segment liabilities exclude corporate liabilities
which are not directly attributable to the business
activities of any operating segment and are not

allocated to a segment. These include taxation and

certain borrowings.

/\

RETHBHHREAETRE
e -

BEAL
THALHWRBAREBREAL

2.23

For

No asymmetrical allocations have been applied to

reportable segments.

Related parties

the purposes of these financial statements, a

party is considered to be related to the Group if:

ZATHEENERAFEEEB
—HKFZALFN AR EE KA
BIEHANKE - KITEEEHA
SEEVBENEETEREKL
FEN  NEAKREEEHRRA
YR

(i) (i)

RNEB Sz AT X R (i)

RAKE 2 BEAT
BB

(iii) (iii)

(iv) RAEEHHEB QAR ZEE (iv)

EEAB - N ABRBILIN
KEKE A —BERXHE
B KRAZESIEEATES

Z}\:t:

the party has the ability, directly or indirectly
through one or more intermediaries, to control
the Group or exercise significant influence
over the Group in making financial and
operating policy decisions, or has joint control

over the Group;

the Group and the party are subject to common

control;

the party is an associate of the group or a joint

venture in which the Group is a venturer;

the party is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s
parent, or a close family member of such an
individual, or is an entity under the control,
joint control or significant influence of such

individuals;
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.23 Related parties (Continued)

(v) the party is a close family member of a party
referred to in (i) or is an entity under the
control, joint control or significant influence of

such individuals; or

(vi) the party is a post-employment benefit plan
which is for the benefit of employees of the
Group or of any entity that is a related party of
the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that individual in their

dealings with the entity.
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. RAFITSKRIESTEBMEEHR 3. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED

s HKFRSs
(a) WAHFT LETEBUHBREE (a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1 July
A-R-Z2-FFtA-BEX 2010

ERFEAR  AEBEZHREAT
SIREBGEAMASR 25 E

8l - B RRE ((HFEBRERE
SR ]) BT B A R B

In the current year, the Group has applied for the

first time the following new standards, amendments

and interpretations (the “new HKFRSs”) issued by

the HKICPA, which are relevant to and effective

RAEEH_FT—TFLH—-HH for the Group’s financial statements for the annual
g Fn 2 T HIR - WERAEE period beginning on 1 July 2010:
a6
BRMBRSEN(BIR)  FRMBREED L HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs
BREHRUENS (BTX) HROAE Amendments to HKAS 32 Classification to Rights Issues
BRMBRSENEN Wk BEROHEH Amendments to HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment - Group
(3T%) SEMRLERNRD Cash-settled Share-based
REBRFZRS Payment Transaction
BRRREST BBRRZ2R-EFA HK Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial
HRERMRERAER Statements - Classification
LEBERNAR by Borrower of a Term Loan
that Contains a Repayment
on Demand Clause
TH(ERYRELAREEE) NERTARRERAR HK(IFRIC)-Interpretation19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities
-RERE with Equity Instruments

BN XFrt &SN - R FT BB
HEEQ W ESANE B EHE
FENMMBENR 2 WL 25K
EREATE -

Other than as noted below, the adoption of the new
HKFRSs had no material impact on how the results
and financial position for the current and prior

periods have been prepared and presented.
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OPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED
FRSs (Continued)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective 1 July
2010 (Continued)

HKAS17 (Amendments) — Lease

As part of Improvements to HKFRSs issued in
2009, HKAS 17 has been amended in relation to
the classification of leasehold land. Before the
amendment to HKAS 17, the Group was required
to classify leasehold land as operating leases and to
present leasehold land as prepaid lease payments in
the statement of financial position. The amendment
to HKAS 17 has removed such a requirement and
requires that the classification of leasehold land
should be based on the general principles set out
in HKAS 17, that is, whether or not substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
a leased asset have been transferred to the lessee.
The Group concluded that the classification of such
leases in the PRC as operating leases continues
to be appropriate, and the change in accounting
policy on land leases has no impact on the
financial statements.

HK Interpretation 5 — Presentation of Financial
Statements — Classification by the Borrower of a
Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand

Clause

The Interpretation is a clarification of an existing
standard, HKAS 1
Statements. It sets out the conclusion reached by
the HKICPA that a term loan which contains a

clause which gives the lender the unconditional

Presentation of Financial

right to demand repayment at any time shall be
classified as a current liability in accordance with
paragraph 69(d) of HKAS 1 irrespective of the
probability that the lender will invoke the clause

without cause.
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3. MAFTREBITEBHE| 3. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED
X () HKFRSs (Continued)

H =~
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2010 (Continued)

HK Interpretation 5 — Presentation of Financial
Statements — Classification by the Borrower of a
Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand

Clause (Continued)

In order to comply with the requirements of
HK Interpretation 5, the Group has changed its
accounting policy on the classification of term
loans that contain a repayment on demand clause.
Under the new policy, term loans with clauses
which give the lender the unconditional right to
call the loan at any time are classified as current
liabilities in the statement of financial position.
Previously such term loans were classified in
accordance with the agreed repayment schedule
unless the Group had breached any of the loan
covenants set out in the agreement as of the
reporting date or otherwise had reason to believe
that the lender would invoke its rights under the
immediate repayment clause within the foreseeable

future.

The new accounting policy has been applied
retrospectively by re-presenting the opening
balances at 1 January 2009, with consequential
reclassification adjustments to comparatives for the
year ended 31 December 2009. The reclassification
has had no effect on reported profit or loss, total
comprehensive income or equity for any period

presented.
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Notes to the Financial Stateme

BE_F——H£A=1+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

3. KA NEBITEEBUHKER 3. AD
HER (4]|) HK

(@ RAHT  RETERBBRE
HEUA-R-B-Z2FLA-BER

(a)

OPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED

FRSs (Continued)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective 1 July
2010 (Continued)

(#&)
RNBEREESREVBAMRAE Effect of adoption of HK Interpretation 5 on
MR statement of financial position:
—E-FF —FTTNF
~NA=+H +tA—H
30 June 1 July
2010 2009
FAT FAT
HK$” 000 HK$” 000
(&=E35) (&=E5)
(Restated) (Restated)
O d) Increase/(decrease) in
mEEE - Current liabilities:
BEEEE Interest-bearing borrowings 1,161,096 582,000
ERBAILE Non-current liabilities:
BEBEEE Interest-bearing borrowings (1,161,096)  (582,000)

FEM L mEH B NES - 2
RBEB ST ERE 1R B RR
ZE® RE—MR-_FETNFL
RA—BZBIMNGEMBARMREK -

[N =]

EMEME R ERZHETRIBET
EEMBHEER

R BHRRUERTEE - X&E
I ELE R KA N HIE BMHE R AR E
B HR]IRIETT BB B REE
A - HAJgemAKE 2 MEHRRE
[ -

(b) (b)

As a result of the above retrospective
re-classification and restatement, an additional
consolidated statement of financial position at 1
July 2009 has been presented in accordance with

HKAST1 Presentation of financial statements.

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are

not yet effective

At the date of authorisation of these financial
statements, the following new/revised HKFRSs,
potentially relevant to the Group’s financial
statements, have been issued, but are not yet
effective and have not been early adopted by the

Group.
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BE_FT——& A=1+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

3. MAFTREBHITEEMBH 3. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED
X () HKFRSs (Continued)

H ==
(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are

(b) SHEMEMRERZHET, KB

EREMEHREED (F) not yet effective (Continued)
ERMBREEN(BIA)  BEMBREEN Gk HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 '
(ZF-2F)
2 (ARARRERE RERFES BN Amendments to HK(IFRIC) Prepayments of a Minimum Funding
REg)-REHL B - Interpretation 14 Requirement !
(B5T%)
BAQHENZMT (BEY) BBEALHE HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures '
BANBREENETR RR:eRAEER Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosure - Transfers of
(B5TE) Financial Assets 2

BREENZ1R (BTE)

ERHE: RERBLE

Amendments to HKAS 12

Deferred Tax - Recovery
of Underlying Assets °

BRI RS ERFo% SRIES HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments 3
BRI BREEDE05 GREBERE HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements °
BRUBAERAENR AT HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements °
BARBRERNENT EEMERERRE HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interest in Other Entities °
FARBREENE T DRBEENER HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement °
EEGHENZ1R (BX)  HEp2ANEEEL HKAS 1 (Amendments) Presentation of items in
25 Other Comprehensive Income *
BREHENZ19% BBEALRE HKAS 19 (Revised 2011) Related Party Disclosures *
(&iT011)
BEeH RS BB L HKAS 27 (Revised 2011) Separate Financial Statements °
(&2011)
EAQER 8% RERERAELF HKAS 28 (Revised 2011) Investments in Associates and
&ET2011) Joint Ventures °

R_F——F—A—HBXZE&R !

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

a2 F I HAM AR January 2011

? RIE——FEA—BxZER 2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
16 7 2 HARE A R July 2011

g R-ZTE——F—A—H=kz%&H 3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
12 FE R A K January 2012

¢ RIE—ZHF+A-HEZER *  Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
a2 F I HAM AR July 2012

5O RZE—=F—HA—HxzZEH 5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
16 7 2 HARE A R January 2013

ERPBHRELENF75E (BFTA)
BET ERMEEEB RS GIRE
REBERE  BUYBBRREREE
RREREAHDEREEERERIR
BN EARRBEZE - BRI
ME - WERREARAMEETH
BIAENERERS  BIZRIERE
SMREE ©

The amendments to HKFRS 7 improve the
derecognition disclosure requirements for transfer
transactions of financial assets and allow users
of financial statements to better understand the
possible effects of any risks that may remain
with the entity on transferred assets. The
amendments also require additional disclosures if a
disproportionate amount of transfer transactions are
undertaken around the end of a reporting period.
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BRAMATH

=28 ()

(b) B FEMRE M RE M2 H T T
BB REER (H)

3.

(b)

BEGFTERE125 (BT AR) R
IR WERBEEE IR =-F —
TE+_A%L EKER_F
——F—-A-BREM TAFRE
AIFER - MERT BB EFTERIE12
A AR BENENKREYE
ERREVEN RO SRS RBE
PR [E] By B EREREE R A BT -
ERIEER AR BEIENKREY
X2 EBHE B HEREE -
EFER  WERBEEEER
F125 (BT A) ARAKEE
THREVESSRBIHERE
it - ELFE R AT BE S A HA A 5k DA BT HR
FEXEARE - AEBERIEF (G

ERZFEITNTE -

BT HBBEEH, 3. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED
HKFRSs (Continued)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are

not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS12 Deferred Tax: Recovery
of Underlying Assets was issued in December
2010 and will be effective from 1 January 2012,
with earlier application permitted. Before the
amendments to HKAS12, deferred tax liability has
been recognised for investment properties carried
at fair value on the basis that the carrying amounts
of investment properties would be recovered
through use. The amendments include a rebuttable
presumption that investment properties carried
at fair value will be recovered through sale.
The directors anticipated that the application of
amendments to HKAS12, if adopted, might have
material impact on the current or prior period as
certain investment properties of the Group will be
recovered through sale. The Group is in the process
of assessing the impact from the application of the

amendments.
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BE_FT——& A=1+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

3. MAFTREBITEBHER 3. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED
XA (45F) HKFRSs (Continued)

H ==
(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are

(b) EHEMEMRERZHET, KB

EEMBHREER (R

RIEFBVHBREERNEIR - 8
TEBEESRMEEMNEHELR
TREENANBRESRER LM
o emMEENBARAAEENK
REHEAATENEREE - 2R
BEEZKSS ARG ER - H3E
RPEHRTERI  BRAERHE
Hit2m S P EREHEBE - &
B BRELENFIREME LS
FAERE3RE SR A B E
RMFTERTE - HIEEREAAE
B ABENEREBERIN - 5
BEREERRESHMERRAE
EESNSRRAE M2 aE T
R BRIFEESEXNIIERNSFHEE
i - BIERIE © tobh - BT KR
EEANFIRREBE T H B ER
FIVRARSGEREREENRE
BAEERNER-

ARAPEEERY  IACEMSEE
AR B HIA IR R 46 2 & (B A
RANAEBZ G ERES -

AREBR EF ST BT
EEMBREENZBEETE 5
BRIRLL  EEEFLERRBA -
RS #E]IRIERT B BB R
FEATEHAEE 2 W HEHRRE
RERZE -

not yet effective (Continued)

Under HKFRS 9, financial assets are classified
into financial assets measured at fair value or at
amortised cost depending on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and
the contractual cash flow characteristics of the
financial assets. Fair value gain or loss will be
recognise in profit or loss except for those non-
trade equity investment, which the entity will have
a choice to recognise the gain and loss in other
comprehensive income. HKFRS 9 carries forward
the recognition and measurement requirements
for financial liabilities from HKAS 39, except for
financial liabilities that are designed at fair value
through profit or loss, where the amount of change
in fair value attributable to change in credit risk of
that liabilities is recognised in other comprehensive
income unless that would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch. In addition, HKFRS 9 retains
the requirements in HKAS 39 for derecognition of

financial assets and financial liabilities.

The directors of the Company anticipate that all of
the pronouncements will be adopted in the Group’s
accounting policy for the first period beginning

after the effective date of the pronouncement.

The Group is in the process of making an
assessment of the potential impact of these new/
revised HKFRSs and the directors so far concluded
that the application of these new/revised HKFRSs
will have no material impact on the Group’s

financial statements.
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BE_F——H£A=1+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

EARSHET R HE

RNEBEREBEL S N H M EFE T
FHE R FE - BEEREEREZER
THAREEHNHE -

REEEARKIEH AT KRR o [EaHiE
RERERRLEERGERBT - ZMAFT
MBEEHEERBER T —MHRFE
ZREESIREAXRENRRLDT

RAMERMHE - BERREAAEE
Ga

SE R RIB TS ED F B
% MBREE AR EESINE
BEEEERAE TERRAGES
WS RERETE - ARERTEH
VB ST ft {8 B 4 R DA R AR 1T 6 T
HEBRR EEAEBEEDAE -

I FE B 18

W_ZE——FXA=1+H —HEBEMK
BEEEERIEEE27,572,000% 7T
(ZZ—=% :25,396,00087C) BFEA
EEMGEMERRBRPER - BT
MEBEEEMNERIEREEEGERN
RRFHSI AR R IFERNRRHEER o
fin 5 E A B R RFERIEER D - &
ABGRERIEE EFHEEE - itk B#
SHEZABMHBEFPER -

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed

to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next

financial year are discussed below:

Estimate fair value of investment properties and

property, plant and equipment

The valuation of investment properties and land and
building classified under property, plant and equipment
under the fair value model requires management’s
input of various assumptions and factors relevant to
the valuation. The Group conducts annual revaluation,
using independent professionally qualified valuers. The
assumptions underlying the valuations are agreed with

the valuers prior to adoption.

Deferred tax

At 30 June 2011, a deferred tax asset of HK$27,572,000
(2010: HK$25,396,000) in relation to tax losses have
been recognised in the Group’s consolidated statement
of financial position. The recognition of the deferred
tax asset mainly depends on whether sufficient future
profits or taxable temporary differences will be
available in the future. In cases where the actual future
profits generated are less than expected, a material
reversal of deferred tax assets may arise, which would
be recognised in profit or loss for the period in which

such a reversal takes place.
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BE_F——%7A=1+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

5. WA
AEBY T EEBEMBEREMTIRN

W - ARBZEXBRKBZFER
HYUA ©

RAFER  REAEBEEZTBERKIE
BRZWAWT -

5. REVENUE
The Group’s principal activities are disclosed in Note 1
to these financial statements. Turnover of the Group is

the revenue from these activities.

Revenue from the Group’s principal activities
recognised during the year is as follows:
—T-FF
2010
THETT
HK$"000

HEEWA
MEEB WA
M B YA

Gross rental income
Estate management income

Interest income

36,524
1,803
463

53 = N B R
“E%@%%%%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%

¥ 9 3

38,790

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The executive directors have identified the Group’s
three product and service lines as operating segments as
further described in Note 2.22.

These operating segments are monitored and strategic
decisions are made on the basis of adjusted segment

operating results.
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BE_F——H£A=1+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

6. DIEXR (&) 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
—E——F 2011

WEME HEEE WXER
Property  Property Estate Hit A
sales rental management Others Total
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
TiEn TiEn TR TiEn TiEn

L'ON Revenue
MRE P W Revenue from external customers
mE D & From other segments
BH&EDBEA Reportable segment revenue
ERED BEF Reportable segment profit
HEMBENE Depreciation of non-financial assets
RENERAEE Increase in fair value of investment
Em properties

HERENFET Gain on disposal of investment properties

BAREEFIABE  Increase in fair value of financial assets
LEREE at fair value through profit or loss
RAEEEM

HERDABEFA  Gain on sale of financial assets

Bal/eREE at fair value

R through profit or loss
EHEIHEE Reportable segment assets
ERFERBHHHEE  Additions to non-current segment assets

(EBIERKM) (other than financial instruments)

s m during the year
EHEIHER Reportable segment liabilities
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2\ 32

& (&)

D 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
—E—FF 2010
WEHLE  wERE  WEER
Property  Property Estate Hith X
sales rental management Others Total
TER TAET THT TAT TER
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$'000 HK$’ 000
KA Revenue
INRE P Ua Revenue from external customers = 36,524 1,803 = 38,327
REMS From other segments = 2,466 17,508 = 19,974
& 2 HBBA Reportable segment revenue = 38,990 19,311 - 58,301
JE R &5 2 i A Reportable segment profit - 227,207 1,539 16,964 245,710
FERMEENE Depreciation of non-financial assets = 510 = = 510
RENWEDAEE Increase in fair value of investment
2 properties - 199,952 S S 199,952
BAREMEFABE  Increase in fair value of financial assets
LEREE at fair value through profit or loss
RABEEM - - - 2,371 2,371
HERDAEEFA  Gain on sale of financial assets
BazeRAE at fair value
B through profit or loss - - - 12,073 12,073
EREIBEE Reportable segment assets 1,436,285 3,564,248 236 98,996 5,099,765
ERFERBDHMPEE  Additions to non-current segment assets
(GBI ARKRM) (other than financial instruments)
gl during the year = 29,866 = - 29,866
EREIBEE Reportable segment liabilities 26,811 252,922 89 304 280,126
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6. DEER (F) 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
AEEzEZEDB 2 AMENEE T The totals presented for the Group’s operating segments
EPEHFTEHBEREMEREROT - reconcile to the Group’s key financial figures as

presented in the financial statements as follows:

—E-FF

2010

FHE T

HK$’ 000

JE#R & o BB A Reportable segment revenue 58,301
FLERA Interest income 463
5> SR U A E 88 Elimination of inter segment revenue (19,974)
EBRRA Group revenue 38,790
—E-FF

2010

FHET

HK$"000

J& 3 & o FB & A Reportable segment profit 245,710
RO B R RHA Unallocated corporate income 86,542
AROBRAAIX Unallocated corporate expenses (33,391)
B 75 AR A Finance costs (13,922)
FR 156 A1 g Profit before income tax 284,939
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6. DEER (&) 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

—E-FF

2010

FAET

HK$"000

JE¥E D EBE E Reportable segment assets 5,099,765

HihARIEE Other corporate assets 187,151

SBEEE Group assets 5,286,916

—E-FF

2010

FAT

HK$’ 000

EREDHMEIE Reportable segment liabilities 280,126

TiIE Taxation 3,020

IR E B 18 Deferred tax liabilities 379,909

- /NI R Other corporate liabilities 1,378,124
SBRE Group liabilities

2,041,179
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BE_F——H£A=1+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

6.

2R E R () 6.
AEBEMIIKREFL W RIEREEE
(2T ARSI AREREI DT

BB CERH) Hong Kong (domicile)

R Macau

S i Malaysia

R EE AR A The People’s Republic
(T E]) of China (“PRC")

EEMMEDRIEZRBE 2 REHEXE
M2 BRI SR - ERMBEE M
A RZ B E P D IR A 5 o

RABRREER AR AEBZ X2
LEMEREL  RREBEFTBYHERE
ERIBHBEDBHER - BEREARERE
Hh o

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
The Group’s revenues from external customers and its
non-current assets (other than financial instruments) are

divided into the following geographical areas:

IREF W
Revenue from ERBEE
external customers Non-current assets
—E-EF —E-EF
2010 2010
FET TFET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
35,389 2,589,468
- 821,523
3,393 232,628
8 42
38,790 3,643,661

The geographical location of customers is based on the
location at which the services were provided or the
goods delivered. The geographical location of the non-
current assets is based on the physical location of the

assets.

The Company is an investment holding company and
the principal place of the Group’s operation is in
Hong Kong. For the purpose of segment information
disclosures under HKFRS 8, the Group regarded Hong

Kong as its country of domicile.
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BE_F——%7A=1+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

H At g A 7. OTHER INCOME
—E-FF
2010
THET
HK$"000
Bt #& B B YA Dividend income from equity
investments 2,823
HERAREBETA Gain on disposal of financial assets
BENSREEEN at fair value through profit or loss 12,073
PE 3 R H BB Net exchange gain 12,593
FESE A AR E SR B B Reversal of provision for late payment
B (Hrat) charges (note) 41,422
H At & W BR BORLE Reversal of impairment losses on
BB E (A aE) other receivables (note) 31,624
FETEWA Sundry income 903
101,438

B BE_ZT-—ZTFA=THILFE
A AEEETABAFRBEMMNZ
T BREZTEENRI R ER
® AFENZREBEILEEHE
T2 M Bt - G R e E R R
ST TR R I E th B UK BR OB E IS
#H - H&8EH Rl AE41,422,0007% 7T
31,624,000/ 7T °

Note: During the year ended 30 June 2010, the Group has
completed the land acquisition in Hangzhou, PRC.
The respective late payment charges were waived and
the deposits paid in prior years were not forfeited by
the seller. In these respects, reversal of provision for
late payment charges and impairment loss on other
receivables of HK$41,422,000 and HK$31,624,000

respectively were made in prior year.
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8. MIMAE 8. FINANCE COSTS
—ET—F
2010
FHET
HK$" 000
FMEER : Interest charges on:
RITERRBEXEA Bank loans and overdrafts wholly
RAFAZHEER repayable within five years 13,340
EE=BF(M5E30() Advances from a director (note 30(a)) 4,269
HmEEER Other incidental borrowings costs 3,055
REEER Total borrowing costs 20,664
W BIEFERRT Less: interest capitalised into
MENEE properties under development
&R (#at) for sale (Note) (6,742)
13,922
it - EEBREANFE1.186%2 Note: The borrowing costs have been capitalised at a rate of
1.6625% (ZZE—FF : 0.81% 1.186% — 1.6625% (2010: 0.81% — 1.41%) per annum.
-1.41%) EARAL -
WARITERLREYTHNMBKE  Ed4 This represents the finance costs of bank loans and overdrafts,
BEEZRARAWMEZEZBHE (AR which including term loans which contain a repayment on
BEREFRNIERNERIBEER - demand clause, in accordance with the agreed scheduled

repayments dates set out in the loan agreements.
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BE_F——%7A=1+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

9. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

Profit before income tax is arrived at after charging/

9. BRB A= A
MRBLATE AR (GEA) THIHEE :

(crediting) the following:

—E-FF
2010
FHET
HK$"000
B B AR R A BR Profit before income tax is arrived
(Gt A) T5IRE ¢ at after charging/(crediting):
BITRA Staff costs (include directors’
(BREEEWS) emoluments)
e TEREMMEF  Salaries, wages and other benefits 12,734
TERERINEFIFHEIHEF Contribution to defined contribution
plans 236
=BT B & Auditors’ remuneration 501
e Depreciation 3,441
REMEELES Direct outgoings in respect of
WA B B B2 A investment properties that generate
rental income 10,529
BREMEREESE Direct outgoings in respect of
e WA EEKA investment properties that did not
generate rental income 61
HEME HBER Loss on disposals of property,

KRB EE plant and equipment -
328 AR 185 s O] ¢ Reversal of provision for bad debts (37)
HEREMEER Gain on disposal of investment properties —
MTESMIAERRMEME  Loss on change in fair value of

L e EiE derivative financial instruments* 304
DAEENREMLESR *  Included in other operating expenses
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10. FF 8% (5t A) X H 10.INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE

BANGB IR E NG EREEF
AL E16.5% (ZZF—FF : 16.5%) &
1 o BINGER Z BB IIRIB G R Z 5T
ERB A IEASELEEBRARR

AREE -

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate
of 16.5% (2010: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable
profit for the year. Taxation on overseas profits has been
calculated on the estimated assessable profit for the
year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the countries

in which the Group operates.

—E-FF
2010
FHE T
HK$’ 000
EABLIE Current tax
—&8 — Hong Kong
REFEHRIEA Current year 1,988
TE(ZR) DB (Over)/Underprovision in respect
of prior years 418
2,406
— &N — Overseas
RFEHIA Current year 127
EF DB Underprovision in respect
of prior years 311
438
2,844
I FE B 18 Deferred tax
PN Current year 23,054
&R (GtA) X H Total income tax (credit)/expense
W 25,898

131

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED &4 (£E) GRAA ANNUAL ReporT 2011 3R



MEHBEME
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10. Fr 8% (5t AN) X (&) 10.INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE
(Continued)
BETECHERERREANREN S Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting
) profit at applicable tax rates:
—E-FF
2010
FHET
HK$’ 000
BR B4 AT & A Profit before income tax 284,939
REBEMNEHRH X Tax at Hong Kong profits tax rate
16.5%x & of 16.5% (2010: 16.5%)
T—TF
16.5%) 2 Bi18 47,015
A 2 B 5 52 2 Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 5,950
BBERFUES 2 RIS 2 Tax effect of non-taxable revenue (22,725)
BN R Z Rl 2 TR 72 Tax effect of differences in overseas
tax rates (7,192)
RERHBERZ Tax effect of unused tax losses
MBTE not recognised 1,599
FRANAAE R BRI  Tax effect of prior year’s unrecognised
BB TE tax losses utilised during the year (2,001)
RO L EREWE Tax effect of temporary differences
FRAZHBEEZRER derecognised in associated with the
2 B disposal of investment properties -
f@wﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬁwz Recognition of previously unrecognised
ELETIBE E deferred tax asset 2,523
TE(Z8) LB (Over)/Underprovision in prior year 729
FrE® (B4) /X Income tax (credit)/expense 25,898
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BE_F——H£A=1+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

1. AX2FFEAEBMLER 11.PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF
RARBHEARARBGEES RN THE COMPANY
295,234,000/ 5t (ZE —ZFF : )@ Fl Of the consolidated profit attributable to the owners
232,722,000/ 7T, B # /& 82,952,000 of the Company of HK$295,234,000 (2010: profit of
BELTZEB (T —ZF %A HK$232,722,000), a loss of HK$2,952,000 (2010: profit
39,714,000 70) E R AR Rl B 15 & of HK$39,714,000) has been dealt with in the financial
FRERIE o statements of the Company.
12.R 2 12.DIVIDENDS
(@ FEFERE (@) Dividends attributable to the year
—T-TF
2010
FEXT
HK$’ 000
A HA iR 2 A4 AL Interim dividend of HK4cents
TE—ZF (2010: 3 cents) per
378D ordinary share 10,220
#ER B OREA AR B Proposed final dividend of
T &4.58 AL HK4.5 cents (2010: HK4 cents) per
—E-THF: ordinary share (Note)
47%AL) (A EE) 13,926
24,146
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BE_F——%7A=1+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

12.8 B (&) 12.DIVIDENDS (Continued)

(@) XERE (F]) (@) Dividends attributable to the year (Continued)
—E-—F2HHREEHARR Scrip dividend alternative was offered to
BHRRER  ERDERRE shareholders in respect of the 2011 interim
=g (U N dividend. This alternative was accepted by the

shareholders as follows:

—E-TF
2010
THET
HK$ 000
A2 - Dividends:

B Cash 1,357
PARRAR B Share alternative 8,863
10,220

Yok Note:
REE R &g%z;ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ 5] I;ﬁ AR 4 H The final dividend proposed after the reporting date has not
ERAABE BBAEEZE —FXA been recognised as a liability at the reporting date, but will be
=+ HIEEZRE ,ﬁ%quzl 5\59% ° reflected as an appropriation of retained profits in the financial

statements for the year ending 30 June 2012.
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12.8 5 (&) 12.DIVIDENDS (Continued)
(b) ERFRAERISHEFYBEF (b) Dividends attributable to the previous financial

ERE year, approved and paid during the year
—E-TF
2010
THET
HK$"000

FFHFBRFEERL  Final dividend in respect of the
IR B R4 previous financial years,
—ETF of HK4 cents (2010: NIL cents)

0 &AL per ordinary share -
— T TE Y REIRR SR AR Scrip dividend alternative was offered to
SRR R . pRIE O R shareholders in respect of the 2010 final dividend.
ZF This alternative was accepted by the shareholders

as follows:
—T-FF
2010
TET
HK$’ 000

RS Dividends:

RE Cash _
AR AL B Share alternative -
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MEBEREM=E
Notes to the Financial Statements

BE_F——%7A=1+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

13.EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per
share is based on the following data:
b= Earnings
—E-FTF
2010
TETT
HK$ 000
REEZFE ARG Profit attributable to owners of
w A A EERER the Company for the purpose of
NE#ERAN calculating basic and diluted
earnings per share 232,722
BeEE Number of shares
—E-FF
2010
BT ERAR 2 N Weighted average number of
P B E TR ordinary shares for the purposes of
BEREF basic earnings per share 299,099,205
EEREE#RETE Effect of dilutive potential
ordinary shares:
0 B R Warrants 20,559,959
B 31T R Nk Weighted average number of
BT EER
e 2

ANNUAL RePORT 2011 53§

ordinary shares for the purposes of
diluted earnings per share

319,659,164
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BE_F——H£A=1+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

BEERESREEAEM= 14.DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
141 EEME 14.1 Directors’ emoluments
KANRIEEEWskEW 2l B %8 The aggregate amounts of emoluments received or
m receivable by the directors of the Company are as
follows:

A= 11 R

REWAR T EH R

Salaries, Contribution

EEHe allowances to defined
Directors’ and benefits contribution BnE
fees in kind plans Total
THER THER TR THER
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

—E——F 2011

WITESE: Executive directors:
iR Chao Sze Tsung Cecil
%% Ho Sau Fun Connie
HIR B Yung Philip
i Chao Howard
BAZ Chao Gigi

FRTES Non-executive directors:
BRI Leung Wing Kong Joseph*
RE EL* Lam Ka Wai Graham*
BFRIE Sun Ping Hsu Samson*
ZRE Lee Ding Yue Joseph
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14.EEREHREBAEMS (F) 14.DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

(Continued)
141 EEE L (F) 14.1 Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
e =] RIK
REMH & BEKGE
Salaries, Contribution
EEME allowances to defined
Directors’ and benefits contribution k]
fees in kind plans Total
TAT TAET TAT THET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
—T-%F 2010
WITES: Executive directors:
Fichnd Chao Sze Tsung Cecil = 6,977 = 6,977
%% Ho Sau Fun Connie 20 576 12 608
PR Yung Philip 20 440 12 472
i= BaW Chao Howard 20 586 12 618
FHTES: Non-executive directors:
RETH Leung Wing Kong Joseph* 20 - - 20
MK B Lam Ka Wai Graham* 48 - - 48
BRIE Sun Ping Hsu Samson* 20 - - 20
ZRE Lee Ding Yue Joseph 20 — - 20
168 8,579 36 8,783
* B IEITES * Independent non-executive directors
BHE_E-TFEN_ET——FNA No directors have waived or agreed to waive any
—t+HIEFEYEEENEXRE emoluments in respect of the years ended 30 June
RE I & - 2011 and 2010.
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14.EENENEBAEMS (&) 14.DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

42 BESEMEMAL 14.2 Five highest paid individuals

EREBEAKRERF AU RSFH
MALTHR 2= (ZT—FF: =
fEEZHMEYERRE EXZ2
SI2AMA - B TMU(ZF—F
FomMi) BETZ2E X NBMEFE

The five individuals whose emoluments were the
highest in the Group for the year included three
(2010: three) directors whose emoluments are
reflected in the analysis presented above. The
emoluments payable to the remaining two (2010:

two) individuals during the year are as follows:

m
—E-EF
2010
FAET
HK$" 000
e 2R EY Salaries, allowances and
Ik benefits in kind 1,011
BRARMEFRET B Contribution to defined
contribution plans 24
1,035
& 2 #BRa0 T - The emoluments fell within the following bands:
< 48 Bl AE
Number of individuals
—E-ZTF
2010
0 to 1,000,000/ C Nil to HK$1,000,000 2
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BE_F——%7A=1+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

15.R&EY %= 15.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
FEHBE2EHEERTEHEETBRR Changes to the carrying amounts presented in the
RIEBAM M T - consolidated statement of financial position can be

summarised as follows:

AEE
The Group
—E-FF
2010
FHET
HK$"000
rAREE At fair value
RtA—RBZEEE Carrying amount at 1 July 3,309,209
DE 3 = &R Exchange differences 19,861
- U R BEE X Additions — acquisitions and
subsequent expenditure 29,198
H & Disposal -
~RrEESRE Change in fair value 199,952
RAA=+HEEREE Carrying amount at 30 June 3,558,220
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BE_F——H£A=1+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

15. RE Y % ()
AEEBREMETIREATRBHS -

15.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Investment properties of the Group are held under the

following lease terms:

AEE
The Group
—E-FF
2010
FHE T
HK$"000
UREFEZ LM Land in Hong Kong:

REITE L Long lease 2,109,900
Fh HAFE 4 Medium-term lease 394,200

R EBEBHEINZ T4 Land outside Hong Kong:
IKARIE Freehold 232,597
FRERF A Short-term lease 821,523
3,558,220

REYMEENR _T——FRA=1THK
BHELEKRERFEREBER AR
N2REREYE - BRI BB
S BEEES BRI ER AR A F R 1T
AR AT] - Roma Appraisals Limited -
£5HH B AN =5 FT X Henry Butcher
Malaysia Sdn. Bhd.#1T{h{E - EH A
MEERFHIERPRER -

AEBEBMRHRSESHRLEBME:ZE
2,496,079,0008 T (Z T — T F :
2,556,997,000%870) < & TR EWE
EARER - LUERUR TAEE 2 RTT
B & (M5E35)

Investment properties were revalued on 30 June 2011
by independent, professional qualified valuers, K.T.
Liu Surveyors Limited, Roma Appraisals Limited, Joy
Choi Arquitecta and Henry Butcher Malaysia Sdn. Bhd.
on market value basis on their existing development
stage and usage and by reference to recent market
transactions for similar properties in the same location
and condition. The revaluation gains were recognised

in profit or loss for the year.

Certain investment properties of the Group with an
aggregate carrying value at the reporting date of
HK$2,496,079,000 (2010: HK$2,556,997,000) were
pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the
Group (Note 35).
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BE_FT——& A=1+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

16.M)2% - s % 1E
AEH

N=BEhEARZTER
ERNFLA-A

R

i

2k

REEFR

BE-2-ZEXA=1H
BYEEEE

B 2%

2]

g

B

AR REEFE

R-Z2-2FXA=*H
A

b1

2EE

REEFR

BE-2-BFxA=1H
LFEE

ROEEEFE

B EE

#m

&

HE

ENHHE

MAREERE
R-B-—-%5xA=+H
A

fti{E
25N E

REERE

16.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

ANNUAL RePoRrT 2011 F#R

The Group
BEEIHEK
BFEER B4
ZEHE RER
landand EFERE
building Furniture, ~REREH
held for own fittings and Motor
use carried office  vehicles and “mey
at fair value equipment  accessories Total
FTET TET TEL TAEL
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$"000 HK$"000
At 30 June 2009 and
1 July 2009
Cost - 8,093 6,673 14,766
Valuation 80,774 = = 80,774
Accumulated depreciation (2,774) (6,385) (2,887) (12,046)
Net book amount —r8000 _ 1708 _3786 _83,494
Year ended 30 June 2010
Opening net book amount 78,000 1,708 3,786 83,494
Exchange differences - 4 1 5
Additions - 668 155 823
Depreciation (1,625) (510) (1,321) (3,456)
Revaluation 3,625 - - 3,625
Closing net book amount 80,000 1,870 2,621 84,491
At 30 June 2010
Cost - 8,781 6,844 15,625
Valuation 84,399 - . 84,399
Accumulated depreciation (4,399) (6,911) (4,223) (15,533)
Net book amount —00000 _1870 _2621 _84,491
Year ended 30 June 2011
Opening net book amount 80,000 1,870 2,621 84,491
Exchange differences = (13) = (13)
Additions - 1,110 266 1,376
Depreciation = (554) (1,352) (1,906)
Disposals = (146) = (146)
Reclassification = 4 (4) =
Closing net book amount 80,000 2,271 1,531 83,802
At 30 June 2011
Cost - 9,779 6,930 16,709
Valuation 80,000 - - 80,000
Accumulated depreciation = (7,508) (5,399) (12,907)
Net book amount 80,000 2,271 1,531 83,802
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BE_F——H£A=1+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

16. Y13 ~ BN (E) 16.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

FELZH1,906,0008 L (ZF—FF -
3,441,000 7T) EETTRERP X B
moA& L (ZE—24F : 15,00087T) 2
EREEERFMWEFEREL -

REBURE B T REFARRAM
ETARE - TtHEBFER-T——
FRNAZTBEEREMEEEZERE
L - LB Z TSR ERE
VEXEAERMGERMZEREBEENT
BRAREITIHE -

HAYR - #as R BIARAR R
B -

B REFTARANEREESR - A2
B

%N Cost
ExtineE

R FE

AEBEZ T REFREER 2K T
& A£80,000,0008 T (=T —FF :
80,000,000/ 7T) E R AR B ZR1TE
RAE IR o

bl

Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

(Continued)

Depreciation expenses of HK$1,906,000 (2010:
HK$3,441,000) has been expensed in administrative
expenses and HK$Nil (2010: HK$15,000) has been

capitalised in properties under development for sales.

The Group’s land and building are situated in Hong
Kong and held under long lease. The land and building
were revalued on 30 June 2011 by independent,
professional qualified valuer, K.T. Liu Surveyors Limited
on market value basis and by reference to recent market
transactions for similar properties in the same location

and condition.

Other property, plant and equipment are stated at cost

less accumulated depreciation.

If the land and building were stated on the historical

cost basis, the amounts would be as follows:

TEE
The Group
—E-FF
2010
THETT
HK$"000

54,000
(3,240)

50,760

All the Group’s land and building with an aggregate
carrying value at the reporting date of HK$80,000,000
(2010: HK$80,000,000) were pledged to secure banking
facilities granted to the Group (Note 35).
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17. BBERK 17.MORTGAGE LOANS
rEE
The Group
—E—FF
2010
FETT
HK$"000
BREX Mortgage loans 1,625
RERBE Provision for doubtful debts (1,505)
120
R —FRE Bz 31D Portion due within one year
BT AEUWE SR included under trade and
EHAME ZERERA other receivables (12)
MBEEZIERD Non-current portion included under
aB1n non-current assets 108
hHEZBERAEERRRETLHE The mortgage loans are secured and interest-bearing at
BAEMNI75% (ZF—FF : 1.5%= 1.75% (2010: 1.5% to 1.75%) above the Hong Kong
1.75%) 5t EF B - IRIBEFH B AE dollar prime rate per annum. The mortgage loans are
B o repayable by monthly instalments.
TEESRIEHERTER AR - ANE Before accepting and approving a new loan to a debtor,
BRETEERAETUTIEERSAZLES the Group performs credit check to assess the potential
BEEEZ AEECRABRBERZE debtor’s credit quality. All of the Group’s mortgage
W IBETHER R HEEEK - B loan receivables have been reviewed for indicators of
RMENLEBEERERZBHRHRKE A impairment. The impaired mortgage loans receivables
B IR R 8 B R A e B T e E I fEEK o are due from debtors experiencing financial difficulties

that were in default or delinquency of payments.
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17. 2 BERK (&) 17.MORTGAGE LOANS (Continued)
BRERERZBEZ RIRBEENOT : Movements on the provision for doubtful debts of

mortgage loan receivables are as follows:

rEE
The Group

—ET-EF

2010

FETT

HK$"000

RtA—A8 At 1 July 1,521

JF& L R T R (B B Impairment loss reversed (16)

RAA=+H At 30 June 1,505

R-ZE——FNA=1H KEBFREW As at 30 June 2011, mortgage loans receivables of

RIBERA108,0008 T (ZF—FTF: HK$108,000 (2010: HK$120,000) were neither past due

120,000/ 7T) 3 K i@ HA sk ¢ R (8 - b nor impaired. These related to a number of diversified

BENNERAERNREARABITE debtors for whom there was no recent history of default.
24k -
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1. HbEMEE
Hih e MEEBIETIRE

18.OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Other financial assets include the following

investments:
rEE FNE
The Group The Company

—T—FF —T—TF

2010 2010

FET TET

HK$" 000 HK$’ 000
HEZINEHES ©  Held-to-maturity
EEEERS debt securities,

at amortised cost
&% Debenture 1,452 -

BHZBIHREABFRIZ%  FFEFIRE
—R-RZE-—RAFETZARH X5
HHMOETHRAEB - WEEEHED
BHAS B RE °

R-ZZTE—ZTFEXAZTHLEENA
A {EE A1,468,0008 7T © BIFERITIE
M BEER -

19.f 8 A Al 2 ==

LMD - BAAE
BB B 18

Unlisted shares, at cost

Impairment loss

The debenture return interest of 13% per annum
payable semi-annually, and mature in December 2015.
The counterparty has a minimum B1 rating. None of

these assets is past due or impaired.

The fair value of these investments at 30 June 2011
was approximately HK$1,468,000, which had been

determined by reference to the price quoted by bank.

19.INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES
AT
The Company
—T—FF
2010
THETT
HK$’ 000

275,284
(17,893)

257,391
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19. M B RARl 2 x= (&)
(a) FEMLFETRTE A RIFRIE T A R
MEETENABERTERESR
BEE+-EARNEER EBRIEA
A IE R E KB A B IE (B
Br¥E ) o 5 A173,474,0007%8 7T
(ZZ— T4 : 438,133,000/ 7T)
RE(ZT—ZF : 08) AR
OZEBNFEFESHE - RF|EH -
BEBRFEFNEE45% (T —TF:
45T RABEEE AR EBERSE °

(@)

AV

FE s AT BT B8 X B SRR T SR K
HERERETERPRAEER

(b)
JE & TA
KEE BRAVETHEQRIRK
42 %8 5 5l £480,360,0007%8 7T (=
T —ZF :451,571,0008 70) &
15,769,000 L (Z T —F F :
459,063,000/ 7T) &= @ & 7E F
= F 2425 5 kIl /688,931,000
BT (ZZE—ZFF : 711,348,000
#7T) %158,034,0008 L (ZE —
T4 ¢ 3,480,000 70) HBHEIZE
FIE - RIBER ' ZRRFRZERSF
FEEBO2%E1% (ZF—FF -
02%FE1%) - REZERAMEHEE
BEMESE -

ANV

19.INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are
unsecured and have no fixed repayment term but
repayment is not expected to be within twelve
months from the reporting date. Included in the
amounts due from and to subsidiaries are amounts
(net of provision) totalling HK$173,474,000
(2010: HK$438,133,000) and Nil (2010: HK$Nil)
respectively which are interest-bearing at floating
rates. At the reporting date, the effective interest
rate is 4.5% (2010: 4.5%) per annum. The carrying
amounts of the amounts due approximate their fair

values.

The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand except for amounts due from certain
subsidiaries with amount (net of provision) totalling
HK$480,360,000 (2010: HK$451,571,000)
and HK$15,769,000 (2010: HK$459,063,000)
respectively which are interest-bearing at fixed
rate and amount totalling HK$688,931,000 (2010:
HK$711,348,000) and HK$158,034,000 (2010:
HK$3,480,000) respectively which are interest-
bearing at floating rate. At the reporting date, the
effective interest rate of these amounts range from
0.2% to 1% (2010: 0.2% to 1%) per annum. The
carrying amounts of the amounts due approximate

their fair values.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BE_FT——& A=1+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

R-E——FRA=1tH TEMH
BARZEMMAT :
EMELLE
BEHE
Place of
WEAR incorporation or
Name registration/operation
ACE Cosmos Finance REBRAES
Limited British Virgin Islands
(//BVIN)
AEEEBRAA) R
Bongi Development Limited Hong Kong
SENFERERAA &
Cheuk Nang Property Hong Kong
Management Company
PXWERERRBEERAF BE
Dun Man Secretarial and Hong Kong
Management Services Limited
BiEREARAH &R
Golden Scheme Investment Hong Kong
Limited
RERERRAH &
Green View Investment Limited Hong Kong
BREXARAH R
Lo & Son Land Investment Hong Kong
Company Limited
BEEXARAH BR
Lucky Faith Properties Limited Hong Kong
Martego Sdn Bhd? SRAE
Malaysia
BRRRARAF &
New Grow Development Limited Hong Kong

19.INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(c) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 30 June

2011 are as follows:

BROREER/
BTN
Particulars of
issued ordinary
share capital/
registered capital

10,0008 FR 15T
10,000 US$1 shares

ARERIET
2 HK$1 shares

WRERIET
2 HK$1 shares

RER10BT
2 HK$10 shares

WRERTET
2 HK$1 shares

WRERIET
2 HK$1 shares

3,0008 &Rz 1007%5 7T
3,000
HK$100 shares

URERIAT
2 HK$1 shares

5,000,0008%
BRIMES

5,000,000
RMBT shares

10,000 B & 17% T
10,000 HK$1 shares

BRZRELH
Proportion of
ownership interest

E&
Directly

72.42%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

3
Indirectly

100%

100%

IERE

Principal activities

RARR

Investment holding

WEEE
Property trading

ESSE:

Property management services

WERERRK
Provision of secretarial and
management services

WERE

Property investment

REER
Mortgage lending, property
investment and development

HERERER
Property investment and
development

WERE

Property investment

WERERER
Property investment and
development

HWERE

Property investment

ANNUAL RePoRrT 2011 F#R
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19. (B ARz (5F)

(00 R-E——FXA=1+8H T2
BARZEHWMT : (&)

ERRIEE
Place of
WEAR incorporation or
Name registration/operation
Power Tripod Limited B
Hong Kong
EREEERDF B
Power Wide Development Hong Kong
Limited
EEFLERSE (RY) G
BRAE PRC
RERBEARAA B
Success Well Investment Limited® Hong Kong
AR (BM)BRAT BE
Top Regent (Asia) Limited Hong Kong
BARRARDNA R
Yorksbon Development Limited® Hong Kong
ANFHERZ (M) il
BRAR PRC

P BARZKRERRB TIRITIE
BRITHASEEERERZ M
W (faE35) -

¥ RAEHRAAUGERERGEME
BRBERARBEERK -

EERREEATEAEE ZXE
FEENTEMBARCSHEN L
RA o ULHNERR RN HE B
RAZFHBEREEEBNILE -

19.INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(c) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 30 June
2011 are as follows: (Continued)

BROREER/
BTN
Particulars of
issued ordinary
share capital/
registered capital

10,0008 &R 1E T
10,000 HK$1 shares

URERIAT
2 HK$1 shares

364,000,000\ R
RMB364,000,000

WRERIBT
2 HK$1 shares
100RER1IAET
100 HK$1 shares

WRERIBT
2 HK$1 shares

29,002,320% 7T
US$29,002,320

BRZRELH
Proportion of
ownership interest
E& 3
Directly  Indirectly

- 100%

100% =

100%

100%

= 71.69%

100%

= 100%

IERE

Principal activities

WEERLEE
Property development and
trading

WERE
Property investment and
investment holding

WERERER
Property development and
trading

WERE

Property investment

HWERERER
Property investment and
development

WERERER
Property investment and
development

HWEER

Property development

# Shares of these subsidiaries have been pledged to
banks as security for bank loan facilities granted to
the Group (Note 35).

#  Companies not audited by BDO Limited.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the
Company which, in the opinion of the directors,
principally affected the results or formed a
substantial portion of the net assets of the Group.
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.
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BE_F——%7A=1+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

20. HthERBEE

21.

BES

EFESEAAERRRERBRE
58 °

Club debenture

20.OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSET

AEE
The Group
—ET-FF
2010
THETT
HK$"000
950

Club debenture is stated at cost less accumulated

impairment losses.

SEYyx 21.PROPERTIES FOR SALE
AEE
The Group
—E-FF
2010
FHET
HK$ 000
BRPYE Properties under development 1,065,745
EEK % Completed properties 368,772
1,434,517

WIEEEAT11,041,0008 L (T —F
F 16,742,000 70) BRERFP M
B BMFERE1.186%—1.6625% (—
T—TF :0.81%E1.41%) °

FEYEBIRMEE366,423,0007 7T
—ZT—=4 : 378,745,000 7C) B F
EHIRIT + LUERUR TAEE 2 R1TH
& (f1at35) -

RZE——FR_ZF—FFRA=+
H FAZERTYERAERSHER
BT ABAFAERREE -

Total borrowing costs capitalised for the year included
in properties under development amounted to
HK$11,041,000 (2010: HK$6,742,000) with effective
capitalisation rate of 1.186% — 1.6625% (2010: 0.81%
— 1.41%) per annum.

Properties for sale with carrying value of
HK$366,423,000 (2010: HK$378,745,000) have been
pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the
Group (Note 35).

As at 30 June 2011 and 2010, all properties under
development are expected to be completed and sold

more than twelve months after the reporting date.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BE_F——H£A=1+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

2. B ARBEFTFTAEBEZNEEE 22.FINANCIAL ASSETS/LIABILITIES AT FAIR

EaE VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
AEE
The Group
—E—FF
2010
TAETT
HK$’ 000
RAREBEFAER Financial assets at fair value
NEMEE through profit or loss
FIEEE Held for trading
REZELETRERS Equity securities listed in Hong Kong 97,544
RAREEFABRR Financial liabilities at fair value
NEMEE through profit or loss
REEREH TN Held for trading or not qualifying
CRE=0 as hedges
TTESBITA Derivative financial instruments
BHEITETLER Securities derivatives 304
EIFAEBRMMIEALBEIS ABZ Certain financial assets at fair value through profit
MEMEERRESHAERES R or loss of the Group with an aggregate carrying
480,725,000 0 (Z & — T & - value at the reporting date of HK$80,725,000 (2010:
68,864,000/8 7T) ROEB T (ZE—F HK$68,864,000) and HK$Nil (2010: HK$20,406,000)
£|E : 20,406,000/ 7T) B FHEMIRIT were pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the
EmEFPAEBEETRE RAE Group and derivative financial instruments of the Group
l awmi BT A (#13235) (Note 35) respectively.
NEBEKRE FTBERBETETREY The fair value of the Group’s investments in listed
AR BEEDRENE.7NERES - securities and securities derivative have been measured

as described in Note 31.7.
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BE_F——%7A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

23. FE W B 5 AR5 R H th B I BR =K

FEWE SR  Trade receivables
wE=4, From third parties

HiEWERFX  Other receivables

TEfI R IE K& € Prepayments and
deposits

HAEUERFK  Other receivables

AEBEzERBEZERBEHESKA
MMEEBERA - EEZFEPA - A
SERETEEREUNEERZE
8% AEFTHNZRE  MERERE
FEHRC BNRBIE -

23.TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
FEE ARFE
The Group The Company
—E-FF —E-FF
2010 2010
THR TR
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

422

3,327
3,163

6,490

6,912

The trade receivables of the Group represent rental and
management fee in arrears. Before accepting any new
customers, the Group performs credit check to assess
the potential customer’s credit quality and tenants are
required to pay deposits. All invoices are due upon

presentation.
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BE_F——H£A=1+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

23.BENEBESESREMAEWEEE 23.TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(%)
EZeRREKE S K HEMEUIRRK
ZARBEAEEKRAELESE D5
REmzBHAERE -

RIEBERBENEZEH  BRESEARZ
Rk Mran T -

DRR30K 0-30 days
31—60K 31-60 days
61—90K 61-90 days
FBBIOKR Over 90 days

AEET—EAREH S EKERIR
BErkEBEEFRETBEREBER
BIERN -E_FT——FR_ZT—FF
NA=THIEMEFE - WEBBEE
AR IR T R R MR OB (BB 18 -

EEREEASECEBKRERZEBLA
BRI E R477,0008 T (Z T —ZTF :
422,000 7)) A E B2 AEBEARE
B2 B - ILEBERFERES AER
SEERIMEELE  BEBTEE
wik - EREMEEEFEEERREE
A ABE R KA AR KRG - F it &
FERRRIEL BERE - RERHNZ
BEei  AEERLESERATEREE
A -

R R - AR R
(=227 BB

(Continued)

The directors of the Group considered that the fair
values of trade and other receivables are not materially
different from their carrying amounts because these
amounts have short maturity periods on their inception.

Based on the debit note or invoice dates, the ageing
analysis of the trade receivables is as follows:

rEHE
The Group
—T-FF
2010
TAETT
HK$"000

256
56

110

422

At each reporting date the Group reviews receivables
for evidence of impairment on both an individual and
collective basis. No impairment has been recognised on
receivables through the provision account for the two
years ended 30 June 2011 and 2010.

Included in the Group’s trade receivables balance are
debtors with a carrying amount of HK$477,000 (2010:
HK$422,000) which are past due as at the reporting
date for which the Group has not made any provision.
These receivables are related to a number of diversified
debtors that has a good track record of credit with
the Group. Based on past credit history, management
believe that no impairment allowance is necessary
in respect of these balances as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances
are still considered to be fully recoverable. Except for
deposits received from tenants, the Group does not hold
any other collateral over these balances.

No amounts in relation to other receivables were past
due at the reporting date (2010: HK$Nil).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BE_FT——& A=1+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

. ENBRIZERAT BE
NTEIEERRRFRE

24. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO ULTIMATE
HOLDING COMPANY/RELATED
COMPANIES/NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

ZREAEEH 2B NERBRTFEFER The amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and have

By - HEREEHE AR EBEES °

no fixed repayment term. The carrying amounts of the

amounts due approximate their fair values.

FERRRAFFBUNT - RBER - H
BILRREE RS BIERE -

Details of amounts due from related companies are as
follows. At the reporting date, no provision had been

made for non-repayment of these amounts.

FARK
BXRE R-B-—-F
Maximum RA=TH R=-Z-%2F
amount #% tA-B&&H
BELAREH HEES outstanding Balance at Balance at
Name of related companies Connected director during the year 30 June 2011 1 July 2010
TERT TER TERT
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
HHEREMERAR HEEEL
Cecil Chao & Associates Limited Dr. Chao Sze-Tsung Cecil 1,200,000 = 1,200,000
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BE_F——H£A=1+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

2. ENE SRR HMEBEESR. 25.TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

AEE bNE
The Group The Company
—E-TF —E-TF
2010 2010
FHET FHET
HK$’ 000 HK$’000
BNE S RN Trade payables
NTE=%F To third parties 921 =
H b FB 11 BR X Other payables
HEEE Tenant deposit 7,030 —
H A & 1~ BR 3K Other payable and
REFE A accruals 33,214 332
40,244 332
41,165 332
FIBERFREH At - BNEZRE All amounts are short term and hence the carrying
RN RHERRAEHE AR BE values of trade and other payables are considered to be
ZEBMME - a reasonable approximation of their fair value.
BRBEZHE  ENESERARRED Based on the invoice dates, the ageing analysis of the
W - trade payables as of the reporting date is as follows:
rEH
The Group
—E-TF
2010
FEXT
HK$"000
DRR30K 0-30 days 606
31—60K 31-60 days 48
61—90K 61-90 days 48
FB3BI0K Over 90 days 219
921
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BE_F——%7A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

26. EEfEE 26.INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS
BERZEREESTOT The analysis of the carrying amount of borrowing is as
follows:
EE
The Group

—F——% ZF-FF

NA=T1H +H—H
30 June 2011 1 July 2010

(&) (R&E7)
(Restated) (Restated)
RBEE Current liabilities
IRITEFKMR —FAN  Portion of loans from bank
Bl ) due for repayment
within one year 171,841 536,000
IRITEFN —F1%  Portion of loans from banks
FEIWw B R ER due for repayment after
BB 1822 {5 K one year which contain a
repayable on demand clause 1,161,096 582,000
1,332,937 1,118,000
BT EZFEHBAMT The maturity of the above bank borrowings is as
follows:
rEE
The Group
—E-FF —ETNF
~NA=+H +tHA—H
30 June 2011 1 July 2010
(1&&51) (& &51)
(Restated) (Restated)
R —FR Within one year or on demand 171,841 536,000
BB —FET More than one year but not
ER_F more than two years 51,000 135,000
BB _FELZ More than two years but not
RAFRFEU L more than five years 1,110,096 447,000
1,332,937 1,118,000
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BE_F——H£A=1+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

26 EEEE (#&) 26.INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS

MEERAEZHFEREEER  B1TE
FRREEB 2EBBAEE1.50% (=F
—Z4F :1.09%)

EREERRAUNAERERENEH
B AR #ERAETIR o RAEM
HBONEREREFTE—FRBEER
fi B R BIE BRERIERARE D AR
—IERBAE  AHFERN—FARBE -

FBRTERTENEMBHRE —RE
A2 - BAREIERERER
AR EREREER - BE &1
AEBzEHERSNEEEHRTE
FAB BITREMNE N B REERIER
WiER - MERESAKREEEEETT
BRREZEREME -

AEBEETHERFEULERE  BF
TEHERZHATERMBEERER
SEEEFESUMEER  RITTTR
HENERAEENRER -A5EH
ZRBESEBRERECHNEENG
313 - RZE——FA=+H - 8F
FRRFENEREERER (ZE—F
F|) o

(Continued)

All borrowings are interest-bearing at floating rates. The
effective interest rate of the bank loans at the reporting
date is 1.50% (2010: 1.09%).

The interest-bearing bank borrowings, including
the term loans repayable on demand, are carried at
amortised cost. None of the portion of term loans due
for repayment after one year which contain a repayment
on demand clause and that is classified as a current

liability is expected to be settled within one year.

All of the banking facilities are subject to the fulfillment
of covenants that are commonly found in lending
arrangements with financial institutions. If the Group
was to breach the covenants the drawn down facilities
would become repayable on demand. In addition,
certain of the Group’s term loan agreements contain
clauses which give the lender the right at its sole
discretion to demand immediate repayment at any
time irrespective of whether the Group has met the

scheduled repayment obligations.

The Group regularly monitors its compliance with these
covenants, is up to date with the scheduled repayments
of the term loans and does not consider it probable
that the bank will exercise its discretion to demand
repayment for so long as the Group continues to meet
these requirements. Further details of the Group’s
management of liquidity risk are set out in Note 31.3.
As at 30 June 2011, none of the covenants relating to
drawn down facilities had been breached (2010: Nil).
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BE_F——%7A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

27 JEERL IR 27.DEFERRED TAXATION
BEFRIBUBEERERRFERIN Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary
TEMEI6.5%(ZF—FF :16.5%) differences under the liability method using a principal
sERETH - taxation rate of 16.5% (2010: 16.5%).
FAREHRBEESEBNOT - The movement during the year in the deferred tax

liabilities is as follows:

AEE
The Group

—E-FF

2010

THET

HK$"000

meA—8 At 1 July 355,289

N ER Exchange differences 968

EERETHER Recognised in profit or loss 23,054
EHEAEMEEWEER  Recognised in other

comprehensive income 598

RANA=+H At 30 June 379,909
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BE_F——H£A=1+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

27 IEFERIE (&)

FEREEHEAER B E (EERABE
TR B A R A BB T

EEHEAEE

R-ZEBAF+A—H
B E R
BERETHER
EEHEMEEREDER

I 5 E 8
BEEBDTHER
EEHEMmEEREER

R-ZE——HxXHA=+H

27 .DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities

jurisdiction) during the year is as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities

ER B E T E

At 1 July 2009

Exchange differences
Recognised in profit or loss
Recognised in other

comprehensive income

(prior to offsetting of balances within the same taxation

At 30 June 2010 and 1 July 2010

Exchange differences
Recognised in profit or loss
Recognised in other

comprehensive income

Accelerated MRE R
tax Revaluation B
depreciation  of properties Total
TET THET TET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
4,934 377,046 381,980
- 968 968
627 21,132 21,759
= 598 598
5,561 399,744 405,305
- 516 516
42 (11,290) (11,248)
5,603 388,970 394,573

At 30 June 2011
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BE_F——%7A=1+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

27 EEBIE () 27.DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)
EEREBEEE Deferred tax assets
REER
Tax losses
BT
HK$
R-_ZEEAFEA—H At 1 July 2009 (26,691)
EEBRPER Recognised in profit or loss 1,295
R-E—FFXA=+H At 30 June 2010 and 1 July 2010
—EF-FF+LA—H (25,396)
BEEZEPER Recognised in profit or loss (2,176)
R=-—ZT——FXxA=+H At 30 June 2011 (27,572)
TR ABERPERNT : The amounts recognised in the statement of financial
position are as follows:
REE
The Group
—ET-FF
2010
T
HK$"000
EEFIBE E Deferred tax assets (25,396)
BB IERE Deferred tax liabilities 405,305
EM AR MR F R Net deferred tax liabilities recognised
BRIER I B EIF R in the statement of financial position 379,909
REEREERIELSE Unrecognised deferred tax asset
B A 4 S B R R AR R ROR - R The Group has unrecognised deferred tax asset
BRI E1852,937,0008 T (—ZE—F in respect of tax losses at HK$52,937,000 (2010:
£ :32,785,00058 7T ) AR IET B E HK$32,785,000) due to unpredictability of future profit
= o RIBIHEHEED - ZEHIEEE streams. The tax losses do not expire under current tax
WERHA - legislation.
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BE_F——H£A=1+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

28. &< 28.SHARE CAPITAL
EERE BEARARRE
Authorised Issued and fully paid
Wit R&#A TR Rt:#E Tin
Notes Number of shares HKS'000  Number of shares HKS' 000
gRo.1ETLEBR Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each
RZEENELA-A At T July 2009 10,000,000,000 1,000,000 271,510,696 27,151
RARRSHEMEIRA  Issue of shares pursuant to scrip
dividend scheme 1(a) = = 5,908,869 591
RASAREEMETRN  lssue of shares by exercise of warrants 2 = = 69,247,952 6,925
RZE-FEXA=TH At 30 June 2010 and
R=5-5£tA-R 1July 2010 10,000,000,000 1,000,000 346,667,517 34,667
ANRK S EMEIREA  lssue of shares pursuant to scrip
dividend scheme 1(b) = = 13,028,357 1303
RAOGAREZMETRNG  Issue of shares by exercise of warrants 2 = = 42,610,519 4,261
WZB-—EXB=TE  At30June 2011 10,000,000,000 1,000,000 402,306,393 40,231
K&t - Notes:
1. UBRREGE 1. Scrip dividend scheme
(@ RZZE—ZF,ANAH  KXAQAF (@) On 4 June 2010, the Company issued and allotted a
BER-_ZE—ZZFERFA+_AHA total of 5,908,869 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
ME AP BT &) - LA1.50% 7T in the Company at HK$1.50 to the shareholders who
BT MO R SR EE. 1S TH R elected to receive shares in the Company in lieu of
3 3£5,908,869 48 T oL — T — cash for the 2010 interim dividend pursuant to the
EEPHEIR EGRIEBLRMA S 2 IR scrip dividend scheme announced by the Company
HogHREMNEEN HEBEZE on 12 May 2010. An amount of HK$8,272,000
8,272,000/ 8 tEEHE—_T—F in excess of par value was credited to the share
FERNA=Z1THIEFEEREER premium account for the year ended 30 June 2010.
E B -
b R=F-—FFF-_A=F+HE= (b) On 30 December 2010 and 20 April 2011, the

Z——FPA-+H  XQAFIR
BR=ZE—ZTF+A+ZHE=
Z——F A=+ N\B2IHHI
R EETE - R LAT.705 T &
2,758 LT o BL AR EEO.1
BITHRR D - $£7,760,1828% &
5,268, 175G TH T —ZFF K
HRE R - ——FRERER
BUARREZIRE -

Company issued and allotted a total of 7,760,182
ordinary shares and 5,268,175 ordinary shares of
HK$0.10 each in the Company at HK$1.70 and
HK$2.75 respectively to shareholders who elected
to receive shares in the Company in lieu of cash for
the 2010 final dividend and 2011 interim dividend
pursuant to the script dividend scheme announced
by the Company on 12 October 2010 and 28
February 2011.
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BE_FT——&£X A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

28. &7 (#8)
izt - (4

2. ALRRRER

(@)

RZZETNFMANA » ARA]
BRBRAEEMAESEFE AABRRK
7 A] B — 15 R AR ( — =
_gﬂzﬁﬂwu%$g J)
TTZNFRAMAB AR T%éﬁ
45,175, 6651”:? ZHERAR
% 48 75 —ZTFhH ARKRE
Mﬂﬂqﬁ}\ﬁ R=ZZFETENFARA
MBz2_—_ZE—ZFH AWMHENUY
SREEBER0.75F T (T HAE)
REBRED BEBER-_ZTEZTNF
+—A%T =T —FTF+—AR
iR REEER=_ZEZTNF
+—A-+HBAEEEK0.73
BIT o TN f£1T75£44,517,697
M (ZZEEZTNLF : 456,70513) —
g_gfﬁﬁﬂ uzuHX*g fé ’ ;:tgéé
1744,517,697 (ZZE T N F ¢
456,7058%) TR%0. 1B L 2 #7A% -
BT 2201,26310 =T —FF A A
REEEER _E—ZTFRAN
HEIHfEm -

— %

—EENF+—A+=H &K
Tﬁ;@ﬁ%%fﬁt&thﬁJrﬂi
RO EZE —HRIRESE (=
;—Z‘if‘i—f— ﬂwuﬂi*g J)
RZEENF+—A=+=H"
KA AlE1731,027,7911% — & —
§ﬂ5+ Huzuﬂﬁ%_no TE—=F
F+—ARBREFNFEARTR
—EETAF+—A=+=H=Z
—E-ZTF+—-—A=Z+=Z8B
%Diwuggﬁiﬂﬁ'l 60/%71 (T;ﬂ
%)wuﬁ%ﬁﬁ{ﬁo%g
FRAZET=ZE— ﬁiﬂﬂw
g% RBEER - —ZF
FAZ+RHBABRESRI 568
JLe FW - FEITE6,171,870(
(:§—§¢:247174941ﬁ>—
T-ZF+-ARREFE
2%176,171,8700% (=& — EE
24,717,4948%) & RO.1B T 2 %7

B o 82 2138,4271 —F—TF
T-ARKEIBIER_ZE—ZF

T—AZ+T=BEHEW -

28.SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

2. Bonus warrants

(@)

On 8 April 2009, the Company passed a resolution
to approve the issue of one bonus warrant for every
six existing shares of the Company held by the
shareholders (“2010 May Warrants”). On 4 May
2009, the Company issued 45,175,665 units of 2010
May Warrants. The holders of 2010 May Warrants
are entitled to subscribe at any time during 4 May
2009 to 4 May 2010 for fully paid shares of the
Company at an initial subscription price of HK$0.75
per share (subject to adjustment). Following the
2010 November Warrants issued in November 2009,
the subscription price was adjusted to HK$0.73 per
share on 25 November 2009. For the year ended 30
June 2010, 44,517,697 new shares of HK$0.10 each
share were issued upon the exercise of 44,517,697
units of 2010 Warrants. The remaining 201,263 units
of 2010 May Warrants were expired 4 May 2010.

On 13 November 2009,
resolution to approve the issue of one bonus warrant

the Company passed a

for every ten existing shares of the Company held by
the shareholders (“2010 November Warrants”). On
23 November 2009, the Company issued 31,027,791
units of 2010 November Warrants. The holders of
2010 November Warrants are entitled to subscribe at
any time during 23 November 2009 to 23 November
2010 for fully paid shares of the Company at an
initial subscription price of HK$1.60 per share
Following the 2011 May
Warrants issued in May 2010, the subscription price
was adjusted to HK$1.56 per share on 25 May 2010.
During the year, 6,171,870 (2010: 24,717,494) new
shares of HK$0.10 each per share were issued upon
the exercise of 6,171,870 (2010: 24,717,494) units
of 2010 November Warrants. The remaining 138,427
units of 2010 November Warrants were expired 23
November 2010.

(subject to adjustment).
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28. &7 (#8)
izt - (4

28

163

AFRRER ()

(c)

ﬂ*= —ZEFWPA=—_+—H" &K
NREBRERLESHEE TR
khﬁT%%—ﬁ%h%?ﬁ_
T——FHARKEE]) -
T-—ZTHFRA-_+AH - $QT%
1722,71226310 —_ & —— 5 H A
wuHﬁ*&ﬁ © _T——ﬂiﬂﬂ FVL/\HQ
% NEPBEBEAATR_-_Z—ZTFH
—+tBE-_ZT——FHA=-+
Huwﬁm% G A81.7078 7T (A]
HAE)RERD - BER=-Z——
F+-_A/A%T=-_E——F+=A8
RBEE RBEER_ZT—F
F+_A+HRBABREZTKI.67
BIL e TN - FETTE22,640,564
;M:%—ﬁiwzmw\—
g__ﬂzﬁﬂ wuHXEEh*Kfé
1722,640,5640% (— & — %‘RE :
12,7610%) T RO0.1B 7T 2 #TA% -
# T 258,938 —_FE——F 1A
AREEEOR _E——ERHA
—t+BEHEER-

RZE—ZFTF+=ZA—H AR
RAEARAERLASFE TR
e Al EE —HRRESE (=
T-——F+ - ARBEFE] -
m—% TZF+-A+=H0" XK
A 7] #1718,518,88610 —F — —
Fr-—ARKEEF - _F——F
TZARKREZRNFEAATRZ
ZE—ETHF+-A+=ZHBE=F
*¢+_ﬂ+_EIL‘/\?ﬂiEwE§
{flﬂX‘] 80/%7-5(—_|—uﬂ§&) u/ugﬁ%
fp o F A - EITHEL3,798,085(0
ZE——F+ZARKERE
HE1713,798,0850% B A%0.178 7T
Z%ﬁﬂx R-_ZE—F A=+
B 4,720,801 — T — — &
T ARBREZTEREITE -

| 4

I]]]

PR A LM sk R B a2l 2 2 317
B ERTTHERA RO UAAER -

RER > TEARRZHBARBE -
ek 3 {E RN Pl gh)

28.SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

28

Bonus warrants (Continued)

(¢) On 21 April 2010, the Company passed a resolution
to approve the issue of one bonus warrant for every
fifteen existing shares of the Company held by the
shareholders (“2011 May Warrants”). On 20 May
2010, the Company issued 22,712,263 units of 2011
May Warrants. The holders of 2011 May Warrants
are entitled to subscribe at any time during 20 May
2010 to 20 May 2011 for fully paid shares of the
Company at an initial subscription price of HK$1.70
per share (subject to adjustment). Following the
2011 December Warrants issued in December 2010,
the subscription price was adjusted to HK$1.67
per share on 15 December 2010. During the vyear,
22,640,564 (2010: 12,761) new shares of HK$0.10
each per share were issued upon the exercise of
22,640,564 (2010: 12,761) units of 2011 May
Warrants. The remaining 58,938 units of 2011 May
Warrants were expired 20 May 2011.

(d On 1 December 2010, the Company passed a
resolution to approve the issue of one bonus warrant
for every twenty existing shares of the Company held
by the shareholders (“2011 December Warrants”).
On 13 December 2010, the Company issued
18,518,886 units of 2011 December Warrants. The
holders of 2011 December Warrants are entitled to
subscribed at any time during 13 December 2010
to 13 December 2011 for fully paid shares of the
Company at an initial subscription price of HK$1.80
per share (subject to adjustment). During the year,
13,798,085 new shares of HK$0.10 each per share
were issued upon the exercise of 13,798,085 units
of 2011 December Warrants. As at 30 June 2011,
4,720,801 units of 2011 December Warrants
remained outstanding.

All shares issued as mentioned in Note 1 to Note 2 above
rank pari passu with the existing shares of the Company
in all respects.

None of the Company’s subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year.
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29.RESERVES
The Company
BRAGEE BRARKRE RERF “m
Share Special Retained Total
premium  capital reserve profits reserves
TET TET TET TEL
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
2010 interim dividend
approved and paid - - (10,220) (10,220)
Issue of share capital:
Pursuant to scrip
dividend scheme 8,272 = = 8,272
By exercise of warrants 65,916 - - 65,916
Share issue expenses (127) - - (127)
Transactions with owners 74,061 = (10,220) 63,841
Profit for the year = = 39,714 39,714
Total comprehensive
income for the year = = 39,714 39,714
Balance at 30 June 2010 1,096,650 320,065 175,347 1,592,062
2010 final dividend and
2011 interim dividend
approved and paid = = (30,592) (30,592)
Issue of share capital:
Pursuant to scrip
dividend scheme 26,377 = = 26,377
By exercise of warrants 68,536 - - 68,536
Share issue expenses (89) - - (89)
Transactions with owners 94,824 = (30,592) 64,232
Loss for the year - - (2,952) (2,952)
Total comprehensive
income for the year = = (2,952) (2,952)
Balance at 30 June 2011 1,191,474 320,065 141,803 1,653,342
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29. B AR @ (48) 29.RESERVES (Continued)
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The application of the share premium account is
governed by Section 48B of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

The exchange reserve for the Group has been set up
and will be dealt with according to the accounting

policy set out in Note 2.5 to the financial statements.

Special capital reserve arose from reduction in issued
share capital on 26 March 2001 with Court approval on
24 April 2001.

Pursuant to the undertakings given to the Court, the
credit amount arising from capital reduction has been
credited to a special capital reserve in the books of
account of the Company. So long as there shall remain
any debt or claim against the Company outstanding
at the date when the reduction of capital took effect
which, if such date were the date of the commencement
of the winding up of the Company, would have been
admissible in proof against the Company and the
person entitled to the benefit thereof shall not have
agreed otherwise, such reserve (i) would not be treated
as realised profit; and (ii) for so long as the Company
shall remain a listed company (as defined in the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance); would be treated as an
undistributable reserve of the Company for the purposes
of Section 79C of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
or any statutory re-enactment or modification thereof,
provided that the amount standing to the credit of the
special capital reserve may be reduced by the aggregate
of any increase in the issued share capital or in the
share premium account of the Company resulting from
an issue of shares for cash or other new consideration
or upon a capitalisation of distributable reserves after

the reduction took effect.
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30.EEFERAEALT ZEARRS

BRRAMBHRREMBOBREZRS,

TRANSACTIONS

30.SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY

In addition to the transactions/information disclosed

BRIN AR IAREBEAREA TR elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements,
FRETZEARS during the year, the Group had the following material
transactions with connected and related parties:
AEH
The Group
—E-%F
2010
it TERT
Note HK$’ 000
FehAEMEREERT Salaries and other short-term employee
XNFEEERAER benefits paid to key management
BREEREEM T4 personnel, including amounts paid
XNFEARAEEHE to the Company’s directors as
disclosed in Note 14 9,818
FEMTHESELS Interest paid to Dr. Chao Sze Tsung Cecil (a) 4,269
ZfFFCCAL Fees paid to CCAL (b)
Bk EMEXER Architect and other professional service fees 4,342
ATt R E GRPY) Fees paid to Cecil Chao Design (Macau)
B R 727 (“CCA Macau”) Limited (“CCA Macau”) (c)
Bl 6N & A Architect fees 8,158
HEWA Rental income received from (d) 60
FRABR DG ([TRA]) Yan Yin Company Limited (“Yan Yin")
CCAL CCAL 630
TRERKA Administration fee received from ()
fRA Yan Yin 72
CCAL CCAL 240
TRTFHEESFER Commission paid to Szehope Securities
NGl Company Limited (f) 117
XN TFREERER Rental charge paid to Resource
ARMEE Development Limited (f) 3,760
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30.EEEEAEA LT Z2E AKX S (&) 30.SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Hiat
HESETAASEIRRHERFRE (a)
EEERBHZRR  AARIANMNEK
BLHERERFEM 8% (ZTE—=
F1.8%)FdEZHE - RZT——4F
ANAZTHILE BERELELATAE
B2 #5/519,360,0008 L ( - E—=
F 1 43,853,000 7T) © Mt HiHLHE
RITIEGERAEEEERBEREELR
SEBHEERNAL -

(a)

CCALKIEE R E 2 GBI ERE K
EMBERERSE T ALEE -

CCA Macaufk 5 € 75 5] '& Z R kiR 1
BERBETAER - BHEEHE L ACCA
MacauZ BB A °

RIBEEREIEZIGR  BETWEEH
FRAMCCALIEMAEZ A »

WIBETAIE 2GR AEBRMRA
NCCALERHITH ARSI KERE R -

HittBiE L R BEESBR QA RE
BERRABZESBERA -

S1.eREREEBEREEE 31.

FAI

Note:

Dr. Chao Sze Tsung Cecil has provided unsecured
advances, which have no fixed repayment term, to the
Group at 1.8% (2010: 1.8%) above the Hong Kong
dollar prime rate per annum. At 30 June 2011, the
advances from Dr. Chao Sze Tsung Cecil amounted
to HK$19,360,000 (2010: HK$43,854,000). Dr. Chao
Sze Tsung Cecil has confirmed that he will not request
repayment of these advances within next 24 months from
30 June 2011.

CCAL rendered architectural and related services to the
Group on terms agreed between both parties.

CCA Macau rendered architectural services to the Group
on terms agreed between both parties. Dr. Chao Sze
Tsung Cecil is the beneficial owner of CCA Macau.

Certain properties were leased to Yan Yin and CCAL as
office premises on terms mutually agreed between both
parties.

The Group charged administration fee for Yan Yin and
CCAL for handling services rendered on terms agreed
between both parties.

Dr. Chao Sze Tsung Cecil is the beneficial owner of
Szehope Securities Company Limited and Resource
Development Limited.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

R VALUE MEASUREMENTS

AEBE-—REBXEBEFERRER
PrEETRTERYTCRER S/
R\ B iE SRR (BHREIMNERR - F
TR NMEMERRR)  EERRK
MEE & REE -

The Group is exposed to financial risks through its
use of financial instruments in its ordinary course of
operations and in its investment activities. The financial
risks include market risk (including foreign currency
risk, interest risk and other price risk), credit risk and

liquidity risk.

BERMBTAZARERMBER LN
AT EER DRI T - EEEEER
B UL R B A REOR B B R BE RIS B
BRBIIHETT o

The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are

implemented on a timely and effective manner.
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BT ERMEEREBEEER

1. e EREEBEZEREE (&) 31.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

UTMERlzeRmEERTRAMEN
FREEZNEFBRREKS -

31.1 Categories of financial assets and liabilities

The carrying amounts presented in the statements
of financial positions relate to the following
categories of financial assets and financial
liabilities:

3. N
The Group The Company
. “E-%F
2010 2010
THET THL
HK$' 000 HK$’ 000
tHEE Financial assets
ERRERERH Loans and receivables
RIBE Mortgage loan 108 -
B 7 REM YRR Trade and other receivables 6,610 1
REBRDTRT Amount due from ultimate
holding company 132 -
BBREARRG Amounts due from related
companies 1,200 -
WEARRR Amounts due from subsidiaries - 1,979,714
BOERRAE Bank balances and cash 101,251 128
BRARBEGARR Financial assets at fair value
LEREE through profit or loss
BIEEENEMES Listed equity securities held
for trading 97,544 -
RAZHHNRE Held-to-maturity investments
&% Debenture 1,452 -
208,297 1,979,843
cRARE Financial liabilities
BRARBEARR Financial liabilities at fair value
ZEREE through profit or loss
BEEEERAHAE  Derivative financial instruments
Bz eMIA held for trading or not
qualifying as hedges 304 -
BEFEMANEBARE  Financial liabilities measured
at amortised cost
85 RERKR Trade and other payables 41,067 332
FIRIEERBRER Amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders 239,990 =
R KBRS E Amounts due to subsidiaries = 563,771
BEBEE Interest-bearing borrowings 1,332,937 =
EZRN Advances from a director 43,854 43,854
1,658,152 607,957
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1. e EREEBEZEREE (&) 31.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

FAI

312 5 &R 31.2

EERRITEERTANS —&4
AARBREBITEZRIA EOERREHR
REBREZMBE LMEX - AEH
MARRHEEERREEREE

BRARITHEFIACEAE G NE
KRR - T2XREHEFPZHEE
WA e

RITEFNASBEFREESE
EFfzeRBBEmARERAR
AR EERRETEX -

REMFPZHEEWRA - BEEDH
BUHMEEERRREEREFEER
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FHE R 5 R R 2 AT Uk 3] 2 58 DA
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AREBRARREESEET ZE
ERk  RAZEERREERE
EeMEECKRAE  ~AREHE
REEFMEMERSAEEREE
[\ Bz o

R VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)
Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty
to a financial instrument would fail to discharge
its obligation under the terms of the financial
instrument and cause a financial loss to the Group.
The Group’s and the Company’s exposure to credit
risk mainly arises from the bank balances and cash
and trade and other receivables, primarily rents

receivable from tenants.

Bank balances and cash are normally placed at
financial institutions that have sound credit rating
and the Group and the Company considers the

credit risk to be insignificant.

For rent receivables from tenants, management
has a credit policy in place and the exposure to
credit risk is monitored on an on-going basis.
Rental deposits are required from tenants prior
to the commencement of leases. In addition, the
Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual trade debt at each reporting date to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made

for irrecoverable amounts.

The Group and the Company have no significant
concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread
over a number of counterparties and tenants.
Hence, the maximum exposure to credit risk is
represented by the carrying amounts of each class
of financial assets. The Group does not provide any
other guarantees which would expose the Group to

credit risk.
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.eREREEBERBEER (&)
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31.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)
31.2 Credit risk (Continued)

The credit and investment policies have been
followed by the Group since prior years and are
considered to have been effective in limiting the

Group’s exposure to credit risk to a desirable level.

31.3 Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will
not be able to meet its obligations associated with
its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering
cash or another financial asset. The Group is
exposed to liquidity risk in respect of settlement of
its payables and financing obligations, and also in
respect of its cash flow management. The Group’s
and the Company’s policy is to regularly monitor
current and expected liquidity requirements
and its compliance with lending covenants by
reviewing each operating entity’s cash flow
forecast, to ensure that the Group and the Company
maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions and related parties to meet its liquidity

requirements in the short and longer term.

The liquidity policies have been followed by the
Group since prior years and are considered to have

been effective in managing liquidity risks.
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FAI
31.3
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ANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
R VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Analysed below is the Group’s and the Company’s
remaining contractual maturities for its financial
liabilities as at 30 June 2011 and 2010, based
on undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if
floating, based on rates current at the reporting
date). When the creditor has a choice of when the
liability is settled, the liability is included on the
basis of the earliest date on when the Group and
the Company can be required to pay. Where the
settlement of the liability is in instalments, each
instalment is allocated to the earliest period in

which the Group and the Company is committed to

pay.

Specifically, for term loans which contain a
repayment on demand clause which can be
exercised at the bank’s sole discretion, the analysis
shows the cash outflow based on the earliest period
in which the entity can be required to pay, that is
if the lenders were to invoke their unconditional
rights to call the loans with immediate effect. The
maturity analysis for other bank borrowings is

prepared based on the scheduled repayment dates.
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1.2 EAREERZERKE (&) 31.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

31.3

The Group

At 30 June 2011

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Trade and other payables

Amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders

Interest-bearing borrowings subject
to a repayable on demand clause

Advances from a director

At 30 June 2010 (Restated)

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Trade and other payables

Amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders

Interest-bearing borrowings subject
to a repayable on demand clause

Advances from a director

Derivative financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss

Liquidity risk (Continued)

HEA - KRR SR

Maturity Analysis - Undiscounted cash outflows

REE
Carrying
amount
7
HK$' 000

R-FR%
MEEX
Within

1 year or on
demand
TR
HK$’ 000

SR-F
BIRME
More than
Tyear but less
than 2 year
ThER
HK$’000

AERRE
e £
Total
undiscounted

cash outflows
AT
HK$'000

ANNUAL RePoRT 2011 %5
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41,067 41,067 - 41,067
239,990 239,990 - 239,990
133,937  1332,937 - 1332937

43,854 3,002 46,946 50,038
304 304 . 304
1,658,152 1,617,390 46,946 1,664,336
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1.2 REREEEEREE () 31.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

13 RBESREMKR (H) 31.3 Liquidity risk (Continued)

NN The Company

HE - RERRERH

Maturity Analysis - Undiscounted cash outflows

R-FRF SR-F AWERE

PREX  EORWE RiHAR

REE Within ~ More than Total
Carrying  1yearoron 1lyear but less undiscounted
amount demand  than 2 year cash outflows

TR TR TR TR
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

R-B--#XA=tH
FTEERAR
H{t & (AR
FRK B AT
EZ8R

RRMBER:
BROSAHE(H34)

R-B-BFXA=1H
FTEERAR
H{t & (R
FRK B AT
EZ8R

RRMBER:
BROKABE (Hi34)

At 30 June 2011

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Other payables

Amounts due to subsidiaries
Advances from a director

Financial guarantee issued:
Maximum amount guaranteed
(Note 34)

At 30 June 2010

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Other payables

Amounts due to subsidiaries
Advances from a director

Financial guarantee issued:
Maximum amount guaranteed
(Note 34)

332 332 = =
563,771 563,771 - -
43,854 3,092 46,946 50,038
607,957 567,195 46,946 50,038
- 1,332,937 - 1,332,937
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1. EKMEEEEZERKE (&) 31.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)
I3 REBELSRMKE (&) 31.3 Liquidity risk (Continued)

TERERBEREGR (EHRAEXR
BB 38 SRR ) 40 FE B 5K B H9E
ERZBEON - BEBBIEOE
MEAEONEIH - Bt - it
BB bt B HA o AT [ BB 25K
WABREZSBA  RARFZR
Bkt EETRRRITEITHRA
A ERARER - EFHEZR
FHERERBRERERLEZH

som
HRZE 3K

The table that follows summarises the maturity
analysis of term loans with a repayment on
demand clause based on agreed scheduled
repayments set out in the loan agreements.
The amounts include interest payments
computed using contractual rates. As a result,
these amounts were greater than the amounts
disclosed in the “on demand” time band in the
maturity analysis above. Taking into account

the Company’s financial position, the directors

do not consider that it is probable that the
bank will exercise its discretion to demand
immediate repayment. The directors believe
that such term loans will repaid in accordance
with the scheduled repayment dates set out in

the loan agreements.

HEAF-ZHFTNRERERKR
Maturity Analysis - Interest-hearing borrowings
subject to a repayable on demand clause
R-FR SR-% SRWE  ARRRE
WREX BIRmE BIREF REAR
REE Within ~ More than ~ More than Total

Carrying  1yearoron Tyearbutless 1Tyear but less undiscounted

amount demand  than 2 year  than 5 year cash outflows
TR TR TR TR TR
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HKS$' 000 HK$' 000

E-Z2-Z5 A=1H 30 June 2010 1,332,937 188,871 66,352 1,135,195 1,390,418
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1. e EREEBEZEREE (&) 31.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

FAI

31.4 AR @A 31.4

MEmEBRIEVHTAZAAEERK

BZRAR - BRIRBERNRITET
Hh s REBRARNBLEERE S
BEEE -

REBMARRRZHMERREZR
BIRERITWEZAE - BBEFR K
BEEEE  HPEERTER -&E
FRRRABERTBRR - WAL
PAUF B AR - Ak ARERAR
AIEHRSRENKER - RIFE
BERMEEEERR  EFER

BENXEBEERITAXRHESE

T3 45 52 PR 59 AR SR e )

Gy o
AR

AEEBHFREIRBEABEIER
KELOEE  WRF/E R -

R VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair
value or cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. Except for mortgage loans and bank balances,
the Group and the Company has no significant

interest-bearing assets.

The Group’s and the Company’s interest rate risk
arises primarily from interest receivable from bank
balances, mortgage loans and interest-bearing
borrowings which includes bank loans, advances
from a director and a related company. These
arrangements issued at variable rates expose the
Group and the Company to cash flow interest rate
risk. In accordance with the terms of the mortgage
loan and the interest-bearing borrowings, the
interest rate will be adjusted should the Hong Kong
dollar prime rate and Hong Kong Interbank Offer
Rate be changed. The Group and the Company
has not used any interest rate swaps to hedge its

exposure to interest rate risk.

The policies to manage interest rate risk have
been followed by the Group since prior year are

considered to be effective.
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1. e EREEEZEREE (&) 31.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

31.4 Interest rate risk (Continued)

31.4 M REAME (&)

RZE——F/,NA=1+8 ' FEEF
g E# T #5008 T - BEMEA
RTNE - R EINARER 2R
i 1& 2 F) & AR B i ) #94,431,000
BT (ZE—FF WA
EEBRBEAB R N
REE 7R & M 495,319,000
TT) o %50 F 2 LA TARE
BEEHEE T —EREANEE
B2 5 o

31.5 S EE & B

SNERBRIEF B T A Z AAEESK
RIRIE &M E B BEE I E FE Ry &
MmZEHER - AEBET2KEHE
B BRAEBNFE - KR
HZEEEWRRET - HRFEEM
TR IMEEFD EARE TAR
% 1) - SMNER R X Z KB RKREE
RGRERIENREREERBE
MBF R - NEBRAINE R 2
KEARY  AEEWESEEM
PTAE T AShINEREE -

At 30 June 2011, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 50 basis points in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant,
would decrease/increase the Group’s profit after
income tax and retained profits by approximately
HK$4,431,000 (2010: increase/decrease the
Group’s loss after income tax and decrease/increase
the Group’s retained profits by approximately
HK$5,319,000). The 50 basis point increase/
decrease represents management’s assessment of
a reasonably possible change in interest rates over

the period until the next annual reporting date.

31.5 Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that the
fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
foreign exchange rates. The Group operates mainly
in Hong Kong, Malaysia and the PRC with most
of the transactions denominated in Hong Kong
dollars, Malaysian Ringgit (“RM”) or Renminbi
(“RMB”). Foreign currency risk arises when future
commercial transactions or recognised assets and
liabilities are denominated in a currency that is
not the entity’s functional currency. The Group
considers its foreign currency exposure is mainly
arising from the exposure of Renminbi. The Group
has not entered into any derivative instruments to

hedge the foreign exchange exposures.
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BE_F——H£A=1+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

31.&mEEREB £

Z R (&) 31.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)
31.5 SN EE = B (&) 31.5 Foreign currency risk (Continued)
AEEBEHFRERERBEEIN The polices to manage foreign currency risk have
FERBRABE  WRAE KK - been followed by the Group since prior years and
are considered to be effective.
UTRAEENRE R E#ERIED The following table details of the Group’s exposure
REEEBEERABEEE 2 INER at the reporting date to foreign exchange risk
% arising from recognised assets and liabilities
denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the entity to which they
relate are shown below:
ARBTR MHEHTR (nfrn  HfxTn  BMxTr
RMB’ 000 RM’000 UsSD’000 MOP’000 AUD’000
RZZ2--%XA=tH  At30June 2011
RITEBRESE Bank balances and cash
B R EL At M R 5K Accounts and other
receivables
B R B E A R 3 Accounts and other payables
rEEHERFE Overall net exposure
ARBTT  #HEBTR XriTn  RAnTR  BMnTr
RMB’000 RM"000 usD’000 MOP’000 AUD’000
RZF-FEXAZ1H  At30)une 2010
ROIEHREAS Bank balances and cash = = 489 2 2,148
R R ELfth FE MR 3 Accounts and other - - - - _
receivables
R ok R EL At FE £+ R X Accounts and other payables - - - . -
TEAHERFE Overall net exposure - - 489 2 2,148

W-_ZE——FXA=1tH " &8T
BRI TT 59, 98 5% m £ fih H = 4
BRE KREZBRREAFEE
FE(CT-TF  BREEBES
L/ %597,0008 L) c TEHR
158N T 17 3R H R B OB N = AT
BRER 1B K o

At 30 June 2011 if Hong Kong dollar had
weakened/strengthened by 5% against Australian
dollars with all other variables held constant,
profit after income tax for the year would have
been HK$Nil (2010: loss after income tax for the
year would have been HK$597,000 lower/higher),
mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains/losses
on translation of Australian dollars denominated
bank balances.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BE_FT——& A=1+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

1. EKMEEEEZERKE (&) 31.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

31.5 Foreign currency risk (Continued)

31.5 SMEE = B (48)

RZE——FA=1+8  &FT
BARMESS 985%m £ b H x4
A XFZBRBEERRBANER
289,000/ T (ZE—ZF : RTHE
BERET) FEHRKBAR
EEENBERRIER ZHPTR
HY Bk o

AN 52 8 3 4 BBM T VR S s S T
o MERE TR fE B SME AR I A
AEERLHIHEARIMERE

7N £ [ 3 #% B 52 TT4F B R SN R
B - BB TTEEITH K R R E
EWEBIBRE - INELIBEKAE
PR T ERAYBEREK -

hu]|

RRABREE B |ERNZ INER

% -

At 30 June 2011 if Hong Kong dollars had
weakened/strengthened by 5% against RMB with all
other variables held constant, profit after income
tax for the year would have been HK$289,000
(2010: loss after income tax for the year would
have been HK$Nil lower/higher), mainly as a result
of foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of

RMB denominated assets and liabilities.

The Group does not hedge its foreign currency risk
with Australian dollars. However, management
monitors the foreign exchange exposure and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency

exposure should the need arise.

The Group does not hedge its foreign currency risks
with United States dollars as the rate of exchange
between Hong Kong dollars and the United States
dollars is controlled within a tight range. Permanent
changes in foreign exchange rates would have an

impact on consolidated financial statements.

The foreign exchange risk exposed to the Company

at the reporting date is immaterial.
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BE_F——H£A=1+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

31.&mEEREB £
FAI

31.6 E b E & & 31.6

HitERAREMBETAZARE
BEXAKECRESHEETIHER

(PR B E) R INE R EHRRIN ) D&
FEMER - AKRBEEEEHE D
BREAABEAABGZZEHE
ENLETESFMENES - E1EE
SEZFERNED  BFEERIEL
EEWITE e

AEBEHFECREARMER
HibERRARNBE  YRA/ER

ZNRBEK (&) 31.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

R VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)
Other price risk

Other price risk relates to the risk that the fair
values or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market prices
(other than changes in interest rates and foreign
exchange rates). The Group is mainly exposed to
change in market prices of listed equity securities in
respect of its investments in listed equity classified
as financial assets at fair value through profit
and loss. The management will monitor the price
movements and take appropriate actions when it is

required.

The policies to manage other price risk have been

followed by the Group since prior years and are

BRARK considered to be effective.
EEREBRZENI0% (ZFE—F A hypothetical 10% (2010: 10%) change in prices
F:10%) BREBHHAERRF of trading investments would result in an effect to
ZERERZEWMT the Group’s result for the year as follows:
—EFNF
2010
FE T
HK$" 000
BB A ARF Increase/(Decrease) in profit/(loss)
Br,/ (EE) for the year as a result of
#n, O ) increase in price of investments
held for trading 9,754
KEBRTBRYEARTF (Decrease)/Increase in profit/(loss)
BF, (Ei8) for the year as a result decrease
CRt4>) /4810 in price of investments held
for trading (9,754)
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BE_FT——& A=1+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

1. e EREEEEZEREE (&) 31.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

7T REERBRITERZAFEIE 31.7 Fair value measurements recognised in the

consolidated statement of financial position
TRZFRBEATFEREZHBNR The following table presents financial assets and
NERANEBAFEIAEZEREE liabilities measured at fair value in the statement
FBEZER - WEBREFTEI of financial position in accordance with the fair
TeRmEERRBZAFEMER value hierarchy. The hierarchy groups financial
ZEZERBMAZHEEASENL - assets and liabilities into three levels based on
TREENBBE D R=EHEH - the relative reliability of significant inputs used in
NRTFEERBSRBUATEE : measuring the fair value of these financial assets

and liabilities. The fair value hierarchy has the

following levels:

— FIE:MHREERBERNE —  Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
BTS2 WE CRIEAE) markets for identical assets and liabilities;

- E2E -MEEXBREMERE — Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices
(BMME#8) sk (Bl B& 1 included within Level 1 that are observable
PT) AR B mA e for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as
FBIEBABEZHE) & prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices);

and

— FE3E:AFREBEABEEMS — Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that
HEMBEBEEXBE AR are not based on observable market data
A (BELABIRE R @A) - (unobservable inputs).

—HemEENBEERBESE The level in the fair value hierarchy within which

NFERBRAZER  BERER the financial asset or liability is categorised in its

TEAZEABEABRR ZHERE entirety is based on the lowest level of input that is

¥ A - significant to the fair value measurement.
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1. eMAKMERE BZERBR (&) 31.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)
T REERBRIERZAFEITE 31.7 Fair value measurements recognised in the
(%) consolidated statement of financial position
(Continued)

REBERRABRPIRAFEAEZ The financial assets and liabilities measured at fair

TREERBERAFEREDSHE value in the statement of financial position are
wm grouped into the fair value hierarchy as follows:

E—E BB et

Level 1 Level 2 Total

Hat FET FET FET

Note HK$" 000 HK$" 000 HK$" 000

R-ZBE——FXA=+H At 30 June 2011

&E Assets
FEFEEN LMES Listed equity securities

held for trading (a)
NREEFE Net fair value

£ B Aot
Level 1 Level 2 Total
FHET FHET TAT
HK$" 000 HK$" 000 HK$" 000

R-ZBE-ZEFEXA=1+H At 30 June 2010

BE Assets
NEEEEM LME> Listed equity securities
held for trading (a) 97,544 - 97,544
=R Liabilities
HEEEERINA Derivative financial
EE R eI A instruments held
for trading or not
qualifying as hedge (b) = (304) (304)
ARBEFE Net fair value 97,544 (304) 97,240
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1. e EREEEEZEREE (&) 31.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

NI REERBRIPERZATEFE
(%)

REEHELEE B F_EM
F=ELHREE -

HBEREHRELR  EEAAE
BEERBE MG TERRMNE B K

(a) _EEE%
EWBEUABTLRE  ALE
BENEIE2ERHEAN L
THEME o

(b) LTETA
AREEBANTTETAESER
FURBTIS LR S o WEAK
B2 72 (B (B DA EE 1l B 68 P B8R
RZEMBARK(ERER -
MEERFNR(EZE) °

32.EXRERE
N B I H A 4 DR R A 42 8 Ak 1A
BEEU TR AREREhiEREE
A BT 2 T 44 RO B AN A A
BB AR A o

RERFRFHBERER  AEEFAR
RTRRZBE ~ BITHRSILEEE
BARE 75 ©

32.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

31.7 Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position
(Continued)

There have been no transfers between levels 1, 2

and 3 in the reporting period.

The methods and valuation techniques used for
the purpose of measuring fair value are unchanged

compared to the previous reporting periods.

(a) Listed securities

The listed equity securities are denominated
in Hong Kong dollars. Fair values have been
determined by reference to their quoted bid

prices at the reporting date.

(b) Derivatives

The derivatives entered into by the Group are
not traded on active markets. The fair values of
such contracts are estimated using a valuation
technique that maximises the use of observable
market inputs e.g. market currency and interest

rates (Level 2).

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost

of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce
debt.
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32.

EXER(R)

AEEEIFHEERMILE - UL RN
BEFERARES Bt - AEER
BEEFEARERE (BRERE
ERERPORBKIERBABEE
BEERAMED TR BERITER
ERS - AR REGEPBBRRERF
MO B

FR - AEBZERE  A-TTNFE
HAES  BREFEERGBHEXTE

/R 5= 7/

B50% « —B——ER-F—FFKA

32.CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (Continued)

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing
ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debts divided by
total capital. For this purpose, the Group defines net
debt as total borrowings (including current and non-
current interest-bearing borrowings, advances from
a director and a related company as shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position) less bank
balances and cash. Total capital is equity as shown in

the consolidated statement of financial position.

During the year, the Group’s strategy, which was
unchanged from 2009, was to maintain a gearing ratio

of not more than 50%. The gearing ratio at 30 June

=t+tHZEEABLERAT : 2011 and 2010 were as follows:
—E-TF
2010
FAT
HK$” 000
BfEE Interest-bearing borrowings 1,332,937
RITHEX Bank overdraft -
B Advances from a director 43,854
& TR 4B EE Total borrowings 1,376,791
W RITERERE Less: bank balances and cash (101,251)
R{EFHE Net debt 1,275,540
AR Total capital 3,245,737
EEABEBLX Gearing ratio 39.3%
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BE_F——%7A=1+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

33.7& & 33.COMMITMENTS
(@) EAXEE (@) Capital commitments
RIEBBERERPE 2 B Capital commitments in respect of properties under
PR 5B IR I R IE B TS Rk development outstanding at the reporting date
B not provided for in the financial statements are as
follows:

REE
The Group

—E-FF

2010

TAETT

HK$’ 000

CHUEEREYL Authorised but not contracted for 180,888

EENEBERERE Contracted but not provided for 652,337

833,225

RIMBER - AEEREEYEET At the reporting date, the Group had future

BERCY 2 AT 0 RRWEL Z 1K aggregate minimum lease rental receipts under

e mElH@mEmT : non-cancellable operating leases in respect of the

Group’s properties as follows:
AEE
The Group

—T-FF

2010

TETT

HK$’ 000

—FR Within one year 21,603
FE_EZERFN In the second to fifth years

(BEaEWE) inclusive 4,313

25,916
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33.CO
(a)

33.74E (&)
@) BEAERE (E)
AEMBELEESTHLRRR
B (Ha15) NS RE—=
=F - REHBERAEEESSH
P15 B AR R -
ZERENER-—RNAERER
TRRES  -HESEOEREHE
@ o

EEMHE-REABEA

R|ER - AEBRBELHHNMET
ZTBERUBZHEAT » KRR Z
REESMHRETOT

(b) (b)

—FR
FE_EERFNAN
(BREERME)

Within one year

inclusive

AREERBELZEHERAME - HEM The
FREMF  REHPAXKAKRERZHE The

BETETHZOAHATEZEEAR
BimiaR HETEBEIARESE -

In the second to fifth years

MMITMENTS (Continued)

Capital commitments (Continued)

The Group leases its investment properties (Note
15) under operating lease arrangements which run
for an initial periods of one to three years, with an
option to renew the lease terms at the expiry date
or at dates as mutually agreed between the Group
and the respective tenants. The terms of the lease
generally also require the tenants to pay security
deposits. None of the leases include contingent

rentals.

Operating lease commitments — as lessee

At the reporting date, the total future aggregate
minimum lease payments payable by the Group
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect

of land and buildings are as follows:

AEE
The Group
—E—FF
2010
THETT

HK$"000

4,560

3,800

8,360

Group leases a property under operating leases.

leases run for an initial period of two years, with an

option to renew the lease and renegotiate the terms at

the expiry date or at dates as mutually agreed between

the Group and respective landlords. None of the leases

include contingent rentals.
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BE_FT——& A=1+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

BEEREXR
B H T E THEB QAR &R
2,260,931,0008 L (ZFE —F F :

1,917,576,000% 7T) SR1TE & * AR
AIEMERITIERRIER - RZT——F
RNA=Z+TH UHERmEETERAZH
®H /953,991,000 L (Z T —F F -
1,332,937,000/870) - R¥IEH - EF
RREFTRAFEUBEREHOTZ
BEEELBE  ATAEHRTEER

B -

BEEIEH

ReEH - AEBMNTAERTZ 8
R1TE & 5952,480,0008 7T (=& —
T4 :1,332,937,000570) RITES R
TARAROEBIL(ZE—FF : 304,000/
7T)

(@ WITEXR

(i) "EENETREME &
HEWME MHE HBERXK
whkiEARBES AER
ZeMEEREREED R
2,496,079,0008 L (ZF—F

4 :2,556,997,0007% 7T) (A1
it15) %366,423,000% 7T (=

T —Z 4 : 378,745,000 7C)

(Ht 722 ) }% 80,000,000 7T
—ZT — =4 180,000,000

7t) (Hfat16) %80,725,0007%

T (ZZFZNF : 68,864,000
BEIT) (B it22) B KR F iR

G

34.FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS OF

35.

THE COMPANY

The Company has executed corporate guarantees
to banks in respect of banking facilities granted to
certain subsidiaries to the extent of HK$2,260,931,000
(2010: HK$1,917,576,000) of which HK$953,991,000
(2010: HK$1,332,937,000) was utilised as at 30 June
2011. At the reporting date, no provision for the
Company’s obligation under the guarantee contracts
have been made as the directors considered that it was
not probable that the repayment of the loans by the
subsidiaries would be in default. The fair value of these

guarantees is immaterial.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the reporting date, the Group’s total bank borrowings
of HK$952,480,000 (2010: HK$1,332,937,000) and
derivative financial instruments of HK$Nil (2010:
HK$304,000) were secured by the following:

(@) Bank borrowings

(i) legal charges on certain of the Group’s
investment properties, properties for
sales, property, plant and equipment
and financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss with carrying values of
HK$2,496,079,000 (2010: HK$2,556,997,000)
(Note 15), HK$366,423,000 (2010:
HK$378,745,000) (Note 21), HK$80,000,000
(2010: HK$80,000,000) (Note 16) and
HK$80,725,000 (2010: HK$68,864,000) (Note
22) respectively;
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5.5 (F) 35.PLEDGE OF ASSETS (Continued)
(@ MITER(E) (@) Bank borrowings (Continued)

(i) EFMHMEBARIMEEEKEHE (ii)y floating charge over all the assets and
ER BT - undertakings of certain subsidiaries;

(iii) I|RITAFRRE(E9,107,600%8 (iii) charge over certain bank account balances
T (ZF—Z4F : 3,659,0008 with carrying values of HK$9,107,600 (2010:
JU) EEER HK$3,659,000);

(ivi ETHEBAR ZRHEERT (iv) mortgages over the shares of certain
R1T(HAF19) + K subsidiaries (Note 19); and

(v) BEFTWENHERE - REIK (v) assignments of sale proceeds, insurance
= MU A KA K proceeds, rental income and deposits arising
WEE - from the tenancy agreements of certain

properties.
(b) FTE2MITA (b) Derivative financial instruments

() ATAEENKRLABEG (i) legal charges on certain of the Group’s
ARz EEER®E financial assets at fair value through profit or
BAREVEBETLT(ZE—ZFF loss with carrying values of HK$Nil (2010:
20,406,000 7T) (Hfit22) B HK$20,406,000) (Note 22); and
TR - &

(i) & TFRITEREKREEROB (i) charge over certain bank account balances
T (ZZE—FF : 144,000/ with carrying values of HK$Nil (2010:
7C) B AR HK$144,000).

187 CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED £ (£8) ARAH ANNUAL ReporT 2011 SR
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Schedule of Major Properties

2 %& K= COMPLETED PROPERTIES
R-ZE——FXA=+H As At 30 June 2011

EHtE nRE Frik s
ES wa WREH P #BEER 4BEER Bfy AR

Approved  Marketable
Crown total gross  total gross  Car parking
Property Lot no. lease term Type  floor area floor area spaces % owned
(%) (FAR)
(years) (s.f)
ERMRARILIEE 716308 EHhm1992% Bx/EE 3,892 3,903 - 100
SRH (H1) RE55F
Scenic Crest 716in D D. 4 55 from 1992 Commercial/ 3,892 3,903 = 100
Mui Wo Residential
Lantau Island
New Territories
Hong Kong (Portion)
EREAF AL BN 184, 185, H18885 BE/EE - - 18 100
ARIEE (B1) 186, 187, 188, 1£:1999%
189, 190%191%%

South View Garden A.LL. 184, 185, 999 from 1888 Commercial/ = = 18 100
80 Shek Pai Wan Road, 186, 187, 188, Residential
Aberdeen, Hong Kong 189, 190 &191
(Portion)
BRE %M E200% A3t ER833855BE M19225F 85 e - - 1 100
38 (317) REERH 75EE75E
Villa Cecil Sec. B of I.L. 75 + 75 from Residential - - 1 100
200 Victoria Road, 8338 & Ext. 1922
Hong Kong (Portion)
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Schedule of Major Properties

2 & K= () COMPLETED PROPERTIES (Continued)
R-ZE——FXA=+H As At 30 June 2011
EHtE nRE Frik s
ES wa WREH P #BEER 4BEER Bfy AR
Approved  Marketable
Crown total gross  total gross  Car parking
Property Lot no. lease term Type  floor area floor area spaces % owned
(%) (FAR)
(years) (s.f)
BRI FEL0R R R2769% 2 5 T m1929% 2t [ 56,174 73,000 25 100
SRS R ER2769%: 2 995 E99%
BT HADRINBR
Cheuk Nang Plaza R.P.of L.L. 2769 99 + 99 from Commercial 56,174 73,000 25 100
250 Hennessary Road, R.P. of S.D. 1929
Hong Kong of I.L. 2769 R.P.
of .. 1 of S.D.
of I.L. 2769
BRILREEE0N AR EY M1992F iz 6,683 12,500 4 100
SR (31) R 1067%: 55
Cheuk Nang Lookout, R.B.L. 1067 55 from 1992 Residential 6,683 12,500 4 100
30 Severn Road,
The Peak,
Hong Kong (Portion)
BRHZME192% Mt ER2441 M19225F 85 iz 38,197 51,483 20 100
BE_BE- ZRZE 7575
(%)
Villa 1, Villa 2 and Villa 3, I.L. 2441 75 + 75 from Residential 38,197 51,483 20 100
Villa Cecil, Phase I, 1923

192 Victoria Road,
Hong Kong (Portion)
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Schedule of Major Properties

2 & K= () COMPLETED PROPERTIES (Continued)
R-ZE——FXA=+H As At 30 June 2011

E#E THE Frth s
ES wa WREH Bh ABEER HAREER Bfy AR%

Approved  Marketable
Crown total gross  total gross  Car parking
Property Lot no. lease term Type  floor area floor area spaces % owned
(%) (FAR)
(years) (s.f)

FRESMEN6H MR ENMIBR215% F19226F 5T fix 73,293 97,000 21 100
BR-HE-E RER T5EE75E
REZE
Tower 1 and 2, R.B.L. 215 & Ext from 75 + 75 from Residential 73,293 97,000 21 100
Villa Cecil, Phase Il 1922
216 Victoria Road,
Hong Kong
Parkview @ tt & &35 PT773& KAER iz 27,236 - 8 100
SRETEERD
BRE502508 R
Parkview@ Cecil Chao Centre, Lot PT77 Freehold Residential 27,236 — 8 100

Lorong Perak
50250 Kuala Lumpur
Malaysia
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Schedule of Major Properties

BREPYE PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT
R-ZE——FXA=+H As At 30 June 2011
R-g--%
BhE  TEE fhgE  RiIR R
UL 18 BEER  HBRE  MESER  44AER  48AER B E9% RAAH BIfER
Approved  Marketable Car Stage of
Government total gross ~total gross parking completion Development
Property Lot no. lease term Typet  Sitearea  floorarea  floor area spaces % owned date as at 30/6/2011
(F) (FrR)  (FAR)
(years| s (s
—SARLTR ZEME A BT 9% B9 13388 68 100 0 F-EZARERER
BEEETNES A0 wRIE e FHHETER
HETREN®
One Kowloon Peak Touen Wan 56 from 1991 Residential 39,998 83,991 113,368 08 100 2013 Occupation Permit for
§ Po Fung Terrace, Town Lot 352 Phase | obtained.
Ting Kau, Site Formation and
Tsuen Wan foundation work of
Phase I1in progess
Bt ERS Fo0.601,  AARE  ER/EE 08 FCEREE - i 0 EfRE RABNCENE
FHERLY 849,851 1,708,648
SRBERRAT Rorrest
BRIS0509E BRESR
Phases Il to V, Section 57 Freehold ~ Commercial/ 88,638 Phases 2105 - 867 100 Not yet Building plans
Cecil Chao Centre Lots 690, Residential 1,706,648 determined already approved
Lorong Perak 50250, 849, 851
Kuala Lumpur and PT78
Malaysia
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Schedule of Major Properties

BRPY=EE)
R-_F——FXA=TH
UE 18 BEER
Government
Property Lot no. lease term
(%)
(years)
SRR THE  dmE
HMIEERER AB19-0128 &10F
Cheuk Nang Garden LotNo 70 from 2004
Longhwa, Longgang, AB19:0128
Shenzhen
RfbRARE M0EHE  BN0F
108
Estrada de Seac LotNo 21202 10 from 2001
Pai Van
Figh RMXESD  oorE
BERiKi EEI i S
New Villa Cecil Lot No. 1848 50 from 2007
Shui Hang D.D. Cheung Chau
Cheung Chau
Hong Kong
AN s s
i BHE shkl  1nAsA
il EinE
B H2009F
12R25H
Eita0f
Cheuk Nang ¢ Chong Xian Zhen ~ Residential :
Riverside North of Chong Hang Jie 70 years from
Yu Hang District ~ West of Yan Shan Gang ~ 25/12/2009
Hnagzhou Commercial
40 years from
25/12/2009

B8 AR

Type*

BR/lE

Commercial/
Residential

R/l

Commercial
Residential

%

Residential

Residential/

Commercial

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT
(Continued)
As At 30 June 2011

R-g--F

BhE  WEE fERE  RHIR RAZTH

BEAEE AGAEE A8AER B E9% xAAH BIfER

Approved  Marketable Car Stage of

total gross ~~total gross parking completion Development

Sitearea floorarea floor area spaces % owned date as at 30/6/2011
(7)) (FAR)
50 (5

2491638604 - 1,054 00 BERE FACER HETE

AR ERER

552449 1,638,604 - 1,054 100 Not yet The litgation is resolved.

determined ~ The construction work will

be resumed shorly.

7984 129426 159202 866 na  BERE REBACENE

97934 1219426 1592212 866 7.4 Not yet The Building Plan

determined was approvel

M 408 519 - 100 01 #-HrETRENR

111,752 40,683 55,192 — 100 2012 The superstructure work

of Phase | in progress

0963 1318407 - 780 100 2013 BERRICHE
419623 1318407 = 780 100 2013 Building Plans were
approved
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